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Management report

Anheuser-Busch InBev 1s a publicly traded company (Euronext ABI) based in Leuven, Belgium, with secondary listngs on the Mexico
(MEXBOL: ANB) and South Africa (JSE. ANH) stock exchanges and with Amenican Depositary Receipts on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE BUD). Our Dream Is to bring people together for a better world, Beer, the onginal social network, has been bringing people
together for thousands of years. We are committed to building great brands that stand the test of time and to brewing the best beers using
the finest natural Ingredients Our diverse portfolio of well over 500 beer brands includes global brands Budweiser®, Corona® and Stella
Artois®; mulhi-country brands Beck's®, Castle®, Castle Lite®, Hoegaarden® and Leffe®, and local champions such as Aguila®,
Antarctica®, Bud Light®, Brahma®, Cass®, Cnstal®, Harbin®, Jupiler®, Michelob Ultra®, Modelo Especial®, Quimes®, Vicloria®,
Sedrn® and Skol®. Our brewing heritage dates back more than 600 years, spanrung continents and generations From our European
roots at the Den Hoorn brewery in Leuven, Belgium. To the pioneenng spint of the Anheuser & Co brewery in St Lows, US. To the creation
of the Castle Brewery in South Afnca dunng the Johannesburg gold rush. To Bohemia, the first brewery in Brazil Geographically diversified
with a balanced exposure to developed and developing markets, we leverage the collective strengths of approximately 175 000 employees
based in nearly 50 countries worldwide For 2018, AB InBev's reported revenue was 54 6 billion US dollar (excluding jomt ventures and
associates).

The following management report should be read in conjunction with Anheuser-Busch InBev's audited consolidated financial statements.

In the rest of this document we refer to Anheuser-Busch InBev as “AB InBev" or “the company”

Selected financial figures

To faciitate the understanding of AB InBev's underlying performance, the comments in this management report, unless otherwise
indicated, are based on organic and normalized numbers “Organic” means the financials are analyzed eliminating the impact of changes
In currencies on translation of foreign operations, and scopes Scopes represent the impact of acquisiions and diveshiures, the start-up
or termination of activities or the transfer of activities between segments, curtailment gains and losses and year-over-year changes in
accounting estimates and other assumptions that management does not consider part of the underlying performance of the business The
impact of adopting hypennflation accounting in Argentina effective 1 January 2018 Is presented as a scope change.

The tables in this management report provide the segment information per region for the period ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 in
the format up to Narmalized EBIT level that 1s used by management to monitor performance The results of the former SAB Central and
Eastem European Business were reported as “Results from discontinued operations” until the completon of the disposal that took place
on 31 March 2017 and the results of Distell were reported as share of results of associates until the completion of the sale that occurred
on 12 Apnl 2017, and accordingly, are excluded from normalized EBIT and ESITDA. On 4 October 2017, the company completed the
transition of its 54 5% equity stake in Coca-Cola Beverages Afnca ("CCBA”) and stapped consolidating CCBA in its consohidated financial
staternents as of that date. Furthermore, on 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50 50 mergar of AB inBev's and Anadolu Efes’
existing Russia and Ukraine businesses Following the closing of the transaction, the operations of AB InBev and Anadolu Efes in Russia
and Ukraine are combined under AB inBev Efes The combined busmness is fully consolidated in the Anadelu Efes financial accounts As
a result of the transaction, AB InBev stopped consolidating its Russia and Ukraine businesses and accounts for its investment in AB InBev
Efes as results of associates as of that date.

Whenever used in this repart, the term “normalized” refers to performance measures (EBITDA, EBIT, Profit, EPS, effective tax rate) before
non-recurnng tems and discontinued operations Non-recurnng items are either income or expenses which do not occur regularty as part
of the normal activities of the company They are presented separately because they are important for the understanding of the underlying
sustainable performance of the company due to their size or nature. Normalized measures are additional measures used by management,
and should not replace the measures determined in accordance with IFRS as an indicator of the company’s performance, but rather
should be used In conjunction with the most directly comparable {FRS measures

54




AB InBev annual report 2018

The tables below set out the components of AB InBev's operating income and operating expenses, as well as the key cash flow figures

Million US doltar

Revenue'
Cost of sales

Gross profit
SG&A
Other operating income/(expenses)

Normalized profit from operations (Normalized EBIT)
Non-recurring items

Profit from operations (EBIT)

Depreciation, amortization and impairment
Normalized EBITDA
EBITDA

Normalized profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Profit from continuing operations attributable to equity holders of
AB InBev

Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Million US dollar

Operating activities
Profit of the penad
Interest, taxes and non-cash items ncluded in profit

2018

54 619
(20 359)

34 259
(17 118)
680

17821
{715)

17 106
4 260
22 030
21 366
6793

4 368
4368

b

100%
37%

63%
31%
1%

3%

%

8%
40%
39%
12%

8%
8%

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of provisions

Change it working capital

Pension contnbutions and use of provisions
Interest and taxes (paid)/recerved
Dwidends received

Cash flow from operating activities

Investing activities

Net capex

Net of tax proceeds from SAB transaction-related divestitures

Acquisition and sale of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired/disposed of
Proceeds from the sale/{acquisition) of investment in short-term debt secunties
Other

Cash flow from investing activities

Financing activities

Dwidends paid

Net (payments on)/proceeds from borrowings

Other (including purchase of non-controlling interests)
Cash flow from financing activities

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

2017

56 444
(21 386)

35058
(18 099)
854

17814
(662)

17152

4270
22 084
21429

7 967

7 968
7 996

2018

5691
15 870
2% 561

512
(488)
(7 064)
141

14 663

(4 649)
(430)
145
1296
(321
(3 965)

(7 764)
(4 707}

(1 477)
(13 945)

(3 247)

%

100%
38%

62%
32%
2%

32%

0%

8%
39%
38%

14%

14%
14%

2017

8183
12 484
21 667

218
(616)
(5982)
142

15 430

(4 124)
8 248
(556)
4337

(51)
7854

(9 275)
(2 981)
(1 748)

(21 004)

2 280

! Tumover less excise taxes In many junsdictions, excise taxes make up a large proportion of the cost of beer charged to the company’s customers



Financial performance

AB InBev 1s presenting its results under s regions. North Amenca, Latin America West, Latin Amenca North, Latin America South, EMEA
and Asia Pacific

The tables in this management report provide the segment informabon per region for the period ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 in
the forrmat down to Normalized EBIT level that 1s used by management 1o monitor performance

The tables below provide a summary of the performance of AB InBev for the perod ended 31 Decembar 2018 and 2017 {in milhon US
doliar, except volumes in thousand hectoliters) and the related comments are based on organic numbers.

Currency COrganic
AB INBEV WORLD translation growth %
Volumes 612 572 (47 185) - 18679 567 066 03%
Revenue 56444 {2 600) (1816) 2 591 54819 4.8%
Cost of sales {21 386) 1373 592 (938) (20 359) 4 1%
Gross profit 35058 {1227) {1224) 1653 34 259 4.9%
SG&A (18 099) 603 443 (65) {17 118) 0 4%
Other operating Income/{expenses) 854 (112) (46) (17) 680 (2 2)%
Normalized EBIT 17814 (736) (827) 1570 17 821 8.0%
Normalized EBITDA 22084 (751) (954) 1702 22 080 7.9%
Normalized EBITDA margin 391% 40.4% 118 bps

In 2018, AB InBev delivered nommalized EBITDA growth of 7.9%, while its normalized EBITDA margin increased 118 bps, reaching 40.4%
Consolidated volumes grew 0 3%, with own beer volumes growing 0 8% and non-beer volumes decreasing 3.6%.

Consolidated revenue grew 4.8% to 54 619 m US dollar, with revenue per hectoliter increasing 4.5%. On a constant geographic basts
{1 & elminating the impact of faster grawth in counines with lower revenue per hectoliter), revenue per hectoliter grew by 4.7% Combined
revenues of the three global brands, Budweiser, Stella Artois and Corona grew 9 0% and 13 1% outside of their respective home markets
Budwetser generated strong results n China, Brazil and the UK, as well as many new markets following the brand's activation as the
global sponsor of the 2018 FIFA World Cup Russia™, with 5 3% revenue growth globally Stelia Artors continued 1ts long-term trajectory,
with revenue growth of 5.2% drven by sales in Brazil, Argentna and the UK Corona grew by 17 6% globally, led by Mexco, China,
Colombia and Westem Europe

Consohdated Cost of Sales (CoS) increased 4 7%, or 4.3% on a per hecloliter basis On a constant geographic basis, CoS per hectoliter
increased by 4 6%.

VOLUMES

The table below summarizes the volume evolution per region and the related commenis are based on organic numbers Volumes include
not anly brands that AB InBev owns or licenses, but also third party brands that the company brews as a subcontractor and third party
preducts that it sells through AB InBev's distnbution network, particularly in Europe Volumes sold by the Global Export business, which
includes the company's global headquarters and the expaort businesses which have not been allocated to the company’s regions, are
shown separately

Organic Organic
Thousand hectoliters 2017 Scope growth 2018 growth %
North America 113 496 76 (2 846) 110726 (2.5)%
Latn Amenca West 110 625 {71) 4922 115 476 4 5%
Latin Amenca North 118374 (232) 4172) 1t4 969 (35)%
Latin Amenca South 34 062 238 (325) 33975 (1.0)%
EMEA 131 692 {46 445} 1929 87 176 213%
Asta Pacific 101 986 95 2185 104 266 21%
Glabal Export and Holding Companies 1336 (846) (13) 478 (2.6)%
AB InBev Worldwide 612 572 (47 185) 1679 567 066 0.3%

North America total volumes decreased 2 5% The company estimates that the United States industry beer sales-to-retallers adjusted
for the number of selling days declined by 1 8% On the same basis, the company estimates that its shipment volumes in the United States
and its beer sales-to-retallers declined by 2 6% and 2 7% respectively. The above core brand portfolio performed well, and the sirategy
to premiumize the portfolio continues to be supported by the growth of Michetob Ultra, which solidified its position as the largest share
gainer in the United States over the past four years, and also by several successful innovations, including Micheiob Uttra Pure Gold, Bud
Light Orange and the Budweiser Reserve senes. The core and core light segments remain under pressure, as consumers select higher
price tiers within the industry, which contnbuted to Bud Light and Budweiser losing 80 bps and 35 bps of total market share OQverall, the
company estirmates a dechine In total market share in the United States of approximately 40 bps, its best annual share trend performance
since 2012, and estrmates a share loss of 20 bps in the last quarter.

In Canada, total volumes decreased by low single digits as a result of a weak industry and industry segment mix shift, due to increased
competitive dynamics in the value segment. The trade up strategy 1s delivenng strong resuits, with the High End Company growing ahead
of the industry, led by double-digit volume growth for the local craft brands, and share gains from Corona and Stella Artois  The focus core
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and core plus brands also continue to deliver strong results, with both Bud Light and Michelob Ulira among the fastest-growing brands in
Canada

Latin America West total volurmes increased 4 5% The company delivered strong results in Mexico, with volumes increasing high single
digits. Throughout the year the company focused on developing its portfolio in line with the category expansion framework to clearly
differentiate the brands. The company's core brands are leading the way for growth with different regional approaches, enabling Corona
1o grow at an accelerated pace in the Northern region and Victoria to deliver its best performance ever in the Central region The company’s
premium portfolio contributed meaningfully to top-hne growth as well, led by Michelob Ultra and Stella Artois which grew by double-digits.

In Colombia, non-beer volumes grew by 0.2% and beer volumes increased by 3.6% driven by Budweiser on the back of the 2018 FIFA
World Cup Russia™ activations as well as Aguila's country wide expansion focused on promoting s national identity. Peru volumes were
down low-single digits 1n a challenging macroeconomic environment, though the brand mix of all three global brands delivered solid
growth Ecuador volumes increased by mid-single digits and the company gained share of total alcohol as a result of successful inbatives
across the beer category, led by Pilsener and Club Premium and continued growth of the global brands

Latin America North total volumes decreased 3 5%. Beer volumes n Brazil were down mid-single digits while non-beer volumes were
down high single-digits, primanly as a result of segment mix shift, as consumers traded down to the value segment in light of the
challenging macroeconomic environment However, the premium portfolio continued to perform ahead of the industry, with the global
brand portfolio growing by double digits and led by Corona as one of the fastest growing brands 10 the country. The core plus segment
posted strong growth driven by Bohemia, Brahma Extra and Skol Hops In addition, the company taunched two brands, Nossa and
Magnifica, beers brewed with local cassava and offered to consumers at a considerably lower price point while providing comparable
margins to the company’s core brands.

Latin America South total volumes decreased 1 0% In Argentina volumes declined by low single digis due largely to the consumption
contraction resulting from chatlenging macreeconomic conditions Despite the tough operating environment, the beer category continues
to gain share from other alcoholic beverages. The premium brands gained share in a growing segment of the industry, dnven by Patagoria
and Corona, and the company continues to scale up Budweiser after reacquining the rights to the brand in April 2018. The company has
also successfully repositioned the two fargest brands in the country, Quilmes Clasica and Brahma, leading to an improved performance
of the core portfolto In accordance with IFRS rules, we are applying hypermflation accounting in Argentina as of 1 January 2018 The
impact of adopting hypennflation accounting in Argentina effective 1 January 2018 s presented as a scope change

EMEA total volumes increased 2 3% and own beer volumes also ncreased 2 3% Volumes were impacted by the completion of the
transition of CCBA that occurred on 4 October 2017 and the formation of AB InBev Efes on 30 March 2018 The impacts are presented
as a scope change

In South Africa, beer volumes decreased by mid-singfe digit The premium and above premum continues to grow by tnple digits, with a
good contribution from the launch of Budweiser The core segment, wihich stdl accounis for the vast majority of the volumes, was held
back by a challenging macroeconomic environment, although the volume performance increased toward the end of the year In Afnca
excluding South Afnca, own beer volumes increased by low-single digits, with significant volume growth in Zambia by mid-teens and
Mozambique by high-single digits The volume growth in Nigena accelerated throughout the year following the introduction of a new
brewery. However, the own beer volumes were lower by low-single digits (n Tanzania and Uganda as a result of capacity constraints and
a chatlenging macroeconomic environment

Western Europe 1otal volumes grew by low-single digits, with strong execution associated with the 2018 FIFA World Gup Russ:a™ Global
brands performed well, and Budweiser's growth was supported by tournament activations Corona's growth was supported by Casa
Corona In France and Span, as well as the Corona Sunset Festivals i1y the United Kingdom and italy The UK and Spatn led the way with
market share growth across the region

Asia Pacific total volumes increased 2 1% In China, the super premium brands continued 1o grow significantly supported by a strong
overall performance of the company’s e-commerce business In FY18, Budweiser grew by mid-single digits supperted by premumization
efforts which expanded beyond the music platform into fashion and broader Iifestyle actvations

In Australia, volume decreased by low single digits due to increased promotional activity by competitors and a softer industry
performance amidst declining consumer confidence Great Northern remains a key engine of growth, with continued double-digit growth
of both Oniginal and Super Cnsp vanants On the craft portfolio, acquisthons continue to grow in strength with double-digit volume
growth
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES BY REGION

The tabies below provide & summary of the performance of each region, for the penod ended 31 December 2018 (in milion US dollar,
except volumes in thousand hectoliters) and the related comments are based on organic numbers

Currency Organic Organic
AB INBEV WORLDWIDE translation growth growth %
Volumes 612 572 (47 185) - 1679 567 066 0.3%
Revenue 56 444 (2 600) {1 816) 2591 54 619 4.8%
Cost of sales {21 386) 1373 502 (938) (20 359} (4 %
Gross profit 35 058 (1227) (1224) 1653 34259 4.9%
SG&A {18 099) 603 443 {65) (17 118) 0 4)%
Other operating income/({expenses) 854 (112) (46) 17 680 (2 2)%
Normalized EBIT 17 814 (736) (827} 1570 17 821 9.0%
Normalized EBITDA 22084 (751) (954) 1702 22080 7.9%
Normalized EBITDA margin 33 1% 40.4% 118 bps

Currency Organic Organic
NORTH AMERICA translation growth growth %
volumes 113 496 76 - {2 846) 110726 (25)%
Revenue 15 588 19 13 (117 15 504 (0.8)%
Cost of sales (5777) 26 (6) (30) (5 788) (0.5)%
Gross profit 9811 44 8 (141 9718 (1.5)%
SG&A {4 361} (75) {5) 44 (4 396) 1.0%
Other operating income/(expenses} 36 - - 4 40 10 7%
Normalized EBIT 5486 (31) 3 (99) 5 360 (18)%
Normalized EBITDA 6329 (30) 4 (153) 6150 (2.4)%
Normahzed EBITDA margin 40.6% 39.7% (68) bps

Currency Organic Organic
LATIN AMERICA WEST transiation : growth %
Volumes 110 625 7 - 4922 115 476 45%
Revenue 9238 {9) (109) 879 9 999 9.5%
Cost of sales {2 555) (3) 32 (196) (2722) (7.71%
Gross profit 6 683 (12) (76) 882 T27T 10.2%
S5G&A (2 876} 10 32 13 {2 821) 0.5%
Other aperating incomes(expenses) B9 - [h] [4}] 87 (15%
Normahzed EBIT 3 896 (2) (45) 694 4 544 17.8%
Normalized EBITDA 4512 (2) (52) 738 5196 16.4%
Normalized EBITDA margin 48.8% 52.0% 306 bps

Currency Organic Organic
LATIN AMERICA NORTH 2017 Scope  translation grawth 2018 growth %
Volumes 119374 (232) - 4172) 114 969 (3.5)%
Revenue 9775 (29) {t 044) 288 8990 3.0%
Cost of sales (3 744) 14 389 (63) (3 404) (1 )%
Gross profit 6031 (16) {655) 225 5585 3.7%
SG&A (3 060} 5 118 51 (2 686) 1.7%
Other operating income/(expenses) 361 - (38) (59) 266 (18 3)%
Normaiized EB|T 3332 (10) (373) 216 3165 6 5%
Normalized EBITDA 4180 (10) (462) 218 3926 5.2%
Normatized EBITDA margin 42.8% 43.7% 95 bps
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Currency QOrganic Organic
LATIN AMERICA SOUTH 2017 Scope translation growth 2018 growth %
Volumes 34 062 238 - {325) 33975 (t 0)%
Revenue 3363 {218) (990) 708 2883 21.3%
Cost of sales {1207) (&) 295 (143) (1 060) (11 9%
Gross profit 2156 (224) (695) 567 1803 28.7%
SG&A (781) 15 242 (166) {689) {21 4)%
Other pperating iIncome/{expenses) 13 (18} (11) 18 2 138 7%
Normalized EBIT 1388 (226) (465) 419 1116 30.8%
Normalized EBITDA 1595 (163) (534) 483 1381 30.8%
Normalized EBITDA margin 47 4% 48.2% 369 bps

Currency Organic Qrganic
EMEA 2017 Scope translation growth 2018 growth %
Volumes 131 692 (46 445) - 1929 87 176 23%
Revenue 10 344 (2 453) 163 319 8374 4.1%
Cost of sales (4 609) 1418 (54) (237) (3 482) 7%
Gross profit 5735 {1 035) 110 82 4892 1.7%
SG&A (3 336) 704 (69) (58) (2 760) {2 2)%
Other operaling Income/{expenses) 108 (29) - 18 98 211%
Narmatized EBIT 2507 (359} 40 42 2230 1.9%
Normalized EBITDA 3349 (440) 54 37 3000 1.3%
Normahzed EBITDA margin 324% 35.8% (100) bps

Currency Organic QOrganic
ASIA PACIFIC 2017 Scope translation growth 2018 growth %
Volumes 101986 95 - 2185 104 266 21%
Revenue 7804 39 155 473 8 470 6.1%
Cost of sales (3 201) (23) {72) (237) (3533) (7 4)%
Gross profit 4 603 16 83 235 4 937 5.1%
SG&A (2 735) (20} {57) 42 (2 770) 1.6%
Other operating income/(expenses) 168 ) 4 8) 163 (5 0)%
Normalized EBIT 2035 ) 30 270 2330 13.3%
Normalized EBITDA 2695 (5) 49 344 3082 12.8%
Normalized EBITDA margin 34.5% 35.4% 218 bps
GLOBAL EXPORT AND HOLDING Currency Organic
COMPANIES translation
Volumes 1336 {8486) - 13 478 (2 6)%
Revenue 332 51 (5) 41 419 12.2%
Cost of sales (292} (52) 7 (32) (370} (10 8)%
Gross profit 40 2) 2 9 49 23.8%
SG&A (950) (36) (18) 7 (996) 0.7%
Other operating mcome/(expenses) 79 (65} @ 12 25 89.8%
Normalized EBIT (830) {102} {18) 28 (923) 30%
Normatized EBITDA 1577 (101) {13) 35 {856) 5.2%

REVENUE

Consolidated revenue grew 4 8% to 54 §19m US dollar with revenue per hectolder increasing 4 5%. On a constant geographic basis (1 e
eliminating the mpact of faster growth in countries with lower revenue per hectoliter), revenue per hectoliter grew by 4.7%, driven by the
company's revenue managernent wibatives as well as continued strong premium brand performances.

COST OF SALES

Cost of Sales (CoS) increased 4 7% or 4 3% on a per hectoliter basis The increase in cost of sales was driven prmarnly by unfavorable
commaodity prces, partially offset by synergy capture On a consiant geographic basis CoS per hectohter ncreased by 4 6%



OPERATING EXPENSES
Total operating expenses increased 0 5% in 2018

# Seling, General & Administrative Expenses (SG&A) increased by 04% in 2018, with higher markebng expenses associated with
tming of Investments related 1o the 2018 FIFA World Cup Russia™.

= QOther operating ncome dechined 2.2% in 2018 driven by the reduction on government grants and lower proceeds from disposals

NORMALIZED PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION (NORMALIZED
EBITDA)

Normalized EBITDA increased 7.9% organically to 22 080m US dollar, with an EBITDA margin of 40 4%, and an organic growth of 118
bps

= North Amenca EBITDA decreased 2.4% to 8 150m US dollar, with a margin contraction of 68 bps to 39.7% driven by an increase in
the year-over-year price of commodities and higher distribution expenses due to increased freight costs.

# Latin America West EBITDA increased 16 4% to 5 196m US doliar, with a margin enhancement of 306 bps to 52 0% dniven by capacity
enhancements, cost efficiencies coupled with the strong top-ine performance and continued synergy capture after the SAB
combination

* Latn Amerca North EBITDA increased 5 2% to 3 926m US dollar, with a margmn enhancement of 95 bps to 43 7%, mainly driven by
revenue management iniiatives, favarable brand mix and engoing cost discipline

& | atin America South EBITDA increased 30.8% to 1 381m US doltar, with a margin enhancement of 369 bps to 48.2%, due to revenue
growth positively impacted by an improved performance of the company's prermium portfolio.

* EMEA EBITDA increased 1 3% to 3 000m US dollar, with a margin contraction of 100 bps to 35 8%, with strong top-line growth mainly
dnven by the good perdformance of the company's global brands and marketing intiatives associated with the 2018 FIFA World Cup
Russiza™ in Western Europe and the positive results of the company's premium portfclic in Afnca.

® Asia Pacfic EBITDA increased 12 8% to 3 082m US dollar, with a margin expansion of 218 bps to 36 4%, driven by top-line growth
coupled with continued premiumization and tight cost management

+ Giobal Export and Holding Compames EBITDA of (656)m US dollar in the period ended 31 December 2018 (2017 (577)m US dollar)

Differences in normalized EBITDA margins by region are due 10 a number of factors such as different routes to market, share of returnable
packagng in the region's sales and premium product mux.

ADOPTION OF HYPERINFLATION ACCOUNTING IN ARGENTINA

Faollowing the categonzation of Argentina as a country with a three-year cumulative nflation rate greater than 100%, the country 1s
considered highly inflationary in accordance with IFRS

The IFRS rules (IAS 29) require us 10 report the results of the company's operations in hypennflationary economies, as If these were
highly inflationary as of 1 January 2018, and to restate the year-to-date results for the change in the general purchasing power of the local
currency, using official indices before converting the local amounts at the closing rate of the penod (.e December 2018 cliosing rate for
2018 full year results).

We are presenting in this management report the impact of adopting hypennflation accounting in 2018 as part of scopes In line with IFRS,
the 2017 Argentinan operations in these consolidated financial statements were not restated for hypennfiation accounting

In 2018 we are reporting 246m US dollar impact of hyperinflation accounting on revenue and 144m US dollar impact on normahzed
EBITDA. The hyperinflation accounting adjustment results from the combined effect of the indexation to reflect changes in purchasing
power on the 2018 full year results and the translation of the 2018 full year results at the December 2018 closing rate, rather than the
average year-to-date rate applied for non-hypennflationary economies and the 2017 Argentinean operations.

Furthermore, IAS 29 requires us to restate the non-monetary assets and habilities stated at histoncal cost on the balance sheet of the
company's operations in hypennflation economies using inflation indices and to report the resulting hyperinflation through the income
statement on a dedicated account for hypernflation monetary adjustments in the finance lIne and report deferred taxes on such
adjustments, when applicable

Dunng 2018, the transition to hypennflation accounting in accordance with the IFRS rutes, resuited o 46m US dollar monetary adjustment
reported In the finance hne, a negative Impact on the Profit attnbutable to equity holders of AB inBev of 77m US dollar and a negative
impact on Normalized EPS of 0.04 US dollar
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RECONCILIATION BETWEEN NORMALIZED EBITDA AND PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
Normalized EBITDA and EBIT are measures utilized by AB InBev to demonstrate the company's underlying performance

Normalized EBITDA s caleulated excluding profit from discontinued operations and the following effects from profit from continuing
operatons attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev: (1) Non-controlling interest, (1) Income tax expense, (i) Share of results of associates,
(v} Net finance cost, (v) Non-recurring net finance cost, (vi) Non-recumng items above EBIT {including non-recurring impairment) and
{vn) Depreciation, amortization and imparrment

Normalized EBITDA and EBIT are not accounting measures under IFRS accounting and should not be considered as an altemative to
Profit from continuing operations attnbutable to equity holders as a measure of operational performance or as an alternative to cash flow
as a measure of iquidity. Normalized EBITDA and EBIT do not have a standard calculation method and AB InBev's definiion of normalized
EBITDA and EBIT may not be comparable to that of other companies.

Million US doHlar Notes 2018 2017
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 4 368 7996
Non-controlling interest 1323 1187
Profit of the period 5691 9183
Profit from discontinued operations - (28)
Profit from continuing operations 5691 9155
Income tax expense 12 2839 1920
Share of result of associates 16 (153) (430}
Non-recurring net finance cost/(income) 11 1982 693
Net finance cost 11 6 747 5814
Non-recurring items above EBIT (including noen-recurring impairment) 8 715 662
Normalized EBIT 17 821 17 814
Depreciation, amortizaton and tmpairment (exciuding nen-recurring impairment) 4 260 4270
Normalized EBITDA 22 080 22084

Non-recurrning items are either income or expenses which do not occur regutary as part of the normal activities of the company. They are
presented separately because they are important for the understanding of the undeslying sustainable performance of the company due to
their size or nature Detais on the nature of the non-recurmng items are disclosed in Note 8 Non-recurnng items.

IMPACT OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign currency exchange rates have a significant impact on AB InBev's financial statements The following lable sets forth the
percentage of its revenue realized by currency for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017

2018 2017

US doltar 28.6% 27.5%
Brazilian real 13.6% 14 5%
Chinese yuan 8.7% 75%
Mexican peso 8.1% 7.0%
Euro 6.1% 5.5%
Colombian peso 4.3% 38%
Saouth Afncan rand 4.1% 6 2%
Canadian dotlar 3.4% 3.3%
Australian dollar 3.2% 3.0%
Saouth Korean won 2.9% 2.5%
Peruvian peso 2.9% 2.6%
Argentinean peso’ 2.7% 35%
Pound sterling 21% 17%
Dominican peso 1.6% 15%
Cther 7.7% 9 9%

' Hypeninflation accounting was adopted in 2018 te report the company'’s Argentinian operabions In ine with IFRS, the 2017 Argentinian aperations in these
conselidated financial statements were not restated for hyperinflation accounting
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The following table sets forth the percentage of its normalized EBITDA realized by currency for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017

2018 2017

US dollar 26.9% 27.8%
Brazian real 14.9% 16.1%
Mexican pesa B.7% 7 6%
Chinase yuan 7.0% 56%
Colombsan peso 5.9% 5.3%
South Afncan rand 4.6% 5.7%
Peruvian peso 4.5% 3.9%
Australian dollar 4.3% 4.4%
Euro 3.6% 2.7%
Argentinean peso’ 3.4% 4.3%
Canadian dollar 3.0% 31%
South Korean won 2.7% 2 5%
Dormnican peso 1.9% 18%
Pound sterling 1.3% 1.1%
Other 7.1% 8 1%

tn 2018, the fluctuation of the foresgn currency rates had a negative translation i/mpact, including hyperinflation accounting impact of 2
302m US dollar on AB InBev's revenue (2017 positive impact of 801m US dollar), of 1 217m US dollar on its normahzed EBITDA (2017:
positive impact of 255m US dollar) and of 1 056m US doilar on its nomalized EBIT {2017: positive impact of 208m US dollar}

AB InBev’s profit {(after tax) has been negatively affected by the fluctuaton of foreign currencies, including hypennflation accounting tmpact
for 684m US dollar (2017: positive impact of 126m US dollar), while the negatwe translation impact, meluding hypennflation accounting
impact on ts EPS (profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev) was 505m US dollar or 0.26 US dollar per share (2017 positive mpact
of 100m US dallar or 0.05 US dollar per share).

The impact of the fluctuation of the foreign currencies on AB InBev's net debt amounted to 932m US dollar (decrease of net debt) in 2018,
as compared to an impact of 4 184m US dollar (increase of net debt) in 2017. The impact of the fluctuation of the foreign currencies on
the equity attnbutable to the equity holders of AB InBev amounted to 7 379m US dollar (decrease of equity), as compared to an impact of
1 053m US dollar (increase of equity) in 2017

PROFIT

Normalized profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev was 6 793m US dolfar {(normalized EPS 3.44 US dollar) in 2018, compared 1o
7 967m US dollar (normalized EPS 4 04 US dollar) in 2017 (see Note 23 Changes in equity and earmings per share for more details)
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev for 2018 was 4 368m US dollar, compared to 7 996m US dollar for 2017 and includes the
following impacts:

* Net finance costs (excluding non-recurnng net finance items) 6 7TA7m US dollar in 2018 compared to 5 814m US dollar in 2017 This
increase was primanly due to mark-to-market losses linked to the hedging of the company's share-based payment programs of 1
774m USD dollar in 2018, compared to a loss of 291m USD dollar in 2017.

® Non-recurring net finance cost: 1 982m US dollar in 2018 compared to 633m US dollar m 2017 Non-recurring net finance costs n
2018 include mark-to-market losses of 1 722m US dollar on denvative instruments entered into to hedge the shares 1ssued in refation
to the combinations with Grupo Modelo and SAB. Furthermore, the 2018 non-recurring net finance costs inctude non-cash foreign
exchange translation losses on intragroup Ioans that were histoncally reported in equity and were recycled to profit and loss account,
upon the rembursement of these leans, as well as premiums paid on the early termination of certain bonds

® Income lax expense: 2 83%m US doliar in 2018 with an effective tax rate of 33 9% compared to 1 920m US dollar in 2017 with an
effectve tax rate of 18.0%. The increase in the effective tax rate 1s mainly due to non-deductible mark-to-market losses and changes
In tax legislation in some of the countries in which we operate. The 2017 effective tax rate was positively impacted by a 1.8 billion US
doliar adjustment followtng the US tax reform enacted on 22 December 2017 This 1 8 billion US doflar adjustment resulted mainly
from the remeasurermnent of the deferred tax llabilities set up In 2008 in line with IFRS as part of the purchase pnce accounting of the
combination with Anheuser Busch following the change in federal tax rate from 35% to 21% and was recognized as a non-recurnng
gain per 31 December 2017. This impact was partially offset by Ambev and certain of ts subsidiaries joiing the Brazilian Tax
Regulanzation Program in September 2017 whereby Ambev committed to pay some tax contingencies that were under dispute The
total amount recognized as non-recurnng armounted to 2 8 billion Brazilian real (0.9 billion US dollar) of which 2 8 bilhion Brazilian real
(0 9 billon US dollar) was reported in the income tax line and 141m Brazihan real {44m US dollar) in the finance ine. The normalized
effective tax rate was 27 8% in 2018 compared to 22 9% n 2017 The normalized effective tax rate excluding mark-to-market losses
linked to the hedging of the company’s share-based payment programs was 24 0% in 2018 compared to 22.4% in 2017,

®  Profit altributable te non-controlling mterest. 1 323m US dollar in 2018 compared to 1 187m US dollar in 2017

* Profit from discontinued operafions relates to the results of the former SAB Central and Eastern European business reported until the
completion of the disposal that took place on 31 March 2017

' Hypennflation accounting was adopted in 2018 to report the company's Argentinian operations In line with IFRS, the 2017 Argentintan operations in these
consohdated financial statements were not restated for hyperinflation accaunting
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Liquidity position and capital resources

CASH FLOWS
Million US dollar 2018 2017
Cash flow from operating actmwities 14 663 15430
Cash flow from investing activities (3 965} 7 854
Cash flow from financing actvibes {13 945) (21 004)
Net increasef(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3 24T) 2280

Cash flow fromn uperating activilies

Million US doltar 2018 2017
Profit of the period 5691 9183
interest, taxes and non-cash items included in profit 15 870 12484
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of provisions 21 561 21 B67
Change in working capital 512 219
Pension contnbutions and use of provisions (488) (618}
Interest and taxes (paid)/received {7 064} (5 982)
Dividends receved 41 142
Cash flow from operating activities 14 663 15430

AB InBev's cash tlow from operating activiies reached 14 663m US doilar in 2018 compared to 15 43Um US dollar in 2017 The year over
year change is mamly explained by tugher taxes paid in 2018 compared to 2017, including the payment of taxes related to prior penods

Cash flow from investing activities

Miilion US dollar 2018 2017
Net capex (4 649) {4 124)
Net of tax proceeds from SAB transaction-related divestitures (430) 8 248
Acquisition and sale of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired/disposed of 145 (556}
Proceeds from the sale/(acquisition} of investment in short-term debt secunties 1296 4 337
Other {327} (51
Cash flow from investing activities (3 965) 7 854

Cash flow used in investing activities was 3 865m US dollar in 2018 as compared to a cash inflow of 7 854m US dollar in 2017 The cash
flow from investing activities in 2017 mainly reflected the proceeds from the announced SAB-related divesttures completed during 2017,
net of taxes pard 1n 2017 on prior year divestitures, which were not repeated in 2018.

AB InBev's net capital expenditures amounied to 4 §49m US dollar in 2018 and 4 124m US dollar in 2017. Out of the total 2018 capital
expenditures approximately 48% was used to improve the company's production faciliies while 42% was used for Jogistics and commercial
investments and 10% was used for mproving administrative capabtiities and purchase of hardware and software

Cash flow from financing activities

Miliion US dollar 2018 2047
Dividends paid (7 761) (9 275)
Net {payments on)/proceeds from borrowings (4 707} {9981)
Other (including purchase of non-controlling interests) (1477 (1748)
Cash flow from financing activities (13 945) (21 004)

The cash outflow from financing activities amounted to 13 945m US dollar in 2018, as compared to a cash outflow of 21 004m US dollar
in 2017, Dunng 2017, the company repaid 8 bilhon US dollar outstanding under the Terrn Loan B This Term Loan was the last remaining
facility of the 75 billion US dollar senior faciliies raised in October 2015 to finance the combination with SAB

AB InBev's cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments in debt secunties less bank overdrafts as of 31 December 2018 amounted
to 7 047m US dollar As of 31 Cecember 2018, the company had total iquidity of 16 047m US doliar, which consisted of 9 billion US dollar
avallable under committed long-term credit faciles and 7 047m US dollar of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments in debt
secunties less bank overdrafts Although the company may borrow such amounts to meet its lquidity needs, the company pnincipally relies
on cash flows from operating activities to fund the company’s continuing operation

CAPITAL RESCURCES AND EQUITY

AB InBev's net debt decreased from 104.4 bilion US dollar as of 31 December 2017 to 102 5 bilhlon US doliar as of 31 December 2018.
Net debt 1s defined as non-current and current interest-beanng loans and borrowings and bank overdrafts minus debt secunties and cash
Net debt 1s a financial performance indicator that 1s used by AB InBev's management to highhight changes in the company's overall iquidity

position The company beleves that net debt (s meaningful for investors as it 1s one of the primary measures AB InBev's management
uses when evaluating its progress towards deleveraging

Apart from operating results net of capital expenditures, the net debt is mainly impacted by the acquisition by Ambev of additional shares
in Cerveceria Nacianal Dorminicana S A ("CND") following the partial exercise by £ Ledn Jmenes S A ("ELJ") of ts put option (0 9 billion
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US doltar), a payment to Molson Coors Brewing Company related to a purchase pnce adjustment on the disposal completed on 11 October
2016 of SAB’s interest in MillerCoors LLC and all trademarks, contracts and other assets pnmarily related to the "Miller Intemat:onal
Business” (0.3 bilion US dollar), dvidend payments to shareholders of AB InBev and Ambev (7.8 billion US dollar), the payment of interest
and taxes (7.1 bilion US doltar) and the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates (2.1 bilhon US doltar decrease of net debt)

Net debt to normalized EBITDA decreased from 4.8x for the t2-month penod ending 31 December 2017 to 4.6x for the 12-month penod
ending 31 December 2018 The 2017 net debt to EBITDA catculation excludes any EBITDA from CCBA, the former SAB Central and
Eastern European Business and the stake in Distell which were divested dunng 2017.

Consoiidated equity attributable to equity holders of AB InBev as at 31 December 2018 was 64 486m US dollar, compared to 72 585m
US dollar as at 31 December 2017, The combined effect of the weakening of mamly the closing rates of the South Afncan rand, the
Brazilian real, the Canadian dollar, the Australian dollar and the Euro resulted i a foreign exchange translation adjustment of 7 379m US
dollar {reduction of equity). Further details on equity movements can be found in the consoiidated staternent of changes in equity

Further details on mterest-beanng loans and borrowings, repayment schedules and liquidity nisk, are disciosed in Note 24 interesl-beanng
loans and borrowings and Note 29 Risks arising from financial instruments

As of 31 December 2018, the company's credit rating from Standard & Poor's was A- for long-term obligations and A-2 for short-term
obligations, with a negative outlook, and the company's credit rating from Moody's Investors Service was Baal for long-term obligations
and P-2 for short-term obligations, with a stable outlook

Research and development

Given its focus on innovation, AB inBev places a high value on research and development In 2018, AB InBev spent 285m US dollar in
research and development (2017 276m US dollar). The spent focused on product innovations, market research, as well as process
optimization and product devefopment

Research and development in product innovation covers liquid, packaging and draft innovation, Product innovation consists of
breakthrough innovation, incremental innovation and renovation The main goal for the innovahon process is to provide consumers with
better products and expenences This implies launching new liquid, new packaging and new draught products that deliver better
performance both for the consumer and i terms of top-line results, by increasing AB InBev's competitiveness in the relevant markets,
With consumers companng products and experences offered across very different dnink categenes and the offering of beverages
increasing, AB InBev's research and development efforts also require an understanding of the strengths and weaknesses of other
beverage categones, spotting opportunities for bear and developing consumer sclutions (products) that better address consumer need
and deliver better expenence. This requires understanding consumer emotions and expectations Sensory expernence, premiumization,
convenience, sustainability and design are all central to AB InBev's research and development efforts.

Research and development in process optimization 1s pnmarly aimed at qualty improvement, capacity increase (plant debottienecking
and addressing volume ssues, while minimizing capital expenditure) and improving efficiency. Newly developed processes, matenals
and/er equipment are documented in best practices and shared across business regrons. Current projects range from rmalting to botthing
of fimshed products

Knowledge management and leaming 1s alsc an integral part of research and development AB InBev seeks to continuously increase its
knowledge through collaborations with universsties and other industnes.

AB InBev's research and development team 1s bnefed annually on the company's and the business regions’ pnorties and approves
concepts which are subsequently priontized for development. The research & development teams invest i both short and long-term
strategic prejects for future growth, with the launch time depending on complexity and pnontization. Launch tme usually falls within the
next calendar year

The Global Innovation and Technology Center (“GITeGC"), located in Leuven, accommodates the Packaging, Product, Process
Development teams and faciiies such as Labs, Expenmental Brewery and the European Central Lab, which also includes Sensory
Analysis. In addition to GITeC, AB inBev also has Product, Packaging and Process development teams located in each of the AB InBev
geographic regions focusing on the short-term needs of such regions
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Risks and uncertainties

Under the explicit understanding that this s not an exhaustive list, AB InBev's major nsk factors and uncertamties are histed below There
may be additional nisks wiich AB InBev i1s unaware of There may also be nsks AB InBev now believes to be immatenal, but which could
turmn out to have a matenal adverse effect Moreover, if and to the extent that any of the nsks descnbed below matenalize, they may occur
In combination with other nisks which would compound the adverse effect of such nsks. The sequence i which the risk factors are
presented below 1s not indicative of their hkehhood of occurrence or of the potential magnitude of their financial consequence

Risks relating to AB InBev and the beer and beverage industry

AB inBev 15 exposed to the nsk of a global recession or a recession In one or more of 1ts key markets, and to credit and capital market
volatiity and an economic or financial crisis, which could result in lower revenue and reduced profit, as beer consumpbion in many of the
junsdictions In which AB InBev operates Is closely linked to general economic conditions and changes in disposable ncome A
continuation or worsening of the levets of market disruption and volatility seen in the recent past could have an adverse effect on AB
InBev's abiity 10 access capital, on its business, results of operations and financiai condibon, and on the market price of its shares and
Amencan Depositary Shares.

AB InBev's results of operations are affected by fluctuations in exchange rates. Any change in exchange rates between AB InBev's
operating companies’ functional currencies and the U S dollar will affect its consoldated income statement and balance sheet when the
results of those operating companies are translated into U.S dollar for reporting purposes as translational exposures are not hedged
Also, there can be no assurance that the policies in place to manage commodity price and transactional foreign currency nsks to protect
AB InBev's exposure will be able to successfully hedge against the effects of such foreign exchange exposure, especially over the long-
term Further, the use of financial instruments to mitigate currency nsk and any other efforts taken to better match the effective currencies
of AB inBev's liatilthes to its cash flows could result iIn ncreased costs

Changes n the avalabiity or price of raw matenals, commodities, energy and water, including as a result of unexpected increases In
tanffs on such raw matenals and commodities, like aluminum, could have an adverse effect on AB InBev's results of operations to the
extent that AB InBev falls to adequately manage the nisks inherent it such volatiity, including if AB InBev's hedging and denvative
arrangements do not effectively or completely hedge changes in commodity prices

AB InBev may not be able to obtain the necessary funding for s future capital or refinancing needs and may face financial risks due to
its level of debt and uncertain market conditions AB InBev may be required to raise addiional funds for AB InBev's future capital needs
or ta refinance its current indebledness through public or private financing, strategic relationships or other arrangements and there can
be no assurance that the funding, if needed, will be available on attractive terms, or at all. AB InBev has incurred substantial Indebtedness
by entenng into several semor credit faciities and accessing the bond markets from time to time based on its financial needs including
as a result of the acquisition of SAB The portion of AB InBev's consolidated balance sheet represented by debt will remain significantly
higher as compared to its histoncal position. AB InBev's increased level of debt could have significant consequences for AB InBev,
Including {1) increasing Its vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions, (i) imiting 1is flexability in planning for, or
reacting 1o, changes In its business and the industry in which AB InBev operates; (1) impainng its ability to obtain additional financing in
the future and imsting its ability to fund future working capstal and capital expendnures, to engage n future acquistions or development
activities or 1o otherwise realize the value of its assets and opportunities fully, (iv) requinng AB InBev to 1ssue additional equity (potentially
under unfavorable market condibions), and (v} placing AB InBev at a compettive disadvantage compared to its competitors that have less
debt. AB InBev's ability to repay and renegotate 1ts outstanding indebtedness will be dependent upon market conditions  Unfavorabie
conditions, including significant pnce volatility, dislocations and iquidity disruptions in the giobal credit markets in recent years, as well as
downward pressure on credit capacity for certain 1ssuers without regard to those issuers’ underlying financial strength, could increase
costs beyond what 1s currently anticipated. Such costs could have a matenal adverse impact on AB InBev's cash flows, results of
operations or both Further, AB InBev may restnct the amount of dividends it will pay as a result of AB InBev's level of debt and its strategy
to gve prionty to deteveraging Also, a credit rating downgrade could have & matenal adverse effect on AB InBev's ability to finance its
ongoing operations or to refinance its existing indebtedness. In addiion, a fallure of AB InBev to refinance all or a substantial amount of
its debt obligations when they become due, or more generally a fallure to raise additional equity capital or debt financing or to realize
proceeds from asset sales when needed, would have a matenal adverse effect on its financial condition and resuits of operations.

AB InBev's results could be negatively affected by increasing interest rates Although AB InBev enters into interest rate swap agreements
to manage its interest rate risk and also enters into cross-currency interest rate swap agreements to manage both its foreign currency nsk
and interest-rate nsk on interest-beanng firancial iabilities, there can be no assurance that such instruments will be successful In reducing
the nsks inherent in exposures to interest rate fluctuations

Certain of AB InBev's operations depend on independent distributors’ or wholesalers’ efforts to sell AB InBev's products and there can be
no assurance that such distnbutors will not give prionty to AB InBev's competitors Further, any mabiity of AB InBev to replace
unproductive or inefficient distributors or any Iimitations imposed on AB InBev to purchase or own any interest in distnbutors or wholesalers
as a result of contractual restnctions, regutatory changes, changes in legisiation or the interpretations of legislation by regulators or courts
could adversely impact AB InBev's business, resuits of operations and financial condiion.

The continued consolidation of setallers in markets in which AB InBev operates could result in reduced profitability for the beer industry as
a whole and indirectly adversely affect AB InBev's financial results

A portion of the company's giobal portfoho consists of associates in new or developing markets, including investments where the company
may have a lesser degree of controt over the business operations The company faces several challenges inherent to these various
culturally and geographically diverse business interests Although the company works with ts associates on the implementation of
appropnate processes and controls, the company also faces additional nsks and uncertainties with respect to these minorty investments
because the company may be dependent on systems, controls and personnel that are not under the company's control, such as the nsk
that the company's associates may violate applicable laws and reguiations, which could have an adverse effect on the company’s
busiress, reputation, results of operations and financial condition,

AB InBev relies on key third parties, including key supplers, for a range of raw rmatenals for its beer, alcoholic beverages and soft dnnks,
and for packaging material The termination of or a matenal change to arrangements with certain key supplers or the fallure of a key
suppiler to meet its contractual obhigations could have a matenal impact on AB InBev's production, distribution and sale of beer, alcoholic
beverages and soft drinks and have a matenal adverse effect on AB InBev's business, results of operations, cash flows or financial
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condition. Certain of AB InBev's subsidiaries may purchase nearly all of their key packaging matenals from sole suppliers under multi-
year contracts. The loss of or temporary discontinuity of supply from any of these suppliers without sufficient time to develop an atternative
source could cause AB InBev to spend increased amounts on such supphes in the future Jn additton, a number of key brand names are
both licensed to third-party brewers and used by companies over which AB InBev does not have centrol Although AB InBev monitors
brewing quality o ensure its high standards, to the extent that one of these key brand names or |oint ventures, companies in which
AB InBev does not own a controlling interest and/or AB InBev's licensees are subject to negative publicity, it could have a material adverse
effect on AB InBev’s business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.

The size of AB InBev, contractual imitations it 1s subject to and its position tn the markets in which it operates may decrease its abllity to
successfully carry out further acquisitions and business integrations AB InBev cannot enter into further transactions unless it can dentify
suitable candidates and agree on the terms with them. The size of AB InBev and its position in the markets in which d operates may make
it harder to identfy suitable canddates, including because It may be harder for AB InBev to obtain regulatory approval for future
transactions. If appropnate opportumities do become available, AB InBev may seek o acquire or invest in other businesses; however, any
future acquisition may pose regulatory, antitrust and other nisks.

The ability of AB InBev's subsidianes to distribute cash upstream may be subject to vanous condibons and imtations. The inability to
obtain sufficient cash flows from its domestic and foreign subsidianes and affibated comparies could adversely impact AB InBev's ability
to pay dividends and otherwise negatively impact its business, resuits of operations and financial condition

An inability to reduce costs could affect AB InBev's profitabilty and, in particular, AB InBav may not be able to fully realize the anticipated
benefits and synergies of the combination with SAB The integration process continues to volve costs and uncertawnties, including
increased exposure to certain ngks ansing from the challenge of continuing to develop collaborative refationships with SAB's former
partners n Eurasian and Afncan countries. Additionally, the Tax Matters Agreement AB InBev has entered into with Aftna Group Inc
impeses some hmits on the ability of the Combined Group to effect some reorgamzations, which may imit its capacity to integrate SAB's
operabons.

Failure to generate significant cost savings and margin improvement through iniatives for improving operational efficiencies could
adversely affect AB InBev's profitabiity and AB InBev's ability to achieve its financial goals. A number of AB InBev's subsidiaries are in
the process of executing a major cost sawng and efficiency program and AB InBev s pursuing a number of intiatives to improve
operational efficiency If AB InBev fails for any reason to successfully complete these measures and programs as planned or to denve the
expected benefits from these measures and programs, including if we fai to realize the full anticipated synergies of the com bination with
SAB, there 1s 2 nsk of increased costs associated with these efforts, delays in benefit realization, disruption to the business, reputational
damage or a reduced competitive advantage n the medium term

A substantial portion of AB inBev's operations are carned out in developing European, African, Asian and Latin Amenican markets AB
InBev's operations and equity Investments in these markets are subject to the customary nsks of operating in developing countnes, which
include, amaongst others, political instability or insurrection, external interference, financial risks, changes in government policy, poltical
and economic changes, changes in the relations between countries, actions of governmental authonties affecting trade and foresgn
investment, regulations on repatriabion of funds, interpretation and application of local laws and regulations, enferceability of intellectual
property and coniract rights, local labor conditions and regulations, lack of upkeep of pubhc infrastructure, potential pohitical and economic
uncertainty, applcation of exchange controls, nationalization or expropnation, empowerment legislation and policy, corrupt business
environments, cnme and lack of law enforcement as well as financial nsks, which include nsk of iiquidity, inflation, devaluation, price
velatiity, currency convertibiity and country default Moreover, the economies of developing countries are often affected by changes in
other developing market countnes, and, accordingly, adverse changes in developing markets elsewhere in the world could have a negative
impact on the markets in which AB InBev operates Such developing market nsks could adversely impact AB InBev's business, results of
operations and financial condition. Furthermore, the global reach of AB InBev's operations exposes It 1o nsks associated with doing
business globally, including changes n tanffs The Office of the United States Trade Representative has enacled tanffs on certain imports
inta the Unded Stales from China If significant tanffs or other restnctions are placed on imports from China or any retaliatory trade
measures are taken by China, A8 InBev's business and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected

Following the categonzation of Argentina i AB InBev's results for the third quarter of 2018 as a country with a three-year cumulative
rflation rate greater than 100%, the country 1s considered as a hyperinflationary economy in accordance with IFRS rules (IAS 29), resulting
n the restatement of certain results for hypennflation accounting. If the economic or political situation in Argentina further deterorates, the
Latn Amenca South operations may be subject to additienal restrictons under new Argentinean foreign exchange, export repatnation or
expropnation regimes that coutd adversely affect AB InBev's iquidity and operations, and ability to access funds from Argentina

AB inBev refies on the reputation of its brands and its success depends on its ability to mainta:n and enhance the image and reputation
of its existing products and to develop a favorable :mage and reputation for new products. An event, or series of events, that matenally
damages the reputation of one or more of AB InBev's brands could have an adverse effect on the value of that brand and subsequent
revenues from that brand or business. Further, ary restrictions on the permussible advertising style, media and messages used may
constrain AB InBev’s brand building potential and thus reduce the value of its brands and related revenues

Competition and changing consumer preferences in its various markets and increased purchasing power of players in AB InBev's
distnbution channels could cause AB InBev to reduce prices of its products, increase capital Investment, increase marketing and other
expenditures or prevent AB tnBev from increasing pnces to recover higher costs afd thereby cause AB InBev 10 reduce margins or lose
market share. Any of the foregoing could have a material adverse effect on AB InBev's business, financial condition and results of
operations. Also, innovation faces inherent risks, and the new products AB InBev introduces may not be successful, while competitors
may be able to respond mare quickly to the emerging trends, such as the mcreasing consumer preference for “craft beers” produced by
smailer microbrewenes

The partnership between Labatt, the Canadian subsichary of ABI's subsidiary Ambev, and Tilray to research non-alcohol beverages
containing tetrahydrocannabinol and cannabidiol, both derved from cannatus, could lead to increased legal, reputational and financial
nsks While this partnership 1s currently limited to research in Canada, the laws and regulations governing recreational cannabes are still
devaloping, including in ways that AB InBev may nat foresee For instance, the involvement in the iegal cannabis industry in Canada may
nvite new regulatory and enforcement scrutiny in other markets Cannabis remains illegal in many markets in which AB InBev operates,
and violations of Law could result m significant fines, penalties, adrmimstrative sanctions, conwvictions or settiernents arising from civil
proceedings or criminal charges Furthermore, the political environment and popular support for cannabis legalization has changed quickly
and remains n flux
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If any of AB InBev's products 1s defective or found to contain contaminants, AB InBev may be subject to product recalls or other labilities
Although AB InBev maintains insurance aganst certain product hatnhity (but not product recall) nsks, it may not be able to enforce its nghts
In respect of these policies and, in the event that contamination or a defect cccurs, any amaounts it recovers may not be sufficient to offset
any damage it may suffer, which could adversely impact s business, reputation, prospects, results of operations and financial condition

In recent years, there has been increased public and pohtical attention directed at the alcoholic beverage and food and soft drinks
industries, as a result of health care concemns related to the harmful use of alcohol (including drunk drving, drinking while pregnant and
excessive, abusive and underage dnnking) and to health concerns such as diabetes and obesity related to the overconsumpton of food
and soft drinks Negative publicity regarding AB InBev's products and brands, publication of studies indicating a significant nsk in using
AB InBev's products or changes in consumer perceptions  relation to AB InBev's products generally could adversely affect the sale and
consumption of AB InBev’s products and coutd harm its business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condition. Concerns over
aleohol abuse and underage drinking have also caused governments, Including those In Argentina, Brazi, Spain, Russia, the United
Kingdom, South Africa, Australia and the United States, to consider measures such as increased taxation, implementation of mtrimum
alcohol pricing regimes or other changes to the regulatory framework governing AB inBev's marketing and other commercial practices

Climate change or other enwironmental concerns, or legal, regulatory or market measures to address climate change or other
environmental concerns, could have a long-term, matenal adverse impact on AB InBev's business and results of operatons Further,
water scarcity or poor water qualty may affect AB InBev by increasing production costs and capacity constraints, which could adversely
affect AB InBev's business and results of operations Additionally, AB InBev's inability to meet its compliance obligations under EU
emissions trading regulations may also have an adverse impact on AB InBev's business and results of operations.

AB InBev's operations are subject to environmental regulations, which could expase 1t to significant compliance costs and lihigation relating
to environmental )ssues

AB InBev may not be able to protect its current and future brands and products and defend sts intellectual property nghts, including
trademarks, patents, domain names, trade secrets and know-how, which could have a matenal adverse effect on its business, results of
operations, cash flows or financial condition, and in particular, on AB InBev's ability to develop s business.

AB InBev could incur significant costs as a result of compliance with, and/or wiolatons of or labiliies under, vanous regulations that govern
AB InBev's operations or the operations of its licensed third parties, inciuding the Generai Data Protection Regulation adopted in the
Eurppean Union, which was fully implemented in May 2018 Also, public concern about beer, aicoholic beverages and soft drink
consumption and any resulting restnctions may cause the social acceptability of beer, alcohalic beverages and soft drinks 1o decline
significantly and consurmption trends to shift away from these products, which would have a maternal adverse effect on AB InBev's
business, financial condition and results of operations

AB InBev 1s now, and may in the future be, a party to legal proceedings and claims, including collective suits (class actions), and significant
damages may be asserted aganst it Given the nherent uncertainty of iigation, it 1s possible that AB inBev might incur liatiliies as a
consequence of the proceedings and clams brought against if, including thase that are not currently belizved by it to be reasonably
possible, which could have a matenal adverse effect on AB InBev's business, results of operations, cash flows or financial position,
Important contingencies are disclosed in Note 32 Contingencies of the 2018 consolidated financial statements

AB InBev entered into a consent decree with the U S Department of Justice in relation to the combination with SAB, pursuant to which
AB InBev's subsidiary, Anheuser-Busch Companies, LLC, agreed not to acquire control of a distnbutor f doing so would result in more
than 10% of its annual volume being distnbuted through distnbutorships controlied by AB InBev 1n the U § AB InBev's complance with
its obligations under the settlement agreement 1s monitored by the U S Department of Justice and the Monitoring Trustee appointed by
them. Were AB InBev to fail to fuifill its oblgations under the consent decree, whether intentionally or inadvertently, AB InBev could be
subject to monetary fines

AB InBev may be subject to adverse changes in taxation, which makes up a large proportion of the cost of beer charged to consumers in
many Jursdictions Increases in excise and other indirect taxes applicable to AB InBev's praducts tend to adversely affect AB InBev's
revenue or margins, both by reducing overall consumption and by encouraging consumers to switch to other categories of beverages
Minimumn pricing 1s another form of fiscal regulation that can affect AB InBev's profitability Furthermare, AB InBev may be subject to
increased taxation on its operations by national, local or foreign authorities, to higher corporate income tax rates or to new or modified
taxation regulations and requirements. For example, the work being carmed out by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development on base erosion and profit shifting and snitiatives at the European Union level (including the anti-tax-avoidance directive
adopted by the Council of the European Umon on 12 July 2016) as a response to increasing globalization of frade and business operations
could result in changes in tax treates, the introduction of new legislation, updates to existing legislation, or changes to regulatory
interpretations of existing legislation, any of which could iImpose additional taxes on businesses An Increase In excise taxes or other taxes
could adversely affect the financial results of AB InBev as well as its results of operations Furthermore, the LS. tax reform signed an 22
December 2017 (the “Tax Act”) brings majer tax legislation changes into law While the Tax Act reduces the statutory rate of U S federal
corporate iIncome tax to 21% and provides an exemphion for certain dividends from 10%-owned foreign subsidiaries, the Tax Act expands
the tax base by introducing further 'mitations on deductibility of interest, the imposition of a “base ercsion and anti-abuse tax” and the
imposition of minimum tax for “global intangible low-tax income”, among other changes, which could adversely impact the company’s
results of operations The overall impact of the Tax Act also depends on the future interpretations and regulations that may be 1ssued by
U § tax authorties, and it 1s possible that future guidance could adversely impact the financial results of the company

Antitrust and competition laws and changes in such laws or in the interpretation and enforcement thereof, as well as being subject to
regulatory scrutiny, could affect AB InBev's business or the businesses of its subsidianes For example, in connection with AB InBev's
previous acquisihons, vanous regulatory authornties have imposed (and may impose) conditions wath which AB InBev 1s required to comply
The terms and conditions of certain of such authonzations, appravals and/or clearances required, among other things, the divestiture of
the company's assets or businesses to third parties, changes to the company's operations, or other restrictions on the company's ability
to operate in certa:n junsdictions. Such actions could have a material adverse effect on AB inBev's business, results of aperations, financiat
condition and prospects In addition, such conditions could dirminish substantially the synerges and advantages which the company expect
to achieve from such future transactions

AB InBev operates its business and markets s products in emerging markets that, as a result of pelitical and economic instabiity, a lack
of well-developed legal systems and potentially corrupt business enviranments, present it with palitcal, economic and operational nsks
Although AB InBev 1s committed to conducting business in a legal and ethical manner in compliance with local and international statutory
requirements and standards applicable to its business, there 1s a rnisk that the employees or representatives of AB InBev's subsidianes,
affikates, asscociates, joint ventures/operations or other business interests may take achons that violale applicable laws and regulatons
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that generally prohibit the making of improper payments to foreign government officials for the purpose of obtaining or keeping business,
ncluding laws relating to the 1997 OECD Convention on Combating Bnbery of Foreign Public Officiais in International Business
Transactions such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the U K Bnbery Act.

Although AB InBev's operations in Cuba are quantitatively immaterial, s overall business reputation may suffer or i may face additonal
regulatory scrutiny as a result of Cuba being a target of U § economic and trade sanctions  If investors decide to iguidate or otherwise
divest their investments in companies that have operations of any magnitude in Cuba, the market in and value of AB InBav's securnties
could be adversely impacted In addition, U.S legslation known as the “Helms-Burton Act” authonzes private lawsuits for damages
against anyone who traffics in property confiscated without compensation by the Govemment of Cuba from persons who at the time were,
or have since become, nationals of the United States. Although this section of the Helms-Burton Act 1s currently suspended, clams accrue
notwithstanding the suspension and may be asserted If the suspension 1s discontinued. AB InBev has received notice of a ctaim purporting
to be made under the Helms-Burton Act. AB InBev 1s currently unable to express a wew as to the validity of such claim, or as to the
clamants’ standing to pursue it

AB InBev may not be able to recrutt or retain key personnel and successfully manage them, which could disrupt AB InBev's business and
have an unfavorable material effect on AB InBev's financial position, its mcome from operations and its competitive position,

Further, AB InBev may be exposed to labor strikes, disputes and work stoppages or slowdowns, within its operations or those of its
supphers, or an interruption or shortage of raw matenals for any other reason that could lead to a nagative impact on AB InBev's costs,
eamings, financial condition, production level and ability to operate its business. AB InBev's production may also be affected by work
stoppages or slowdowns that affect its suppliers, distributors and retail delivery/logistics providers as a result of disputes under existing
collective labor agreements with labor unions, in cennection with negotiations of new collective labor agreements, as a result of supplier
financial distress or for other reasons. A work stoppage or slowdown at AB InBev's facilities could interrupt the transport of raw materials
from its supphiers or the transpont of its products to its customers  Such disruptions could put a strain an AB InBev's relationships with
suppliers and clients and may have lasting effects on its business even after the disputes with its labor force have been resolved, including
as a result of negative pubhcity

AB InBev relies on information technology systemns to process, transmit, and store electronic information Although AB InBev takes various
actions to prevent cyber-attacks and to minimize potenttal technology disruptions, such disruptions could impact AB InBev’s business. For
example, f outside parties ganed access to AB inBev's confidential data or strategic infformation and appropnated such information or
made such information public, this could harm AB inBev's reputation or its competitive advantage, or could expose AB inBev or its
customers to a nsk of loss or misuse of information More generally, techrology disruptions can have a matenal adverse effect on
AB InBev's business, results of operations, cash flows or financial condition.

AB InBev's business and operating results could be negatively impacted by social, technical, natural, physical or other disasters

Although AB InBev maintains insurance policies to cover vansus nsks, it also uses self-insurance for most of its msurable nsks  Should
an uninsured 108s or a 108s (N excess of Insured limits occur, this could adversely impact AB InBev's business, results of operations and
financial condition

As a result of the combination with SAE, AB InBev recognized a significant amount of incremental goodwiil on its balance sheet i the
integration of the businesses meets with unexpected difficulties, or If the business of AB InBev does not develop as expected, impairment
charges may be incurred in the future that could be significant and that could therefore have a materal adverse effect on its results of
operations and financal condition.

If the business of AB InBev does not develop as expected, imparment charges on goodwill or other intangible assets may be incurred in
the future that coutd be significant and that could have an adverse effect on AB InBev's results of operations and financial condition

The audit report included in AB InBev's annual report 1s prepared by an auditor who 18 not inspected by the US Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board {(PCAOB). This lack of PCAOB inspections in Belgium prevents the PCAOB from regularly evaluating audits
and quality control procedures of any auditors operating in Belgium, including AB InBev's auditors. As a result, U S. and other investors
may be deprived of the benefits of PCAOB nspections.

AB InBev's ordinary shares currently trade on Euronext Brussels in guros, the Joharnesburg Stock Exchange n South Afncan rand, the
Mexican Stock Exchange in Mexican pesos and its ordinary shares represented by Amencan Depositary Shares (the “ADSs”) trade on
the New York Stock Exchange in U.S. dollars Fiuctuations in the exchange rates between the euro, the South African rand, the Mexican
peso and the U S. dollar may result in temporary differences between the value of AB InBev's ordinary shares trading in drfferent
currencies, and between its ordinary shares and its ADSs, which may resuit 1n heavy trading by investors seeking to exploit such
differences

Risks arising from financial instruments
Note 29 of the 20158 consolidated financial statements on Risks ansing from financial instruments contain detailed information on the
company's exposures to financial nsks and its nsk management poficies

Events after the balance sheet date

Please refer to Note 35 Eventis after the balance sheet date of the consolidated financial statements

Corporate governance

For nformation with respect to Corporate Governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance section, which forms an integral part of
AB InBev's annual report
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Adjusted segment information

AB InBev has updated its 2018 segment reporting for purposes of result announcement and intemal review by senior management from
1 January 2018 This presentation (referred to as the "2018 Reference Base") includes, for comparative purposes in 2019 and to facilitate
the understanding of AB InBev's underlying performance, (1} the new company organizaticnal structure that will be effective 1 January
2019 () the impact of hypennflation aceounting for the Argentnean operations as If the company had applied hypennflation accounting
as of 1 January 2018 and () restated results considenng the new IFRS rules on lease accounting as if the company had apphed the new
standard as of 1 January 2018 as detaillec below.

* The new organizational structure that will be effective as of 1 January 2019 1s composed of five regions North America, Middle
Amencas, South Amenca, EMEA and Asia Pacific. The company's revised geographic regions and its Global Export and Holding
Companies will compnse the company's six segrments for all financial reporting purposes. The key changes in the company's structure
are as follows (1) the new Middle Amencas region will combine the current Latin Amenca West region and the business unnt Cantral
America and Caribbean, that was previously reported in Latin America North region, and (i) the new South Amenca region wil combine
the current Latin America South region and Brazit, that was previously reported in Latin America North region These organizational
changes are effective as of 1 January 2018 and consequently will be reflected in the company’s financial statements as of that date.
The 2018 Reference Base presents the quarterly and full year 2018 results of the company as if the orgamizational changes had taken
prace on 1 January 2018

* |n May 2018, the Argentinean peso underwent a severe devaluation resulting in the three-year cumulative nflation of Argentina to
exceed 100% in 2018, thereby triggenng the requirement fo transition to hypennflaton accounting However, since the company first
applied hypennflation accounting as of the thurd quarter 2018, IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hypennflabonary Econormies was not
applied for the company's results published pnor to that reporting period. Therefore, the 2018 Reference Base reflects the quarterly
and full year 2018 results of the company as f hypeninflation accounting had been applied as of 1 January 2018 Each quarter was
restated to reflect the changes in general purchasing power of the local currency applicable to the penod (using official iIndices) before
converting the indexed resuits at the closing rate apphcable at the end of each quarter (instead of the average rate). See Note 4 Use
of estimales and judgments for more details

» Effective 1 January 2019, IFRS 16 Leases will replace the current lease accounting requirements and introduces significant changes
1o lessee accounting It requires a lessee to recognize a “nght-of-use” asset and a lease liatity [FRS 16 also requires 1o recognize
a depreciation charge related to the "nght-of-use” assets and an interest expense on the lease liabilites, as compared {o the
recognition of rental cost on a straight-ine basis over the lease term under the pnor standard The 2018 Reference Base presents the
quartefly and full year 2018 results of the company as If the standard had been apphed as of 1 January 2018 See Note 3 (DD)
Recently issued IFRS for more detalls

1Q 2098 2Q1 2018 3Q 2018 4Q 2018 FY 2018

Reference Reference Reference Reference Reference

AB INBEV WORLDWIDE base base base base base
Volumes 134 821 143 685 146 187 142 363 567 066
Revenue 13 090 13 764 13514 14 250 54 619
Cost of sales {5 004) (5 092) (5 042) {5 182) (20 320)
Gross profit 8 086 B672 8472 9 068 34 289
SG&A (4 318) (4 455) (4 254} {4 181) (17 209)
Other operating Income/{expenses) 188 211 220 197 814
Normalized EBIT 3955 4428 4 438 5084 17 904
Normalized EBITDA 5120 5582 5 606 6284 22 592
Normalized EBITDA margin 39 1% 40.6% 41 5% 44 1% 41 4%
1Q 2018 2Q 2018 3Q 2018 4Q 2618 FY 2018

Reference Reference Reference Reference Reference

NORTH AMERICA base hase ELT) base base
Volumes 24 814 29813 29 985 26 114 110 726
Revenue 34860 4181 4162 3700 15 504
Cost of sales {1 .298) (1534) {1539) (1 394) (5 765)
Gross profit 2161 2647 2623 2307 9738
5G&A (1049) 1179) (1 161) (1023) (4413)
Other operating income/(expenses) 1 1 11 28 40
Normatized EBIT 1112 1469 1473 1311 5 365
Normalized EBITDA 1322 1673 1683 1522 6199
Normalized £BITDA margin 38 2% 40 0% 40 4% 41 1% 40 0%



MIDDLE AMERICAS

Volumes

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

SG&A

COther aperating ncome/{expenses)
Normalized EBIT

Normalized EBITDA

Normalized EBITDA margin

SQUTH AMERICA

Volumes

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

SG&A

Other operating income/(expenses)
Normalized EBIT

Normalized EBITDA

Normalized EBITDA margin

Volumes

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

SG&A

Other operating income/(expenses)
Normahzed EBIT

Normalized EBITDA

Normalized EBITDA margin

ASIA PACIFIC

Volumes

Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

SGAA

Other operating income/(expenses)
Normalized EBIT

Normalized EBITDA

Normalized EBITDA margin
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1Q 2018
Reference
base

30738
2705
(811)
1894
(798}

1102
1294
47 8%

1Q 2018
Reference
base

34088
2861
{1 082)
1778
(868)
82

992
1257
44 0%

1Q 2018
Reference

base

20 545
1919
834)
1085
(722)

ag
412
660
34.4%

1Q 2018
Reference
base

24 296
2040
(870
1170
(622}

41
589
772

37 8%

2Q 2018
Reference
base

32212
2892
(851)
2041
(827)
2
1235
1448
50.1%

2Q 2
Reference
base

30 383
2101
7en)
1304
(720)

74
657
884

42 1%

2Q 2018
Reference
base

21 340
2176
(887)
12689
(751)

68
606
847

38.9%

2Qx 2018
Reference
base

29 804
2327
{958)
1369
741)

43
670
870

37 4%

3Q 2018
Reference
base

31813
2876
(837)
2038
(7786)

1308
1514
52 6%

3 2018
Reference
base

31207
1964
(767)
1197
{624)

a7
620
879
44.7%

JQ 2018
Reference
base

21 803
2005
(867)
1228
{699)

76
605
833

39.8%

3Q 2018
Reference
base

31 290
2 310
(844)
1366
(750)

43
659
861

37.3%

4Q 2018
Reference
bhase

34 039
3141
(836)
2305
(775)

1546
1777
56 6%

4Q 2018
Reference
base

39 851
3313
{1 196)
2117
(764)
65
1418
1675
50.6%

4Q 2018
Reference
base

23 484
2183
(887)
1207
(708)

40
629
846

38.7%

4Q 2018
Reference
base

18 875
1793
(760)
1034
(656)

36
414
628

350%

FY 2018
Reference
base

128 803
11614
(3 336)

8278
(3 176)
88
5189
6033
51.9%

FY 2018
Reference
base

135 618
10 238
(3 842)

6 396
(2 976)
287
jese
4 696
45 8%

FY 2018
Reference
base

87 176
8374
(3 475)
4 898
(2 879)
232

2 251
3187
38.1%

FY 2018
Reference
bhase

104 266
8470
(3 531)
4939
(2 789)
163
2333
3131
37.0%




AB InBev annual report 2018

1Q 2018 2Q 2018 3Q 2018 4Q 2018 FY 2018
GLOBAL EXPORT AND HOLDING Reference Reference Reference Reference Reference
COMPANIES base base base base base
Volumes 346 132 - - 478
Revenue 106 87 107 118 419
Cast of sales (107} (65} (88} {110) (370}
Gross profit n 22 19 9 45
SG8A (260) (236) (244) (255) (9986)
Other operating Income/(expenses) 8 5 - 11 25
Normalized EBIT (253) (209) (225) (235) (922)
Normatized EBITDA (184) (141) (164) (185) (653)



Statement of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of AB InBev SA/NV certifies, on behalf and for the account of the company, that, to their knowledge, (2) the financial
statements which have been preparad in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards give a true and fair view of the
assets, labifibes, financial posibon and profit or loss of the company and the entities included in the consolidation as a whole and (b} the
management report includes a farr review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the company and the
entibes mcluded in the conschidation as a whole, together with a description of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties they face.
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Deloitte.

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders’ meeting of Anheuser-Busch InBev NV/SA on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018
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Key audit matter

How our audic addressed the key audic matzer & reference ta
the Company's discdosres
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We communicate ‘with the aude commetee regarding, amongst other
martars the plarned scope and tming of the audit and nignificant
audn findings Including any significant defioencees n nternal contod
that we dentify dunng our audit

We also pravide the audit committes with 4 statement that we have

comphed with relevant ethical requirermnents regarding independance.

and we communicate with them about 3 relanonships and other
matters that may reasonabty be thought to bear our ndependence,
and whare appicable, related safeguards

From the matters communicated to the audit cormantiee, we
determine thase matters that were of most significance In the audt
of the car ed finanal st s of the current penad and
are therefore the key audt magters Wa descnbe thess maters in
our auditor's report uniess law or regulation precludes any pubihc
disclosure aboud the matter

Report an other legsl and regulatory requiremants
Responsibdities of the board of directors

Tre board of directors 1s raspansible for the preparation and
tha content of the dwectars’ report on the consobdsted financial
statements ano other matters disgosed n this report

Responsibilities of the independent auditor

As part of our mandate and i accordance with the Beigan irevized ir
2018) audrting standard whuch 1s compiermentary 1o the ISA applhcable

n Betgrum. our responsaiity 15 to venfy, n all matenal respects, the
director's raport on the consolidated financial statements and other
matters chechosed m the annual report on the consakdated financal
statements, as well as to report on these magers

Aspects regardmg the directers’ report on the consoldated
financial statements

in aur oprion, after performing the specfic procedures on the
directors repart on the consolidated finangia) statemants, the

directors repart on the consohdated finarcial stataments s consstent
with the conschdated financal stacemans for the yeas and ¢ has beer

estabkshed n accerdance with the requirements of articie 119 of the
Comparies Code

Deioire BedrifurevisorenRevseurs dJEMreprises
COGPAT Nt VENNOCISCNAD MMt Deperkie aansprakel khaidSocskte coopey
Offvice Gitawey

Ir the contest of our audi of the consehdated firanoal statements we
are responsibie for considenng, n parucular based or informaban that
we became aware of dunng the audit. f the dwectns’ report on the
consoidated financial statements IS free of matenal mestatemants
arther by iInformation that  incorectly stated or otherwise Mislkeadng.
in tha comext of the procegures performed, we are nat aware of such
a rmawenat misstatement.

St ts regarding independence

Qur audi firm and our network have noc performed ary prohibited

servicas and cur auct fm has remained ndependent from the

Company g¢uring the performance of our mandate

- The fees for the nom-awdt seruces comparhle wieh the audit of the
consoldated financat statements as defined in arcle 134 of the
Companies Coda have bean property dsciosed and coageregated in
the dscipsures to the cangobdated financial statements.

Other statemaents
« This report is consistent with our additoral report 10 the audt
committee referrad to 1 articde 11 of Reguiation (EUI Ne 53742014

Zawertem, 27 February 2019

;«’n‘ue Bedrijfsrevisoren/Réviseurs TEntreprises
CYBA/SCRL
Represented by |oal Sretymen

athvit & responsabide metbe

buib:l Luthrhpwen Brugsel Natonasi t | B-1930 Zventem
VAT BE 0429 053 BE3 - msmmmaruum AN BE 17 2300 G465 6171 - BIC GEBABEBB

Aharmpar of Cialrpma Tr oma Trnmare: § enitad
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AB InBev annual report 2018

Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December

Million US dollar, except earnings per shares in US dollar

Revenue 54 619 56 444
Cost of sales (20359} (21 386)
Gross profit 34 259 35058
Distnbution expenses (5 770) (5 878)
Sales and marketing expenses {7 883} (8 382)
Administrative expenses (3 485) {3 841)
Other aperating Income/{expenses) 7 680 854
Profit from operations before non-recurring items 17821 17 814
Restructuring 8 (385) (468)
Acquisition costs business combinations 8 (r4) (159)
Business and asset disposal [} (26) (39)
Provision for EU investigation 8 (230) -
Profit from operations 17 106 17 152
Finance cost 11 (7 186) (6 192)
Finance income 11 440 378
Non-recurnng net finance income/{cost) 11 (1982) (693)
Net finance income/{cost) (8 729) (6 507)
Share of result of associates and joint ventures 16 153 430
Profit before tax 8 530 11 076
Income tax expense 12 {2 839} (1520}
Profit from continuing operations 5 691 9155
Profit from discontinued operations - 28
Profit of the period 5 691 9183
Profit from continuing operations attnbutable to

Equity holders of AB InBev 4 368 7 968

Non-controlling interest 1323 1187
Profit of the penod attnibutable to

Equity holders of AB InBev 4 368 7 996

Non-controlling interest 1323 1187
Basic earnings per share 23 221 4 06
Diluted earnings per share 23 217 398
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations 23 2.21 404
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations 23 217 396
Basic earnings per share before non-recurning items and discontinued operations’ 23 .44 404
Diluted earnings per share before non-recurring items and discontinued aperations’ 23 3.38 396
Underlying EPS' 23 4.38 419

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

! Basic earnings per share and diluted earmings per share befere non-recurnng items and discontinued operaticns, as well as Underlying EPS, are not defined
metnes in IFRS Refer to Note 23 Changes in equity and sarmings per shara for more details
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December
Miltion US doliar

Profit of the period

Cther comprehensive income: items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Re-measurements of post-employment benefils

Other comprehensive income: items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Effective portion of changes in farr value of net investment hedges

Cash flow hedges recognized n equity

Cash flow hedges reclassified from equity to profit or loss

Other comprehengive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Attnbutable to

Equity holders of AB InBev
Non-controting interest

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated statement of financial position

31 December

As at
Million US dollar

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investmenls in assouiales and jomt ventures
Investment secunties
Deferred tax assets

Employee benefits

Income tax recelvables
Derivatives

Trade and other receivables
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Investrment secunties
Invenlunes

Income tax recervables
Derwvatives

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets classified as held for sale
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Issued capital

Share premium

Reserves

Retaned earmings

Equity attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Nan-controling interests
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings
Employee benefils

Deferred tax liabities

Income tax payabtes

Denvatives

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

Current tiabilities

Bank overdrafts

Interast-bearing loans and borrowings
Income tax payables

Derwvatives

Trade and other payables

Provisions

Total current liabiiities

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Notes

i3
14
15
i6
17
18
25

29
20

17
19

29
20
21
22

23

33

24
25
18

29
28
27

21
24

29
28
27

2018

25910
133311
44 831
6136
168
1457
16

992

291
769
213822

87
4234
457
16
6375
7074
39

18 284

232103

1736
17 620
19 056
26 074
64 486

7418
71904

1085 584
2681
13 165
576
766
1816
1152
125 740

114
4216
1220
5574

22568

766

34 459

232 103

31 December

2017

27184
140 940
45 874
5263
100
1218
22

708

25

834
222 166

1304
4118
808
458

6 568
10472
133

23 960

246 126

1736
17 620
24 835
28 394
72 585

7635
80 220

108 949
2993
13107
732
937
1462
1515
129 6§95

17
7433
1558
1457

24 762

885

36 211

246 126
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Issued Treasury
Mitlion US dellar Capital shares Reserves
As per T January 2017 1736 17 620 (8 980} 45726 1437
Profit of the period - - - N -

Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of

foreign operations (gains/(losses))

Cash flow hedges - - - . -

Re-measurements of post- . - . - -
Total comprehensive income - - - h :
Dividends . - - - .
Treasury shares - - - - .
Share-based payments - - - - 316
Purchase/(sale) of non-controlling . - . - -
Scope and other changes - - - - -
As per 31 December 2017 1736 17 620 {8 980) 45726 1753

Attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Share-
based
issued Share Treasury payment
Million US dollar Capital premium shares Reserves reserves
As per 1 January 2018 1736 17 620 (8 680) 45728 1753
Impact of adopting IFRSs 9 and 15' - - - - -
As per 1 January 2018, as adjusted 1736 17 620 {8 930) 45720 1783
Profit of the period - - - - -
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translation . . . - -
of foreign operations {gains/(losses))
Cash fiow hedges - - - - -
Re-measurements of post- - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - - -
Dividends - - - - -
Treasury shares’ - - 2431 - -
Share-basad payments - - - - 284
Purchasef(sale) of non-controlling - - - - -
Hyperinfiation monetary adjustments - - - - -
Scope and other changes - - - - -
As per 31 December 2018 1736 17 620 (G 549) 45728 2037

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

! See Note 3 (E) Summary of changes tn accounting policies
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Attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Other
comprehensive Deferred

income share Retained Nan-controlling
reserves’ instrument earnings interest

(15 626) 1212 28 214 71339 10 086 81 425

- - 7996 7 996 1187 9183

1 053 - - 1053 121 1174

(158) - - (158) 61 (96)

(53) - - {53) 16 (37)

842 - 7 996 8 838 1385 10 223

- 93) (7 821) (7 914) (1316) (9 230)

. - - 316 18 333

- - - - (2401) (2 401)

- - 5 5 {137} (132)

(14 784) 1119 28 394 72 585 7 635 80 220

Attributable to equity holders of AB InBev

Other
comprehensive Deferred
income share Retained Non-controtling
reserves’ instrument earnings interest
(14 784) 1119 28 394 72 585 7635 80 220
- - (4) @) (42} (46)
(14 784) 1119 28390 72 581 7 593 80 174
- - 4 368 4368 1323 5691
{T 379) - - {7379) (431) (7 810)
(92) - - (92) 40 (52)
98 - - 98 1 89
{7 373) - 4 368 (3 G05) 932 {2073)
- (56} (6 258) (6 314) {1 123) (7 437)
- (1 063) (1 368) - - -
- - - 284 & 290
- - 429 429 (429) -
- - 560 560 345 905
- - (48) (48) 94 48
(22 157) - 26074 64 486 7418 71 904

' See Note 23 Changes in eguity and earnings per share



Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December
Million US dollar Notes 2018 2017

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit of the period 5691 9183
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 10 4 260 4276
Impairment losses on recewvables, inventones and other assets 115 130
Additions/{reversals) in provisions and employee benefits 505 178
Net finance cost/{income) 11 8729 6 507
Loss/{gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (82) (117)
Loss/(gain} on sale of subsidianes, associates and assets held for sale (20) (47)
Equity-settled share-based payment expense 26 337 351
Income tax expense 12 2839 1820
Other non-cash items included in profit (660) (284)
Share of result of associates and joint ventures (153} (430)
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital and use of 21 561 21 667
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other recevables (38) 67
Decrease/(increase) in inventories (603) (213)
Increasef/(decrease) in trade and other payables 1153 365
Pension contnbutions and use of provisions (488) (616)
Cash generated from operations 21585 21270
Interest paid (4 445) (4 652)
Interest receved 428 811
Dividends receved 141 142
Income tax pad {3047) (21471)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 14 663 15430

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and of intangible assets 13115 {5 086) (4 741)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and eguipment and of intangible assets 437 617
Proceeds from SAB transaction-related divestitures 22 (330) 118697
Taxes on SAB transaction-related divestitures (100) (3 449)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 6 (112) {598)
Sale of subsidianes, net of cash disposed of 6 257 42
Net proceeds from sale/{acquisition) of nvestment in short-term debt secunties 17 1296 4337
Net proceeds from sale/(acquisition) of other assets (172) {264)
Net repayments/(payments) of loans granted (156) 213
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {3 965) 7 854

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of non-controling interest 23 (923) (206)
Proceeds from borrowings 24 17 782 13352
Payments on borrowings 24 (22 489) {23 333)
Cash net finance (cost)/income other than interests (554) (1 542)
Dividends paid {7 761) [9275)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (13 945) {21 004)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {3 247) 2280
Cash and cash equivalents less bank overdrafts at beginning of year 10 358 8 395
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations (148) (319)
Cash and cash equivalents less bank overdrafts at end of period 21 6 960 10 356

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Corporate information

Statement of compliance

Summary of significant accounting policies

Use of estimates and judgments

Segment reporting

Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries

Other operating income/{expenses)

Non-recurring items

Payroll and related benefits

Additional information cn operating expenses by nature
Finance cost and income

Income taxes

Property, plant and equipment

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Investments in associates

Investment securities

Deferred tax assets and labilibes

Inventones

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with
assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Changes in equity and earnings per share
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings

Employee benefits

Share-based payments

Provisions

Trade and other payables

Risks arising from financial instruments

Operating leases

Collateral and contractual commitments for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment, loans to customers and other
Centingencies

Nen-controlling interests

Related parties

Events after the balance sheet date

AB InBev companies

Note
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1. Corporate information

Anheuser-Busch InBev 1s a publicly fraded company (Euronext: ABI) based in Leuven, Belgium, with secondary listings on the Mexico
(MEXBOL ANB) and South Afnica (JSE: ANH) stock exchanges and with American Depositary Receipts on the New York Stock Exchange
(NYSE- BUD) Qur Dream Is to bring people together for a better world. Beer, the onginal social network, has been bnnging people together
for thousands of years We are commitied to buillding great brands that stand the test of ime and to brewing the best beers using the finest
naturai ingredients Our diverse portfolio of well over 500 beer brands includes global brands Budweiser®, Corona® and Stella Artois®,
multi-country brands Beck's®, Castle®, Castle Lite®, Hoegaarden® and Leffe®; and local champions such as Aguila®, Antarctica®, Bud
Light®, Brahma®, Cass®, Cristal®, Harbin®, Jupiier®, Michelob Ultra®, Modelo Especial®, Quilmes®, Victoria®, Sednn® and Skol® Our
brewing hentage dates back mors than 600 years, spanmng continents and generations From our European roots at the Den Hoorn brewery
in Leuven, Belgum. To the pioneering spint of the Anheuser & Co brewery in S5t Lows, US. To the creation of the Castle Brewery in South
Afnica dunng the Johannesburg goid rush To Bohemia, the first brewery in Brazil. Geographically diversified with a balanced exposure to
developed and developing markets, we leverage the collective strengths of approximately 175 000 employees based in nearly 50 countries
worldwide For 2018, AB InBev's reported revenue was 54.6 billion US dollar (excluding joint ventures and associates).

The consolidated financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2018 compnse the cormpany and its subsidianes
(together refetred to as “AB InBev” or the “company”) and the company’s interest in associates, joint ventures and operations

The consohdated financial statements were authonzed for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2019.

2. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statemants are prepared in accordance with Intemationat Financial Reporting Standards as 1ssued by the
Intemational Accounting Standards Board {IASE") and in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the European Union up to 31 December 2018
(collectively "FRS™, AB InBev did not early apply any new IFRS requirements that were not yet effective in 2018 and did not apply any
European carve-outs from IFRS

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all penods presented in these consohdated financial statements by
the company and s subsidianes.

(A) BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MEASUREMENT

Depending on the applicable IFRS requirements, the measurement basis used in preparng the financial statements 1s cost, net reahzable
value, fair value or recoverable amount. Whenever IFRS provides an option between cost and another measurement basis (e.g systematic
re-measurement), the cost approach i1s applied

(B} FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

Unless otherwise specified, all financial information included in these financial statements has been stated in US dollar and has been
rounded to the nearest milion As from 2008, following the combination with Anheuser-Bush, the company changed the presentation
currency of the cansolidated financial statements from the euro to the US dollar to provide greater ahgnment of the presentation currency
with AB InBev's most significant operating currency and underiying financsal performance The funchional currency of the parant company
15 the euro

(C) USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements 1n conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and labibties, income and expenses, The estmates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and vanous other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and latubties that are not readily apparent from
other sources Actual results may differ from these eshmates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Rewisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate 1s revised f the rewision affects only that period or in the penod of the revision and future penods if the revision
affects both cumrent and future penods.

(D) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidianes are those entities controlled by AB InBev. AB InBev controls an entity when 1t 1s exposed to, or has nghis to, vanable returns
from 1its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity In assessing control, petential
voting rights are taken into account Control 15 presumed to exist where AB InBev owns, directly or indirectly, more than one haif of the
voting nghts (which does not always equate to economic ownership), unless it can be demonstrated that such ownership does not constitute
control. The financial statements of subsidiaries are mcluded in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences
until the date that control ceases. Total comprehensive income of subsidianes 1s atinbuted to the owners of the company and to the non-
controling intarests even if this resuits in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance

Associates are undertakings in which AB InBev has significant influence over the financial and operating pohicies, but which it does not
control. This 15 generally evidenced by ownership of between 20% and 50% of the voting nghts. A joint venture 1s an arrangement in which
AB InBav has jomt control, whereby AB InBev has nghts to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than nghts to its assets and obligations
for its liabilibes. Associates and joint ventures are accounted for by the equity method of accounting, from the date that significant influence
or joint control commences unti the date that significant influence or joint control ceases. When AB InBev's share of losses exceeds the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture, the carrying amount 1s reduced to nil and recognition of further losses s discontinued
except to the extent that AB InBev has incurred legal or constructive obligations on behalf of the assoctate or joint venture
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Joint operations anse when AB InBev has rights to the assets and obhgations to the labilities of a jant arrangement. AB InBev accounts for
its share of the assets, habilities, revenues and expenses as from the moment joint operation cormmences until the date that joint operation
ceases

The financial statements of the company’s subsidianes, joint ventures, Joint operations and associates are prepared for the same reporting
year as the parent company. using consistent accounting policies In exceptional cases when the financial statements of a subsidiary, joint
venture, joint operation or associate are prepared as of a different date from that of AB InBev, adjustments are made for the effects of
significant transactions or events that occur between that date and the date of AB InBev's financial statements. In such cases, the difference
between the end of the reporting pencd of these subsidianes, joint ventures, joint operations or associates from AB InBev's reporting period
1s no more than three months Results from the company's associates Anadolu Efes and Castel are reported on a three-month lag Therefore,
estimates are made to reflect AB InBev's share in the result of these associates for the last quarter Such estimates are revisited when
required

Transactions with non-cantrolling interests are treated as transactons with equity cwiners of the company For purchases from non-
controlling interests, the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary 1s recorded In equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-contralling interests are also recorded in equity where there 15 no
loss of contral

All intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains and losses on transactons between group companies have been eliminated.
Unrealized gains ansing from transachons with joint ventures, joint operations and associates are eliminated to the extent of AB InBev's
interest in the entity Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there 1s no evidence
of imparment.

A listing of the company's most important subsidianes, joint ventures, joint operations and associates 1s set out in Note 36 AB inBev
compames.

(E) SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

IFRS with effective application for annual periods beginning on 1% January 2018:
IFRS @ Financial instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers became effective on 1 January 2018 and were applied
by the company for the first time as of that date

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 repiaces |AS 39 and contamns three main topics: classification and measurement of financial instruments, iImpaiment of financial
assels and hedge accounting The new hedge accounting model represents a significart overnaul of hedge accounting that aligns the
accounting treatrnent with nsk management activittes IFRS 9 also removes the volatility in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the
credit nsk of habiibes elected to be measured at fair value

The company has applied IFRS 9 Financial instruments as of the effective date, without restatement of the comparate information for the
perod beginning 1 January 2017 Consequently, the disclosures for the comparative penods follow the classification and measurement
requirements under IAS 39 The company performed an impact assessment and concluded that IFRS 9 Financial Instruments does not
impact materially its financial position, financial performance or nsk management activities

Under IFRS 9 the carrying amount of a debt should be adjusted when a modification does not result in the derecognition of the financial
instrument Consequently, the company adjusted the carrying amount of its debt against Retaned earnings This resulted in a decrease of
the carrying amount of the debt by 77m US dollar

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core pnnciple of the new standard 1s to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that
reflect the consideration (that 1s, payment) to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services The new
standard also results 1n enhanced disclosures about revenue, provides guidance for transactions that were not previously addressed
cormprehensively (for example, senice revenue and contract medifications) and improves gusdance for multiple-element arrangements

The company has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers as of the effective date in accordance with the modified
retrospective application. Under this approach, the cumulative effect of inially applying IFRS 15 must be recognized as an adjustment to
the opening balance of equity at the date of inhal application and comparative periods are not restated. On the implementation date, the
adjustment to the opening batance of equity resulted in a decrease of the retained earnings by 123m US dollar, o reflect the changes in
accounting policies related to performance that, In accordance with IFRS 15, should be related to the transaction price underlying 2017
revenue

A number of other new standards, amendment to standards and new nterpretations became mandatory for the first time for the financial
year begmning on 1 January 2018 and have not been Iisted in these consolidated financial statements as they either do not apply or are
immatenal to AB InBev's consolidated financiai statements

(F} FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the fransactions Monetary assets and habihities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the balance sheet date rate Gains and losses resulting from the setilement of foreign
currency transactions and from the transiation of monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
ingome statement Non-monetary assets and liabivties denominated n foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rate
prevaling al the date of the transaction Non-monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated to US dollar at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the far value was determined

Translation of the results and financial position of foreign operaticns
Assets and habilities of foreign operations are translated to US dollar at foreign exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date Income
statements of foreign operations, excluding foreign entities in hypernnflationary economies, are translated to US dollar at exchange rates for
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the year approximating the foreign exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The components of shareholders’ equity are
translated at histoncal rates. Exchange differences ansing from the transtation of shareholders’ equity to US dolfar at penod-end exchange
rates are taken to other comprehensive income (translation reserves).

Financial Reporting in hyperinflationary economies

In May 2018, the Argentinean peso underwent a severe devaluatton resulting in the three-year cumulative inflabon of Argentina to exceed
100%, thereby triggenng the reguirement to transition to hypennflation accounting as prescribed by IAS 29 Fmnancial Reporing n
Hypennflationary Econormies. 1AS 29 requires to report the results of the company's operations in Argentina as iIf these were highly
inflationary as of 1 January 2018.

Under IAS 29, the non-monetary assets and labilites stated at historical cost, the equity and the income staterment of subsidianes operating
in hypennflationary economies are restated for changes in the general purchasing power of the local currency applying a general pnce
mndex These re-measured accounis are used for conversion into US dollar at the period closing exchange rate. As a result, the balance
sheet and net results of subsidianes operating in hypennflation economies are stated i terms of the measuring untt current at the end of
the reporting penod

Exchange rates
The most important exchange rates that have been used in prepanng the financial statements are.

Closing rate Average rate
1 US dollar equais: 31 December 2018 31 December 2017 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Argentingan peso 37.807879 18.774210 - 16 580667
Australian dollar 1.416593 1 279580 1.334300 1308997
Brazilan real 3.874806 3 308005 3.634827 3201667
Canadian dollar 1.362882 1253982 1.293896 1303248
Colombian peso 3246.70 2988.60 2 967.36 2 965.94
Chinese yuan 6.877787 6 507500 6.581607 § 785290
Euro 0.873362 0833819 0.845697 0.886817
Mexican peso 19.682728 19.735828 19.195084 18.811612
Pound sterling 0.781249 0.738790 0.750773 0.773029
Peruvian nuevo sol 3.369998 3 244558 3.284477 3.267432
South Korean won 1115.40 t 067 63 1085.46 1134.04
South Afncan rand 14.374909 12 345193 13.105486 13 338803
Turkish lira 5.201532 3 790679 4.560685 3615028

(G) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Research and development
Expenditure on research activihies, undertaken with the prospect of gaming new scientfic or technical knowledge and understanding, Is
recognized in the iIncome statement as an expense as incurred

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially
improved products and processes, 1s capialized f the product or process 18 techmically and cormmercially feasible, future economic benefits
are probable and the company has sufficient resources to complete development The expenditure capitalized includes the cost of matenals,
direct labor and an appropnate proportion of overheads. Other development expenditure 1s recognized in the income statement as an
expense as incurred Capitahized development expenditure Is stated at cost less accumulated amortization (see below) and impairrment
losses (refer to accounting policy O)

Amortization related to research and development intangible assets is included within the cost of saies If production related and in sales
and marketing if related to commercial activities

Borrowing costs directly attnbutable to the acquisiien, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of
such assets

Supply and distribution rights

A supply nght 15 the nght for AB InBev to supply a customer and the commitment by the customer to purchase frorn AB InBev. A distribution
right 1s the night 1o sell specified products in a certain terrtory Acquired distnbution nghts are measured imtially at cost or farr value when
obtained through a business combination Amortization related to supply and distributon nghts 18 included within sales and marketing
expenses.

Brands

If part of the consideration paid in a business combination relates to trademarks, trade names, formulas, recipes of technological expertise
these intangible assets are considered as a group of complementary assets that 15 referred to as a brand for which one farr value Is
determined. Expenditure on internally generated brands 1 expensed as incurred

Software

Purchased software is measured at cost less accumulated amortization. Expenditure on internally developed software 1$ capitalized when
the expenditure gualifies as development activities, otherwise, it 1s recognized i the income statement when incurred. Amortization related
to software 1s included in cost of sales, distnbubon expenses, sales and marketing expenses or administrative expenses based on the
actwvity the software supports.
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Other intangible assets

Other sntangible assets, acquired by the company, are recognized at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses Other
intangible assets also include mutti-year sponsorship nghts acquired by the company These are inthally recogmzed at the present value of
the future payments and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and impaiment losses.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets 1s capitalized only when 1t ncreases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates All other expenditures are expensed as incurred.

Amortization

Intangible assets with a finite Iife are amortized using the straight-line method over therr estimated useful ives Licenses, brewing, supply
and distribution nghts are amortized over the penod in which the nghts exist Brands are considered 1o have an indefinite Iife untess plans
exist to discontinue the brand Discontinuance of a brand can be ether through sale ar terrination of marketing support When AB InBev
purehases distnbution nghts for its own products the life of these rights I1s considered indefinite, unless the company has a plan to discontinue
the related brand or distribution. Software and capitalized development costs related to technology are amortized over 3 to 5 years

Brands are deemed intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and, therefore, are not amortized but tested for impaimment on an annual
basss (refer to accounting policy O)

Gains and losses on sale

Net gains on sale of intangible assets are presented in the income statement as other operating income Net losses on sale are included
as other operating expenses Net gains and losses are recognized In the income statement when the significant nisks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration 1s probable, the associated costs can be estimated reliably,
and there 1s no continuing managerial invoivement with the intangible assets

(H) BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The company applies the acquisition method of accounting to account for acquisitions of businesses The cost of an acquisition 1s measured
as the aggregate of the farr values at the date of exchange of the assets given, labilities incurred and equity instruments 1ssued Identifiable
assets, habilities and contingent habilites acquired or assumed are measured separately at their farr value as of the acquisition date. The
excess of the cost of the acquisition over the company's interest in the farr value of the identfiable net assets acquired 15 recorded as
goodwill

The allocaton of farr values to the identifiable assets acquwed and habiies assumed 1s based on vanous assumplions requiring
management judgment

Acquisition-related cests are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination 18 achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of AB InBev's previously hald interest in the acquiree
1s re-rmeasured to farr value at the acgquisitton date, any gains or losses ansing from such re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss

() GOODWILL

Goodwll 1s determined as the excess of the consideration pad over AB InBev's interest n the net far value of the dentfiable assets,
labilties and contingent abilities of the acquired subsidiary, jontly controlled entity or associate recognized at the date of acquisition. All
business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method

In conformity with IFRS 3 Business Combinations, goodwill is stated at cost and not amortized but tested for impairment on an annual basis
and whenever there 1s an indicator that the cash generating unit to which gocdwill has been allocated, may be impaired (refer to accounting
policy O). Goodwit is expressed in the currency of the subsidiary or [Qintly controlled entity to which it relates and 1s translated to US dollar
using the year-end exchange rate In respect of associates and joint ventures, the carrying amount of goodwill 1s inciuded in the carrying
amount of the investment in the associate.

If AB InBev's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, labiites and contingent habilites recognized exceeds the cost of the
business combination such excess 18 recogmzed immediately In the income statement as required by IFRS 3 Busminess Combinations
Expenditure on internally generated goodwll 1s expensed as incurred.

{J) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment 1s measured at cost less accumulaied depreciation and impaiment losses (refer to accounting policy O)
Cost includes the purchase price and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management (e.g nonrefundable tax and transport cost) The cost of a self-constructed
asset s determined using the same principles as for an acquired asset  The depreciation methods, residual value, as well as the useful
lives are reassessed and adjusted if appropnate, annually

Borrow:ng costs directly attnbutable to the acquisition, construction ar preduction of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of
such assets,

Subsequent expenditure

The company recognizes in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of such an item when
that cost 1s incurred i i is probable that the future economic benefits embodied with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the
lem can be measured reliably  All other costs are expensed as incurred

Depreciation

The depreciable amount 15 the cost of an asset less its residual value Residual values, if not insignificant, are reassessed annuaily
Depreciation 1s calculated from the date the asset is avallable for use, using the straight-line method over the estimated useful ives of the
assets
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The estimated useful lives are defined in terms of the asset's expected utility to the company and can vary from one geographical area to
another. On average the estimated useful ives are as follows.

Industrial buidings — other real estate properties 20 - 50 years
Production plant and equipment:

Production equipment 10 - 15 years

Storage, packaging and handling equipment S -7 years
Retumable packaging:

Kegs 2 -10 years

Crates 2 - 10 years

Bottles 2-5vyears
Point of sale furniture and equipment 5 years
Vehicles 5 years
Information processing equipment 3 -5 years

Where parts of an tlem of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property,
plant and equipment.

Land 1s not depreciated as i 1s deemed to have an indefinute Iife.

Gains and losses on sale

Net gamns on sale of items of property, plant and equipment are presented in the income statement as other operating income. Net losses
on sale are presented as other operating expenses Net gains and losses are recognized in the tncome statement when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration s probable, the associated costs can be
estimated reliably, and there I1s no continuing managenal involvement with the property, plant and equipment.

(K) ACCOUNTING FOR LEASES

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are recognized as assets and liabilities (interest-beanng loans and borrowngs) at amounts equal o the
lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the mimimum lease payments at inception of the lease Depreciation
and imparment teshing for depreciable leased assets i1s the same as for depreciable assets that are owned (rafer to accounting policies J
and Q).

Lease payments are apportioned between the outstanding hability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the hability.

Leases of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are substantially retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases Payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

When an operating lease Is terminated before the lease penod has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penaity
15 recognized as an expense In the penod in which termination takes place

{L) INVENTORIES

Inventones are valued at the lower of cost and net realzable value Cast includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inveniories and
bnnging them to their existing location and condition The weighted average method 1s used in assigning the cost of inventones.

The cost of fimshed products and work in progress comprises raw matenals, cther production matenals, direct labor, other drect cost and
an allocation of fixed and vanable overhead based on normal operating capacity. Net realizable value is the estmated selling pnce n the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated completion and selling costs

Inventories are written down on a case-by-case basis if the anticipated net realizable value declines below the carrying amount of the
inventones. The calculation of the net realizable value takes into consideration specific charactenstics of each mventory category, such as
expiration date, remaining shelf life, slow-moving indicators, amongst others.

(M) TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade recevables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business and generally
due for setttement within 30 days. Trade recervables are recognized imbally at the amount of the consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing componants, when they are recognized at far value. The company holds trade and other recewables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method.

Trade and other receivables are carried at amortized cost less imparrment losses To detenmine the appropriate amount to be impaired
factors such as significant financial difficuities of the debtor, probabiity that the debtor will default, enter into bankruptcy or financial
reorganization, or delinquency in payments are considered.

Other recevables are initially recogmized at far value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any imparment losses and foreign
exchange results are directly recogmzed in profit or loss.

{N) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash eguivalents include ali cash balances and short-term tighly iquid investments with a matunity of three months or less from
the date of acquisition that are readily convertible into cash They are stated at face value, which approximates therr fair value In the cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts
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{0) IMPAIRMENT

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, goodwill and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there 1s any indication of impairment. If there 1s an indicatar of impairment, the asset's recoverable amount 1s estimated In addibon,
goodwill, Intangible assets that are not yet available for use and intangibles with an indefinite useful iife are lested for imparrment annually
at the cash-generating unit level (that is 2 country or group of countries managed as a group below a reporting region). An iImpairment loss
15 recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or the related cash-generating unit exceeds #ts recoverable amount Imparment
losses are recognized In the income statement.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverabie amount of non-financial assets 1s determined as the higher of their fair value jess costs to sell and value in use. For an
asset that does not generate largely ndependent cash inflows, the recoverable amount 1s determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. The recoverable amount of the cash generating units to which the goodwill and the intangibte assets with indefinite useful
Iife belong 15 based on discounted future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset These calculations are corroborated by valuation multipies, guoted share prices for publicly traded
subsidianes or cther available farr value indicators

Impairment losses recogrized n respect of cash-generating units firstly reduce allocated goodwill and then the camying amounts of the
ather assets in the urit on a pro rata basis

Reversal of impairment losses

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting
date An impairment Joss 15 reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or amorization, iIf no impairment loss had been recognized

(P) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

A number of AB InBev's accounting policies and notes require fair value measurement for both financial and non-financial items

Fair value is the price that would be recewved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a iability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date When measuring farr value, AB InBev uses observable market data as far as possible Fair values are categonzed
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows

® | evel 1: inputs are unadjusted quoted pnces in active markets for dentical assets or liabilities
® |evel 2 inpuls are cbservable either directly (1 @ as pnces) or indirectly (1 e denved from prices)
* |evel 3: far value measurements incorparates significant inputs that are based on unobservable market data.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability fall into different levels of the fair value hwerarchy, then the farr value
measyrement is categonzed in its entirety in the same level of the fair value herarchy as the lowest level input that 1s significant to the entire
measurement

The company apples fair value measurement to the instruments hsted below

Derivatives

The fair value of exchange traded denvatives (e g. exchange traded foreign currency futures) s determined by reference to the official pnces
published by the respective exchanges (e g the New York Board of Trade}. The fair value of over-the-counter derivatives 1s determined by
commonly used valuation techniques

Debt securities

This category includes both debt securities designated at FYOCI and FVYPL The farr value 1s measured using observable inputs such as
interest rates and foreign exchange rates When it pertains 10 instruments that are publicly traded, the fair value \s determined by reference
to observable quotes In circumsiances where debt securities are not publicly traded, the main valuation technique 1s the discounted cash
flow. The company may apply other vaiuation techniques or combination of valuation techniques If the fair value results are more relevant

Equity securities designated as at FVQCI
Investments in equity secunties compnse quoted and unquoted securities When liquid quoted prices are availlable, these are used to farr
value investments in quoted secunties. The unquoted secunties are fair valued using primarity the discounted cash flow method.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

The farr value of non-denvative financial labilites 1s generally determined using unobservable inputs and therefore fall into level 3 In these
circumstances, the valuation technique used 1s discounted cash flow, whereby the projected cash flows are ciscounted using a nsk adjusted
rate

({Q) SHARE CAPITAL

Repurchase of share capital
When AB InBev buys back s own shares, the amount of the consideration pad, including directly attnbutable costs, 1s recognized as a
deduction from equity under treasury shares

Dividends

Dividends paid are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on the date that the dividends are declared unless minimum statutory
dividends are required by local legislation or the bylaws of the company's subsidianes In such instances, statutory minimum dividends are
recognized as a llability



Share issuance costs
Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of new shares or options are shown tn equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(R) PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognized when (1) the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, (1) it 1s probable
that an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be reguired to settla the obligahon, and {in) a relable estimate of the amount
of the obligation can be made. Provisions are determined by discourting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the ime value of money and, where appropnate, the nsks specific to the hability.

Restructuring

A provision for restructunng 1s recognized when the company has approved a detailed and formal restructunng plan, and the restructuning
has either commenced or has been announced publicly. Costs relating to the ongoing activiies of the company are not provided for The
provision includes the benefit commitments In connection with early retirement and redundancy schemes.

Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts 1s recognized when the expected benefits to be denved by the company from a contract are lower than
the unavaidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. Such provision 1s measured at the present value of the lower of the
expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract.

Disputes and Litigations

A provision for disputes and liigation 1s recogrized when it 1s more likely than not that the company will be required to make future payments
as a result of past events, such items may include but are not imited to, several claims, suits and achions relating to antitrust laws, violations
of distnbutron and license agreements, environmental matters, employment related disputes, clams from tax authonties, and alcohol
industry lingation matters.

(8) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits include pensions, post-employment Iife insurance and post-employment medical benefits. The company operales
a number of defined benefit and defined contnbution plans throughout the world, the assets of which are generally held in separate trustee-
managed funds The pension plans are generally funded by payments from employees and the company. and, for defined benefit plans
taking account of the recommendations of independent actuanes AB InBev maintains funded and unfunded pensian plans

a) Defined contribution plans

Contnbutions to dafined contribution plans are recognized as an expense In the income statement when incurred. A defined contnbution
plan 1s a pension plan under which AB InBev pays fixed contrbutions into a fund. AB InBev has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contnibutions If the fund does not held sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior perods.

b) Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan 15 a pension plan that 1s not a defined contribution plan Typically, defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retrement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and
compensation For defined benefit plans, the pension expenses are assessed separately for each plan using the projected unit credit
method The projected unit credit method considers each penod of service as giving rise to an addihonal unit of benefit enttiement. Under
this method, the cost of prowiding pensions 1s charged to the income statement so as to spread the regular cost over the service lives of
employees in accordance with the advice of quakfied actuanes who carry out a full valuahon of the plans at least every three years, The
amounts charged to the income statement include current service cost, net interest cost {Income), past service costs and the effect of any
curtaiments or settlements Past service costs are recognized at the earlier of when the amendment / curtatlment occurs or when the
company recognizes related restructunng or tarmination costs The pension obligations recognized in the balance sheet are measured at
the present vaiue of the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates based on high quality corporate bond yields, which have terms
to maturty approximating the terms of the related latulity, less the faw value of any plan assets. Re-measurements, comprising of actuanat
gains and losses, the effect of the asset celling {excluding net interest) and the retum on: plan assets (excluding net interest) are recogmized
in full in the penod in which they occur in the statement of comprehensive Income Re-measurerments are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods

Where the calcuiated amount of a defined benefit liabiity 1s negative (an asset), AB InBev recognizes such pension asset to the extent that
economic benefits are avallable to AB InBev either from refunds or reductions in future contributions

Other post-employmaent obligations

Some AB InBev companies provide post-employment medical benefits to their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits 1s usually based
on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the pencd of employment,
using an accounting methodology similar to that for defined benefit pension plans

Termination benefits

Temination benefits are recognized as an expense at the earher when the company 1s demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility
of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terrminate employment before the normal retirement date and when the company recogmzes costs
for a restructuring. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognized If the company has made an offer encouraging voluntary
redundancy and when the company can no longer withdraw the offer of termination, which 1s the earlher of either when the employee accepts
the offer or when a legal, reguiatory or contractual reguirement or restnichon on the company’s ability to withdraw the offer takes effect
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Bonuses

Bonuses received by company employees and management are based on pre-defined company and individual target achievement The
estimated ameunt of the bonus 1S recognized as an expense in the period the bonus s earned. To the extent that bonuses are settled in
shares of the company, they are accounted for as share-based payments

{T) SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Different share and share option programs allow company senior management and members of the board o acquire shares of the company
and some of its affilates. The farr value of the share ophions 15 estimated at grant date, using an option pneing model that 1s most appropnate
for the respective option. Based on the expected number of options that will vest, the far value of the options granted 1s expensed over the
vesting period When the options are exercised, equity 1S increased by the amount of the proceeds received.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees are measured at the fair value of the goods or services
received, except where that far value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the far vaiue of the equity
nstruments granted, measured at the date the company obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service

{U) INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Interest-beanng loans and borrowings are recognized inially at fair value, less atinbutable transaction costs Subsequent to imibial
recogmition, interest-beanng loans and borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between the initial amount and the
maturity amount being recogrized 1n the iIncome statement (in accretion expense) over the expected Ife of the instrument on an effective
interest rate basis.

(V) TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method

(W) INCOME TAX

Income tax on the profit for the year compnses current and deferred tax. income tax 1s recognized in the income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recogrized directly (n equity, In which case the tax effect i1s also recognized directly in equity

Current 1ax 1s the expected tax payable on the taxable ncome for the year, using tax rates enacted, or substantively enacled, at the batance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previcus years.

In accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes deferred taxes are provided using the so-called balance sheet lability method This means that,
for all taxable and geductible aifferences between the tax bases of assets and habilities and their carrying amounts in the balance sheet a
deferred tax Iiabity or asset 1s recognized Under this method a provision for deferred taxes 1s also made for differences between the fair
values of assets and habilities acquired In a business combination and their tax base 1AS 12 prescribes that no deferred taxes are recognized
{1) on mitial recogrition of goodwall, {1} at the initial recognition of assets or habilities in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit and (n) on differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably
not reverse In the foreseeable future and 1o the extent that the company 1s able fo control the htming of the reversal. The amount of deferred
tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settiement of the carying amount of assets and labilites, using currently or
substantively enacted tax rates

Defemmed tax assets and labilities are offset If there s a legally enforceable right to offset current tax habilities and assets, and they relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different taxable entibes which intend either to setile current
tax habilities and assels on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously

The company recognizes deferred tax assets, including assets ansing from losses carried forward, to the extent that future prebable taxable
profit will be available against which the deferred tax asset can be uthized A deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized

Tax ctaims are recorded within prowisions on the balance sheet (refer to accounting policy R)
(X} INCOME RECOGNITION

Goods sold

Revenue 15 measured based an the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties The company recognizes revenue when performance obhgations are satisfied, meaning when
the company transfers control of a product to a customer

Specificatly, revenue recognition follows the followsng five-step approach:

s lIdentification of the contracts with a customer

® |dentification of the performance obligations in the contracts

¢ Determination of the transaction pnce

* Aliocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts

® Revenue recognition when performance obligations are satisfied
Revenue from the sale of goods 15 measured at the amount that reflects the best estmate of the consideration expected to receive in
exchange for those goods Contracts can include significant vanable elements, such as discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price
concessions, incentives, performance bonuses and penaltes Such trade incentives are treated as vanable consideration If the
coensideration includes a variable amount, the company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitied in exchange for

transferring the promised goods or services 1o the customer Vanable consideration s only included in the transaction price if it 1s highly
probabie that the amount of revenue recognized would not be subject to significant future reversals when the uncertainty 1s resoived.
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Royalty income

The company recognizes the sales-based or usage-based royalties in other operating income when the later of the following events occurs
(a) the customer's subsequent sales or usage, and (b) the performance obligation to which some or all of the sales-based or usage-based
royalty has been allocated has been satisfied (or partally sabsfied).

Rental income
Rental income 1s recognized in other operating income on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease.

Government grants

A government grant i1s recognized in the balance sheet \nibally as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that it will be recewed
and that the company will comply with the conditions attached to it Grants that compensate the company for expenses incurred are
recognized as other operating income on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred Grants that compensate
the company for the acquisition of an asset are presented by deducting them from the acquisition cost of the related asset

Finance income

Finance income comphses interest receved or recevable on funds invested, dividend income, foreign exchange gains, losses on currency
hedging Instruments offsetting currency gans, gains on hedging instruments that are not part of a hedge accounting relationship, gains on
financial assets measured at FVPL as well as any gans from hedge ineffectiveness (refer to accounting policy Z).

Interest Income I1s recognized as it accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the asset) unless collectability 1s in doubt

Dividend income
DPividend income I1s recogrized in the income statement on the date that the dividend 1s declared

(Y) EXPENSES

Finance costs

Finance costs comprse interest payable on borrowings, calculated using the effective interest rate method, foreign exchange losses, gains
on currency hedging instruments offsetting currency losses, results on interaest rate hedging instruments, losses on hedging instruments
that are not part of a hedge accounting relahonship, losses on financial assets classified as trading, impaiment losses on financial assets
as well as any losses from hedge neffectiveness (refer to accounting pohcy Z)

All interest costs incurred In connection with borrowings or financial transactions are expensed as incurred as part of finance costs Any
difference between the initial amount and the matunty amount of interest-beanng leans and borrowings, such as transaction costs and far
value adjustments, are recognized In the income statement (in accretion expense) over the expected life of the instrument on an effective
Iinterest rate basis (refer to accounting policy V) The interest expense component of finance lease payments 1s also recognized In the
income statement using the effective interest rate method.

Research and development, advertising and promotional costs and systems development costs

Research, advertising and promotional costs are expensed In the year in which these costs are incurred Development costs and systems
development costs are expensed in the year in which these costs are incurred if they do not meet the cntena for capitatization (refer to
accounting policy G).

Purchasing, receiving and warehousing costs

Purchasing and receving cosls are included m the cost of sales, as well as the cosls of storing and mowving raw materials and packaging
matenals The costs of storing finished products at the brewery as well as costs incurred for subsequent storage in distnbution centers are
included within distrbution expenses.

(Z) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

AB InBev uses dervative financial instruments to mitigate the transactional impact of foreign currencies, nterest rates, equity prices and
commodity prices on the company's performance AB InBev's financial nsk management policy prohibits the use of denvative financial
mstruments for trading purposes and the company does therefore not hold or issue any such instrurnents for such purposes

Classification and measurement

Except for certan trade receivables, the company mibaily measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at far value through profit or loss, transaction costs directly attnbutable to the acquisiion or issue of the financial asset Debt financial
nstruments are subsequently measured at amorhized cost, FVOCI or FVPL. The classification 1s based on two critena- the objective of the
company's business model for managing the assets, and whether the instruments’ contractual cash flows represent ‘solely payments of
principal and interest’ on the principal amount outstanding {the “SPPI critenon’).

The classification and measurement of the company's financial assets is as follows,

® Debi instruments al amartized cost. compnse nvestments in debt securities where the contractual cash flows are solely payments of
pnnaipal and interest and the company's business model Is o collect contractual cash flows Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and any impairment charges for such instruments are recognized 1n profit or loss.

s Debt mstruments at FYOCI with gains or fosses recycled to profit or 0ss on derecognition comprse Investments in debt secuniies
where the contractual cash flows are solely payments of pnncipal and interest and the company's business model 15 achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and any impairment
charges on such instruments are recognized in profit or lass. All other fair value gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive
income. On disposal of these debt secuntes, any related balance within FVQCI reserve 1s reclassified to profit or loss.

e Equity mstruments designated at FVOC!, with no recyciing of gains or losses to profif or loss on derecognition these instruments are
undertakings In which the company does nct have significant influence or control and is generally ewidenced by ownership of less than
20% of the voting nghts The company designates these investments on an instrument by instrument basts as equity securities at FVOCI
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because they represent investments hald for long term strategic purposes Investments in ungquoled companies are subsequently
measured at cost, when appropriate These imvestments are non-monetary tems and gans or losses presented in the other
comprehensive income inciude any related foreign exchange component Dividends received are recognized in the profit or loss. These
investments are not subject to impairment testing and upon disposal, the cumulative gan or loss accumulated in other comprehensive
income are not reclassified to profit or loss.

* Financial assets and liabilties at FVPL comprise dervative instruments and equity instruments which were not designated as FVOCI
This category aiso includes debt instruments which do not meet the cash flow or the business model tests

Hedge accounting
The company designates certain denvatives as hedging instruments to hedge the vanability in cash flows associated with highly probable
forecast transactions arising from changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and commodity prices To hedge changes in the far
value of recognized assets, liabiliies and firm commiments, the company designates certain derivatives as part of farr value hedge The
company also designates certain denvauves and non-derivative financial habilities as hedges of foreign exchange nisk on a net investment
in a foreign operation.

At the inception of the hedging relationships, the company documents the nsk management objective and strategy for undertaking the
hedge Hedge effectiveness s measured at the mception of the hedge relationship and through penodic prospective effectiveness
assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between hedged item and hedging instrument

For the different type of hedges n place, the company generally enters into hedge relationships where the cntical terms of the hedging
instrument match exactly the terms of the hedged item Therefore, the hedge ratio s typically 1:1 The company performs a qualitative
assessment of effectiveness In circumstances where the terms of the hedged item ne longer exactly match the critical terms of the hedging
instrument, the company uses a hypothetical denvative method to assess effectiveness. Possible sources of ineffectiveness are changes
in the tming of the forecasted transaction, changes in the quantity of the hedged item or changes in the credit nsk of either parties to the
dernvative contract,

Cash flow hedge accounting
Cash flow hedge accounting Is applhed when a derivative hedges the vanability in cash flows of a highly probable forecasted transaction,
foreign currency risk of a firm cormmitment or a recogmzed asset or llability {Such as vanable interest rate instrument)

When the hedged forecasted transaction or firn commitment subseqguently results in the recognition of a non-financial item, the amount
accumulated in the hedging reserves is included directly in the inihial carrying amount of the non-financial item when it 1s recognized

For all other hedged transactions, the amount accumulated in the hedging reserves 1s reclassified to profit or loss in the same penod during
which the hedged item affects profit or loss (e g when the vanable interest expense 1s recogmzed)

When a hedging instrument or hedge reiationship I1s terminated but the hedged transaction s stll expected to occur, the cumulative gain or
loss {at that point) remans n equity and 1s reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged transaction occurs If the hedged transaction is na
longer expected 10 occur, the cumulative gain or loss recognized 1n other comprehensive iIncome 1s reclassified to profit or loss immediately

Any ineffectiveness I1s recognized immediately in profit or loss

Fair value hedge accounting

When a dervative hedges the vanabiiity in fair value of a recognized asset or hability (such as a fixed rate instrument) or a firm commitment,
any resulting gain or loss on the hedging instrument 15 recognized in the profit or Joss. The carrying amount of the hedged item s also
adjusted for fair value changes in respect of the nsk being hedged, with any gain or loss being recognized (n profit or loss The far vatue
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item 1s amortized to profit or loss from the date of discontinuation

Net investment hedge accounting
When a non-dervative foreign currency lability hedges a net investment in a foreign operation, exchange differences ansing on the
translation of the liability to the functional currency are recognized directly in other comprehensive income (translation reserves)

When a denvalive financial instrument hedges a net investment in a foreign operation, the portion of the gain or the loss an the hedging
instrument that 1s determined to be effective 1s recognized directly in other comprehensive incore (translation reserves) and Is reclassified
to profit or loss upon disposal of the foreign operation, while the ineffective portion 1s reported in profit or loss

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial habilihes are offset and the net amount presented n the statement of financial position when, and only when,
the company has a currently legally enforceable night to set off the amounts and 1t intends either to settle them on a net basis or to reaiize
the asset and settle the iability simuitaneously

(AA) SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are components of the company's business activities about which separate financial information 13 avallabie that is
evaluated regularly by senior management The company has nine operating segrments

AB InBev's operating segment reporting format 1s geographical because the company's nisks and rates of return are affected predominantly
by the fact that AB InBev operates in different geographical areas. The company's management structure and internal reporting system to
the Board of Directors 1s set up accordingly The company's six geographic regions are North Amenca, Latin America West, Latin Amerca
North, Latin Amenca South, EMEA and Asia Pacific

The aggregation criteria applied are based on similarties 1n the economic indicators (e g margins) that have been assessed in determining
that the aggregated operating segments share similar economic characteristics, as prescnbed in IFRS 8 Furthermore, management
assessed additional factors such as management’s views on the optimai number of reporting segments, the histonical AB InBev geographies,
peer companson (e g Asia Pacific and EMEA being a commonly reported regions amongst the company’s peers), as well as management’s
wview on the optimal balance between practical and more granuiar information
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The results of Glebal Export and Holding Companies, which includes the company's global headquarters and the export businesses in
countries I which AB inBev has no operations are reported separately The company's six geographic regions plus the Giobal Export and
Halding Companies compnse the company’s seven reportable segments for financial reporting purposes.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred dunng the penod to acquire property, plant and equipment, and ntangible assets
other than goodwill.

(8B) NON-RECURRING ITEMS

Non-recurmng tems are those that i1 management's judgment need to be disclosed separately by wirtue of their size or incidence Such
Hemns are disclosed on the face of the consolidated income statement or separately disclosed in the notes to the financial statements
Transactions which may give rise ta non-recurring items are principally restructunng activities, impairments, gains or losses on disposal of
investments and the effect of the accelerated repayment of certain debt faciities.

{CC) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

A discontinued operation is a component of the company that ether has been disposed of or 15 classified as held for sale and represents a
separate major Iine of business or geographical area of operations and 1s part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of or I1s a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale

AB InBev classifies a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered pnncipally through a sale
transaction rather than through continumg use If all of the conditions of IFRS 5 are met A disposal group 1s defined as a group of assets to
be disposed of, by sale or otherwise, together as a group In a single transaction, and labilities directly associated with those assets that will
be transferred mmediately before classification as held for sale, the company measures the carrying amount of the asset {(or all the assets
and labilities in the disposal group) in accordance with apphcable IFRS. Then, on initiai classification as held for sale, non-current assets
and disposal groups are recogmized at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell Impairment losses on initkal classification
as held for sale are included in profit or loss The same applies to gains and losses on subsequent re-measurement. Non-current assets
classified as held for sale are no longer depreciated or amortized

(DD) RECENTLY ISSUED IFRS

To the extent that new IFRS requirements are expected to be applicable n the future, they have been listed hereafter For the year ended
31 December 2018, they have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements.

The following standards, amendments and interpretations have been issued recently, but are not yet effective

IFRS 16 Leases (effective from annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) replaces the current lease accounting requirements
and introduces significant changes 1o lessee accounting as it removes the distinction between operating and finance leases under IAS 17
Leases and related interpretations, and requires a lessee to recognize a nght-of-use asset and a lease labiity at lease commencement
date. IFRS 16 also requires to recognize a depreciation charge related to the right-of-use assets and an interest expense on the lease
habilities, as compared to the recognition of operating lease expense or rental cost on a straight-line basis over the lease term under prior
requirements In addition, the company will amend the consolidated cash flow statement presentation, to segregate the payment of leases
into a pnncipal portion presented within financing activities and an interest component presented within operating activiies.

For short-term leases and leases of low value assets, the company will continue to recognize a lease expense on & straght-ine basis as
permitted by IFRS 16 The company as a lessor will continue to classify leases as ether finance leases or operating leases and account for
those two types of leases differently

The company has chosen the full retrospective application of IFRS 16 and, consequently, will restate the comparatve nformation tn the
2019 financial statements. In addition, the company will apply the practical expedient available on transition to IFRS 16 to not reassess
whether a contract 1s or contains a lease Accordingly, the definition of a lease under IAS 17 and related interpretations will continue to apply
to the leases entered or modified before 1 January 2019.

The company has assessed the impact that the intial application of IFRS 16 will have on its consolidated financial statements for leases
previously classified as operating leases. On transition to IFRS 16, the company wili recognize 1 §92m US dollar of nght-of-use assets and
1 782m US dollar of lease labilihes, recognizing the difference in retaned earnings When measunng lease labilities, the company
discounted lease payments using mcremental borrowing rates. The weighted average rate applied I1s §%.

Upon transition to IFRS 16, lease labilties are measured at the present value of future iease payments (equal to the operating lease
commitments as presented in Note 30 Operating feases) discounted using the incremental borrowing rates at the date of inthal application
The company dd not make any matenal changes to these lease liabilities

Other Standards, interpretations and Amendments to Standards

A number of other amendments to standards are effective for annual pencds beginning after 1 January 2018, and have not been hsted
above because of ether their non-applicability to or their mmatenality to AB InBev's consolidated financial statements

4. Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estmates and assumptions that
affect the application of pohces and reported amounts of assets and liabiities, Income and expenses, The estmates and assocsated
assumptions are based on historical experience and vanous other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basts of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and Wiabiliies that are not readily apparent from
other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the
penod In which the estimate Is revised If the revision affects only that penod or in the period of the rewision and future penods if the revision
affects both current and future penods
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Although each of its significant accounting policies reflects jJudgments, assessrments or estimates, AB InBev beleves that the following
accounting policies reflect the most cntical judgments, estmates and assumptions that are smportant to its business operations and the
understanding of its results business combinations, intangible assets, goodwili, Impairment, provisions, share-based paymenis, employee
benefits and accounting for current and deferred 1ax.

The farr values of acquired identfiable intangibles are based on an assessment of future cash flows Impairment analyses of goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible assets are performed annually and whenever a tnggenng event has occurred, in order to determine whether the
carying value exceeds the recoverable amount These calculations are based on estimates of future cash flows

The company uses s judgment to select a vanety of methods including the discounted cash flow method and option valuation medels and
makes assumptions about the farr value of financial instruments that are mainly based on market condihons existing at each balance sheet
date

Actuarial assumptions are established 1o anticipate future events and are used in calculating pension and other long-term employee benefit
expense and lability. These factors include assumptions with respect to interest rates, rates of increase in health care costs, rates of future
compensation increases, turnover rates, and Ife expectancy.

The company s subject to iIncome tax in numerous junsdictions Significant jJudgment i1s required in determining the worldwide provision for
income tax There are some transactions and calculatons for which the ultimate tax deterrmnation 15 uncertain. Some subsidianes within
the group are involved in tax audits and locat enquines usually in relation to pnor years Invesbgations and negotiations with local tax
authonties are ongoing 1n vanous Junsdictions at the balance sheet date and, by their nature, these can take considerable time to conclude
In assessing the amount of any income tax provisions to be recognized in the financial statements, estmation 15 made of the expected
successful settlement of these matlers Estimates of interest and penalties on tax labilities are afso recorded. Where the final outcome of
these matters 1s different from the amounts that were mitially recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and labilities in the penod such determination 1s made.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial statements and estmates with a
significant nsk of matenal adjustment in the next year are further discussed i the relevant notes hereafter

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the significant jJudgments made by management in applying the company's accounting
policies and the key sources of est:imating uncertainty mainly related to the reporting of the 50:50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadoly Efes'
existng Russia and Ukraine businesses into AB inBev Efes that closed on 30 March 2018 - see Note 6 Acquisitions and disposals of
Subsidianes and Note 16 Investments i associates, and te the adeption of hypennflation accounting for the company's Argentinean
operations

In May 2018, the Argentinean peso underwent a severe devaluation resulting in the three-year cumulative inflation of Argentina fo exceed
100% in 2018, thereby tnggenng the requrement to transiton to hypennflation accounting as prescnbed by \AS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hypennfiatonary Econonmes as of 1 January 2018 The man principle in IAS 29 1s that the financial statements of an entity that reports in
the currency of a hypernflationary economy must be stated in terms of the measunng umit current at the end of the reporting penod.
Therefore, the non-monetary assets and liabilities stated at histoncal cost, the equity and the income statement of subsidianes operating in
hypennfiationary economies are restated for changes in the general purchasing power of the local currency applying a general price Index
Monetary items that are already stated at the measunng unit at the end of the reporting perod are not restated. These re-measured accounts
are used for conversion into US dollar at the penod closing exchange rate

Consequently, the company has appled hypennflation accounting for its Argentinean subsidianes for the first ime n these consolidated
financial statements applying the 1AS 29 rules as follows

¢ Hypernflation accounting was appled as of 1 January 2018;

® Non-rmonetary assets and liabilites stated at historical cost (e g property plant and equipment, intangble assets, goodwill, etc ) and
equity of Argentina were restated using an inflatton index The hypennflation impacts resulting from changes in the general purchasing
power until 31 December 2017 were reported In retained earnsngs and the impacts of changes in the general purchasing power from 1
January 2018 are reported through the income statement on a dedicated account for hypernnflation monetary adjustments in the finance
line (see also Note 11 Finance cost and income),

e The income statement 15 adjusted at the end of each reporing penod using the change in the general price index and 1s converted at
the closing exchange rate of each penod (rather than the year to date average rate for non-hyperinflationary economies), thereby
restating the year to date income statement account both for nflation index and currency conversion,

* The pnor year ncome statement and balance sheet of the Argentinean subsidianes were not restated

In 2017, the Argentinean operations represented 3 6% of the company’s consolidated revenue and 4 1% of the company’s consolidated
normalized EBITDA The Argentinean full year 2017 results were translated at an average rate of 16 580667 Argentinean pesos per US
dollar The 2(}18 results, restated for purchasing power, were translated at the December closing rate of 37 807879 Argentinean pesos per
US dollar

In accordance with IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, when amounts are translated into the currency of non-
hyperinflationary economy, the comparative amounts are not adjusted for subsequent changes in the pnice level or exchange rates
Therefore, the comparative amounts of Argentinean operations in these consolidated financial statements were not restated

Dunng 2018, the company finalized the re-measurement of current and deferred taxes resulting from the US Tax reform enacted on 22
December 2017, based on published regulation and guidance Such remeasurement did not result in material changes to the reported
current and deferred taxes See Note 12 income taxes for more detals



5. Segment reporting

Segment information is presanted by geographical segments, consistent with the inforration that is available and evaluated regularly by
the chief operating decision maker AB InBev operates its business through seven business segments Regional and operating comparty
management I1s responsible for managing performance, underlying nsks, and effectiveness of operations. Internally, AB InBev's
management uses performance indicators such as normalized profit from operations {normalized EBIT) and normalized EBITDA as
measures of segment performance and to make decisions regarding allocation of resources

The company's six geographic regions: North Amenca, Latin Amenca West, Latin Amernica North, Latin America South, EMEA and Asia
Pacific, plus its Global Export and Holding Companies compnse the company’s seven reportable segments for financial reporting
purposes

The results of the former SAB Central and Eastern European Business were reported as “Resuits from discontinued operations™ until the
completion of the disposal that took place on 31 March 2017. The results of Distell were reported as share of results of associates until the
completion of the sale that occurred on 12 Apnl 2017, and accordingly, are exciuded from normalized EBIT and EBITDA Furthermore, the
company stopped consolidating CCBA 1n its consolidated financial statements as from the completion of the transition of CCBA on 4
October 2017 and, following the completion of the 50 50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes’ existing Russia and Ukraine businesses
on 30 March 2018, AB InBev stopped consolidating its Russia and Ukraine businesses and accounts for its investment in AB InBev Efes
as results of associates as of that date

All figures In the tables below are stated in milion US dollar, except volume {milion his) and Normalized EBITDA margin {(in %).

Latin America Latin America

North America West North

2018
Volume 111 114 115 111 115 119
Revenue 15504 15 588 B 999 9238 8 990 9775
Normalized EBITDA 6150 6329 5198 4512 3826 4 180
Normalized EBITDA margin % 39.7% 40 6% 52.0% 48 8% 43.7% 42 8%
F::ar?rfr[\zt::n. amortization and (790) (843) (653) (616) {761) (848)
:‘anr::')a"ud profit from operations 5360 5 486 4544 3896 3165 3332
Non-recurnng items (see Note 8) (10) 4 {125) {153) 5 (18)
Profit from operations (EBIT) 5350 5 490 4 419 3143 3170 3314
Net finance income/{cost)
Share of results of asseciates
and Joint ventures
Income tax expense
Profit from continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Profit/{loss)
Segment assets (non-current) 83 180 63 045 €9 100 71219 12422 13 756
Gross capex 858 530 1227 1079 €36 580
FTE 19 150 18 308 47 042 48 892 37 387 38 651

Far the period ended 31 December 2018, net revenue from the beer business amounted to 50 134m US dollar (31 December 2017 50
301m US dollar) while the net revenue from the non-beer busmess (soft drinks and other business) accounted for 4 485m US dollar (31
December 2017 6 143m US dollar)

On the same basis, net revenue from external customers attrbutable to AB InBev's country of domicile (Belgium) representad 710m US
dollar (2017 704m US dollar) and non-current assets located in the country of domicile represented 1 746m US dollar (2017 1 658m US
dollar).
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Globai Export and holding

Asia Pacific

2018 2017 2013 2017
104 102 - 1
8 470 7 B804 419 332
3082 2695 (656) (57N

36 4% 34 5%
(752) (660} (267) (253)
2330 2035 (923) (830)
(65) (97} (119) (241)
2265 1939 {1 042) (1071}
22 412 24 088 1609 1741
687 635 233 247
31523 36 386 4683 3254

Consolidated

2018

567
54 619
22080
43.4%

(4 260)

17 821

(715)
17 106
(8 729)

153
(2839)

5691
213 861
5086
172 803

2017

613
56 444
22 084
39 1%

{4 270)

17 814

(662)
17 152
{6 507)

430

{1920)
9155
28
9183
222 166
4 479
182915
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6. Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries

The table below summanzes the mpact of acquisitions and disposals on the statement of financial position and cash flows of AB InBev
for 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017:

2018 2017 2018

Miliion US dollar Acquisitions  Acquisitions  Disposals

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipmeant 2 169 (310) -
Intangible assets 24 417 (17 B
Deferred tax assets 23 - - -
Trade and other receivables - 1 (86) -

Current assets
Inventones 17 9 (84) -

Income tax receivablas - - @) -
Trade and cther recevables 2 20 79 -
Cash and cash equivalents B 5 (8) -
Assets held for sale - 27 27 -
Non-current liabilities

Interest-bearng loans and borrowings ) 4] - -
Deferred tax habilihes - (74) 4 -
Current liabilities

Trade and other payabies (19) (24) 406 -
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 54 549 {201) -
Non-controlling interest - (114) 1 -
Goodwll on acquisitions and goodwill disposed of 107 398 (652) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal - - (15) (42)
Consideration to be (paid)yreceved (112) (375) 47 -
Net cash paid on prior years acquisiions 63 136 - -
Recycling of cumulative translation adjustment in respect of net assels - - (584) -
Contnbution in kind - - 1150 -
Consideration paid/(received) 117 594 (254) (42)
Cash (acquired) disposed of (5) (5} (3 -
Net cash outflow / {inflow) 112 589 {251} 42)

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50 50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes’ existing Russia and Ukraine businesses
Following the closing of the transaction, the operations of AB InBev and Anadolu Efes in Russia and Ukraine are combined under AB
InBev Efes. The combined busness 1s fully consolidated in the Anadolu Efes financial accounts. As a result of the transaction, AB InBev
stopped consolidating its Russia and Ukraine businesses and accounts for its investment in AB InBev Efes under the equity method as of
that date See also Note 16 Investments in associates

The transaction descnbed above invelved the contnbution by AB InBev of its existing Russia and Ukraine businesses to AB InBev Efes in
exchange for a 50% ownership In AB InBev Efes. In line with IFRS, the contnbution by AB InBev of its existing Russia and Ukraine
businesses to AB InBev Efes, with AB InBev losing control, 1s accounted for as a deemed disposal and the 50% non-controling interest
AB InBev received in AB InBev Efes in exchange for such contnbution 15 accounted for as a deemed acquisition of an investment in
associate, with both acquisition and disposal measured at therr fair value estimated at 1.15 bilion US dollar representing the estimated
value of the 50 % investment AB InBev will hold in AB InBev Efes after adjustment for net debt

When a parent loses cantrol of a subsidiary, IFRS 10 requires all assets and liabilities of the former subsidiary to be derecognized and
any gain or loss associated with the deemed disposal interes( to be recognized in the consoligated ncome statement. IFRS aiso requires
that any amounts previpusly recognized in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income, including historical teanslation
adjustments, be recycled to the consolidated income statement, at the date when control 15 fost,

AB InBev has derecognized 573m US dollar net assets related to its former Russia and Ukrame businesses and has recycled 584m US
dotlar from other comprehensive income to the consolidated iIncome statement, resulting In a net non-recurnng, non-cash loss of 7m US
dollar (see also Note 8 Non-recurming items).
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In the first quarter of 2017, AB InBev and Keurig Green Mountain, Inc. estabhshed a joint venture for conducting research and development
of an in-home alcohol dnnk system, focusing on the US and Canadian markets. The transaction included the coniribution of intellectual
property and manufacturing assets from Keung Green Mountain, Inc. Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement, AB InBev
owns T0% of the voting and economic interest in the joint venture. Under IFRS, this transaction was accounted for as a business
combination as AB InBev was deemed as the accounting acquirer as per IFRS rules.

The company undertook a senes of additional acquisitions and disposals during 2017 and 2018, with no significant impact in the company's
consolidated financial statements.

7. Other operating income/{expenses)

Millien US dellar 2018 2017
Government grants 317 404
License (ncome 45 65
Net (additions to)/reversals of provisions {11) (4)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and assets held for sale 80 154
Net rental and other cperating income 249 235
Other operating incomef(expenses) 880 854

The government grants relate pnmanly to fiscal incentives given by certain Brazilan states and Chinese provinces, based on the
company's operations and developments in those regions

In 2018, the company expensed 285m US dollar 1n research, compared to 276m US dellar in 2017. The spend focused on product
innovations, market research, as well as process optimization and product development.

8. Non-recurring items

IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements requires matenal items of mcome and expense to be disclosed separately Non-recurring items
are tems, which (n management's Judgment need to be disclosed by virtue of their size or incidence in order for the user to obtain a proper
understanding of ihe financiai information. The company considers these items to be of significance n nature, and accordingly,
management has excluded these from their segment measure of performance as noted in Note 5 Segment Reporting

The non-recurnng tems included in the sncome statement are as follows

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Restructuring (385) (468}
Acquisition costs business combinations (74) {155)
Business and asset disposal (including impairment losses}) (26) {39)
Prowision for EU investigation (230) -
Impact on profit from operations {715} (662)
Non-recurnng net finance iIncomef{cost) (1982) {693)
Non-recurnng taxes 240 830
Non-recurnng non-controling interest 32 526
Net impact on profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev {2 425) 1

The non-recurming restructuring charges for 2018 total (385)m US dollar (2017 (468)m US dollar). These charges primanly relate to the
SAB integration These changes aim to elmnate overlap or dupiicated processes, faking into account the nght match of employee profiles
with the new organizational requirements These one-time expenses, as a resuft of the senes of decisions, provide the company with a
lower cost base in addition to a stronger focus on AB InBev's core activities, quicker deciston-making and improvements to efficiency,
service and qualty.

Acquisition costs of business combinations amount to (74)m US dollar in 2018, prnmanly related to cost incurred to facilitate the
combination with SAB and cost ncurred to recover the Budwerser distnbution nghis in Argentina from Compafia Cervecerias Unidas S A
{“CCU™ — see Note 15 intangible assets Acquesition costs of business combinations amounted to (155)m US dollar in 2017, pnmarity
related to cost incurred to faciitate the combination with SAB

Business and asset disposals amount to (26)m US dollar in 2018 and mainly result from the IFRS treatment of the 50 50 merger of AB
InBev's and Anadolu Efes' Russta and Ukraine businesses and related transaction cost (see also Note 6 Acquisthons and disposals of
subsidianes). Business and asset disposals amounted to (33)m US dollar in 2017, manly related to the cosis incurred refaled to the
divestitures completed during 2017, partly offset by proceeds from pnor years’ sale

In 2018, the European Commission announced an investgation into alleged abuse of a dominant position by AB InBev in Belgium through
certain practices aimed at restnicting trade from other Eurcpean Union member states to Belgium In connection with these engoing
proceedings, AB InBev recognized a provision of 230m US dollar in 2018

The company incurred non-recurnng net finance cost of {1 882)m US dollar for 2018 (2017 (693)m US dollar cost) - see Note 11 Finance
cos! and income



All the above amounts are before income taxes The non-recurnng items as of 31 December 2018 decreased income iaxes by
240m US dollar and decreased income taxes by 830m US dollar in 2017 The 2017 decrease of income taxes, mainly related to a 1 8
billon US dollar adjustment following the US tax reform enacted on 22 December 2017 partially offset by provisions accrued for tax
contingencies covered by the Brazilian Federal Tax Regulanzation Program entered into by Ambev — see Nole 12 /income faxes and Note
18 Deferred lax assets and habilities.

Non-contralling nterest on the nen-recurring items amounts to 32m US dollar in 2018 (2017: 526m US dollar).

9. Payroll and related benefits

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Wages and salaries (4 726) (4 884)
Socwal securnty contributions (698) (699)
Other personnel cost {708) (762)
Pension expense for defined benefit plans (193) (196)
Shareg-based payment expense (353) (359)
Contnbutions to defined contribution plans {1186) (118)
Payroll and related benefits (6 794) (7 018)

The number of full time equivalents can be spit as follows:

2018 2017

AB InBev NV (parent company} 180 215
Other subsicianes 172423 182 700
Total number of FTE 172 603 182 915

The reduction in FTE mainly resuits from the combinaton of the AB InBev Russia and Ukraine businesses under AB InBev Efes. As a
result of the transaction, AB InBev stopped consolidating its Russia and Ukraine businesses and accounts for its investment in AB InBev
Efes under the equity method as of that date See also Note 6 Acquisifions and disposals of subsidianes.

10. Additional information on operating expenses by nature

Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges are included i the followng kne items of the 2018 consolidated income statement:

Depreciation and Amortization and Impairment of
impairment of impairment of goodwill
property, plant and intangible assets

Million US dollar uipment
Cost of sales 2 841 67 -
Pistnbution expenses 186 3 -
Sales and marketing expenses 420 1865 -
Administrative expenses 309 260 -
Other operating expenses 8 - -
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 3764 496 -

Depreciation, amorhzation and impairment charges are included in the following line items of the 2017 consolidated income statement:

Depreciation and Amortization and Impairment of
impairment of impairment of goodwill
. property, plant and intangible assets

Million US doliar equipment
Cost of sales 2817 40 -
Pistrbution expenses 199 4 -
Sales and marketing expenses 425 196 -
Administrative expenses 337 248 -
Other gperating expenses 4 - &
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 3782 488 6

The depreciation, amortization and iImpairment of property, plant and equipment inciuded a full-cost reallocation of 2m US dollar in 2018
from the aggregate depreciation, amortization and impairment expense to cost of goads sold (2017 1m US dollar).
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11. Finance cost and income
The finance cests Included in the income statement are as follows
Miilion US do#lar 2018 2017

Interest expense (4 141) {4 314}

Capitalization of borrowing costs 23 22
Net interest on net defined benefit labilities (94) (101)
Accretion expense (400) (614)
Net foreign exchange losses (net of the effect of foreign exchange dernvative instruments) - (304)
Net losses on hedging instruments that are not part of a hedge accounting relationship (2222) (674)
Tax on financiaf fransactions (110 68)
Cther financiaf costs, including bank fees (242) (139)
Finance costs, excluding non-recurring items (7 186) (6 192)
Non-recurring finance cost (1982) (693)
Finance costs (9 168) (6 885)

Finance costs, excluding non-recumng items, increased by 884m US dollar from pnor year mainly as a result of Mark-to-market losses
on certain derivatives related to the hedging of share-based payment programs amounting to 1 774m US dollar in 2018 (2017 291m US

dollar loss)
Borrowing costs capitalized relate to the captalization of interest expenses directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of
qualfying assets mainly in China and Nigena. Interest i1s capitaized at a borrowing rate ranging from 4% to 8%

Non-recumng net finance cost for 2018 includes

e 873m US dollar resulting from mark-lo-market adjustments on denvative instruments entered into to hedge the shares issued In
relation to the combination with Grupo Modelo {31 December 2017- 146m US dollar). See also Note 23 Changes n equily and earmings
per share,

* 849m US dollar resulting from mark-to-market adjustments on denvatives entered into to hedge the resincted shares issued in
connection with the cominnation with SAB (31 December 2017 142m US dollar);

® 211m US dollar resuiting from premium paid on the early termination of certain bonds,
& 49m US dollar foreign exchange translation losses on intragroup loans that were histoncally reported in equity and were recycled to
profit and loss account, upon the reimbursement of these loans (31 December 2017 261m US dollar)

Non-recurning net finance cost for 2017 also includes:

* 44m US dollar related to the Brazilan Federal Tax Regularization Program entered inte by Ambev ~ see note 12 Income taxes,

* 100m US dollar related to accelerated accretion expenses associated to the repayment of the 2015 senior faciities agreement and
the early redemption of certain notes See also Note 24 Inferest-beanng loans and borrowings

Interest expense 1s presented net of the effect of interest rate denvative instruments hedging AB InBev's interest rate nsk — see also Note
29 Risks arsing from financial instruments

Fance income included in the income statement 1s as follows

Miltion US dollar 2018 2017
Interest income 333 287
Hypennflatton monetary adjustments 46 -
Other financial Income 61 91
Finance income 440 378
No interest iIncome was recognized on impaired financiat assets
The interest income stems from the following financial assets
Million US dollar 2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents 256 207
Investment debt securties held for trading 22 16
Other loans and receivables 55 64
Total 333 287

The interest iIncome on other loans and recevables includes the interest accrued on cash deposits given as guarantees for certain tegal
proceedings pending resolution.

For further information on instruments hedging AB InBev's foreign exchange nsk see Note 29 Risks ansing from financial instruments
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12. Income taxes

Income taxes recogmzed in the income statement can be detailed as follows:

Million US doliar 2018 2017
Current year (2819) (3833}
(Underprovided)overprovided i prior years 101 1
Current tax expense (2 718) (3 832)
Qrigination and reversal of temporary differences (287) 1872
(Utihzation)recognition of deferred tax assets on tax losses 120 23
Racognition of previously unrecognized tax losses 46 16
Deferred tax (expense)fincome (121) 1912
Total income tax expense (2839) (1920)

The reconciliabion of the effective tax rate with the aggregated weighted nomtinal tax rate can be summanzed as follows

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Profit before tax 8530 11076
Deduct share of resuit of associates and joint ventures 153 430
Profit before tax and before share of result of associates and joint ventures 837 10 646

Adjustments on taxable basis

Govemment incentives (742) (982)
Non-deductible marked to market on dervatves 3496 578
Other expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1798 1795
Other non-taxable INcome (158) (178)

12 769 11 860
Aggregated weighted nominal tax rate 26.8% 28.5%
Tax at aggregated weighted nominal tax rate (3 426) (3 378)

Adjustments on tax expense

Utlization of tax losses not previcusly recognized 120 23
Recognition of deferred taxes assets on previous years' tax losses 46 16
Wnte-down of deferred tax assets on tax losses and current year
losses for which no deferred tax asset 1s recognized {125) {143}
(Underprowded)/overprovided in pnor years €5 1
Deductions from interest on equity 47 853
Deductions from goodwill 17 57
Other tax deductions 436 723
US Tax reform (change in tax rate and other) 116 1760
Change n iax rate (other) 144 (59)
Withholding taxes (403) (386)
Brazilian Federal Tax Regularization Program - (870)
Other tax adjustments (300) (217)
{2 839) (1920)
Effective tax rate 33.9% 18.0%
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The total Income tax expense for 2018 amounts to 2 839m US dollar compared to 1 820m US dollar for 2017. The effective tax rate
increased from 18.0% for 2017 to 33.8% for 2018.

The 2018 effective tax rate was negatvely impacted by losses from certain denvatives related to hedqing of share-based payment
programs and the hedging of the shares issued in a transaction related to the combination with Grupo Modelo and SAB as well as changes
In tax legisiation in some countries resulting N additional non-deductble expenses in 2018.

The 2017 effective tax rate was positively impacted by a 1.8 billen US dollar adjustment following the US tax reform enacted on 22
December 2017. This 1 8 billon US dollar adjustment resulted mainly from the re-measurement of the deferred tax habities set up in
2008 in line with IFRS as part of the purchase price acceunting of the combination with Anheuser Busch and certain deferred tax assets
following the change in federal tax rate from 35% to 21% The adjusiment represented the company’s best estimate of the deferred tax
hability re-measurement resulting from the US Tax reform at the time, and was recognized as a non-recurnng gain per 31 December 2017
This impact was partially offset by Ambev and certain of its subsidianes joining the Brazilian Federal Tax Regularization Program — PERT
In September 2017 whereby Ambev committed to pay some tax contingencies that were under dispute, totaing 3.5 billion Brazihan real
(11 bilion US dollar), with 1 0 bilion Brazilian reai (0.3 bilion US dollar) pad in 2017 and the remaining amount payable in 145 monthly
installments starting January 2018, plus interest Within these contingencies, a dispute related to presumed taxation at Ambev's subsidiary
CRBs was not prowvided for until September 2017 as the loss was prewiously assessed as possible The lotal amount recognized in 2017
as non-recurnng amounted to 2.9 bilion Brazihan real (0.9 billion US dollar) of which 2 8 billion Brazihan real (0.9 billion US dollar) were
reported In the Income tax line and 141 millon Brazihan real (44m US dollar) in the finance line

Dunng 2018, the company finalized the re-measurement of current and deferred taxes resulting from the US Tax reform enacted on 22
December 2017, based on published regulabon and guidance. Such remeasurement resulted in an adjustment of 116m US dollarin 2018
to the reported current and deferred taxes

The company benefits from tax exempted income and tax credits which are expected to continue in the future The company does not
have significant benefits coming from low tax rates in any particuiar jurisdiction

The normahzed effective tax rate for the period ended 31 December 2018 1s 27 8% {2017 22 9%) Normalized effective ax rale 1s not an
accounting measure under IFRS accounting and should not be considered as an altemative to the effective tax rate.

Normalized effective 1ax rate method does not have a standard calculation method and AB InBev's definition of normalized effective tax
rate may not be comparable 1o other companies

Income taxes were directly recognized in other comprehensive income as follows-

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Re-measurements of post-employment benefits 22 (39)
Cash flow and net investment hedges 108 (95)
Income tax (losses)/gains 130 (134)
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13. Property, plant and equipment

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Plant and

equipment, Under
Land and fixtures  constructio
Million US dollar buildings and fittings n

Acquisition cast

Balance at end of previous year 12742 Bn7 2265 48724 44 352
Effect of movernents i foreign exchange (722) (2 225) (150) {3087} 1431

Acquisitions 119 1320 2926 4 365 4221

Acquisitions through business combinations - 2 - 2 169
Disposals (143) (1333) {3) (1479) {1 566)
Drisposals through the sale of subsidianes (265) (834) (29) (1128) (60)
Transfer {to)from other asset categones

and other movements' 724 3028 (2 735) 1017 177
Balance at end of the period 12 455 33675 2274 48 404 48 724
Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance at end of previous year {3 514) {18 028) - (21 540) {18 133)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 177 1219 - 1396 (697
Depreciation (513) (3 069) - (3 582) (3 567)
Disposals 59 1204 - 1263 1161

Disposals through the sale of subsidianes 177 641 - 818 48
Impanment losses {10} {85) - {95) (85)
Transfer to/{from) other asset

categones and other movernents’ 64 (818) - (754) (267)
Balance at end of the period (3 580) {18 934) - (22 494) {21 540)
Carrying amount

at 31 December 2017 9228 15 691 2265 27 184 27 184
at 31 December 2018 8 895 14741 2274 25910 -

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment subject to restnctions on title amounts to 8m US doflar

Contractual commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment amounted to 416m US dollar as at 31 December 2018 compared to
550m US dollar as at 31 December 2017,

AB InBev's net capital expenditures In the statement of cash flow amounted to 4 649m US dollar in 2018 and 4 124m US doliar in 2017
Out of the total 2018 capital expenditures approximately 48% was used 1o improve the company's production faciities while 42% was
used for logistics and commercial nvestments and 10% was used for improving administrative capabilities and purchase of hardware and
software.

LEASED ASSETS

The company leases land and bulldings as well as equipment under a number of finance lease agreements. The camying amount as at
31 December 2018 of assets leased under finance leases was 272m US dollar {31 December 2017 300m US dollar)

! The transfer {to}Jfrom other asset categones and other movements marly relates to transfers from assets under construchion to therr respective asset
categories, 1o contnbutions of assets to pension plans, to the separate presentation in the balance sheet of property, plant 2nd equipment held for sale n
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations and Lo the restatement of non-monetary assets under hypennflation
accounting In (ine wath (AS 29 Frrancial reporting in hypennfiationary econormes
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14. Goodwill
Miltion US dolar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Acquisition cost

Balance at end of previous year 140 980 135897
Effect of movements in foreign exchange {7 541) 4 684
Disposals through the sale of subsidianes {652) -
Acquisitions through business combinations 107 398
Hypernnflation monetary adjustments 435 -
Reclassified as held for sale {13) -
Balance at end of the period 133316 140 980

Impairment losses

Batance at end of previous year {40) (34)
Impatrment losses - (6)
Disposals through the sale of subsidianes 35 -
Balance at end of the period (5) (40)

Carrying amount
at 31 December 2017 140 940 140 940
at 31 December 2018 133 311 -

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50'50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes’ existng Russia and Ukraine businesses
Following this merger, the company derecognized is Russian and Likrainian net assets including goodwill (see also Note 6 Acquisitions
and disposals of subsidiarnes)

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the different cash-generating units as follows:
Million US dollar

Cash-generating unit 2018 2017
United States 33288 33277
Colombia 18 802 20425
South Afnca 15 896 18 651
Peru 14 513 15074
Mexico 12614 12 580
Rest of Africa 77186 B 326
Australia 6 248 6922
Brazil 4715 5523
South Korea 3049 4119
Ecuador 3ez2s 3925
China 2758 2914
Honduras & El Salvador 2284 2335
Canada 1891 2056
Other countries 4613 4913
Total carrying amount of goodwill 133 311 140 940

AB InBev completed its annual impairment test for goodwill and concluded that, based on the assumpttons described beiow, no impairment
charge was warranted.

The company cannot predict whether an event that tnggers impaiment will oceur, when it will occur or how 1t will affect the value of the
asset reported. AB InBev believes that ail of its estmates are reasonable’ they are consistent with the company's internal reporting and
reflect management's best estimates However, inherent uncertainties exist that management may not be able to control Dunng its
valuation, the company ran sensitivity analysis for key assumphions including the weighted average cost of capital and the terminal growth
rate, In particular for the valuatens of the US, Colombia, South Africa, Peru and Mexico, countries that show the highest goodwll While
a change i the estimates used could have a matenal mpact on the calculation of the fair values and trngger an impairment charge, the
company. based on the sensitivity analysis performed 1s not aware of any reasonably possible change in a key assumption used that
would cause a cash-generating unit’s carrying amount to exceed Its recoverabie amount.

Goodwill impairment testing relles on a number of critical judgments, estimates and assumptions Goodwill, wtuch accounted for
approxmately 57% of AB InBev's lota! assets as at 31 December 2018, 15 tested for mpairment at the cash-generating unit level (that s
one level below the operating segments) The cash-generating unit ievel 15 the lowest level at which goodwill 1s monitored for internal
management purposes Except n cases where the inthal allocation of goodwil! has not been concluded by the end of the inthial reporting
period following the business combination, goodwill s allocated as from the acquisition date to each of AB InBev's cash-generating urils
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination whenever a business combination occurs
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AB InBev's imparment testing methodology 1s i accordance with 1AS 36, in which fair-value-less-cost-to-sell and value in use approaches
are taken into consideration. This consists In applying a discounted free cash flow approach based on acquisition valuation models forits
major cash-generating units and the cash-generating units showing a high invested capital to EBITDA multiple, and valuation multiples
for its other cash-generating units

The key judgments, estmates and assumptions used in the discounted free cash flow calculabons are generally as follows

® In the first three years of the model, free cash flows are based on AB InBev's strategic plan as approved by key management
AB InBev's strategic plan is prepared per cash-generating unit and 1s based on external sources n respect of macro-economic
assumptions, ndustry, (nflation and foreign exchange rates, past expenence and identfied inbatives in terms of market share,
revenue, variable and fixed cost, capital expenditure and working capital assumptions;

® For the subsequent seven years of the madel, data from the strategic plan 1s extrapolated generally using smplified assumptions such
as macro-economic and industry assumptions, vanable cost per hectolter and fixed cost linked to inflabion, as obtained from external
sources;

e Cash flows after the first ten-year penod are extrapolated generally using expected annual long-term GDP growth rates, based on
axlernal sources, in order to calculate the terminal value, considenng sensitivities on this metnic,

= Proections are discounted at the umit's weighted average cost of capital (WACC), considering sensitvties on this metnc;
* Costto sell 1s assumed to reach 2% of the entity valua based on histonical precedents.

For the main cash generating units, the termnal growth rate applied generally ranged between 1% and 4%

The WACC applied n US dollar nominal terms were as follows.

Cash-generating unit 2018 2017
United States 7% 6%
Colombna T% 7%
South Afnca 8% 8%
Peru 7% 7%
Mexico 8% 8%
Rest of Afnca 11% 10%
Australia 7% 6%
South Korea % 6%
Ecuador 1% 1%

In the sensitivity analysis performed by management, an adverse change of 1% in WACC would not cause a cash-generating unit's
carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount

The above calculations are carroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly-traded subsidianes or other avadable far
value indicators [y e. recent market transactions from peers)

Although AB InBev beheves that its judgments, assumptions and estimates are appropnate, actual results may differ from these estimates
under different assumptions or market or macro-economic conditions
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15. Intangible assets

31 December
31 December 2018 2017

Commercial
Million US dollar Brands intangibles Software Gther

Acquisition cost

Balance at end of previous year 43 402 2904 2177 ase 48 871 47 191
Effect of movements i foreign exchange {1 482) (105) (137} {41) (1 765) 1286
Acquisitions through business combinations - 22 - 2 24 417
Acquisitions and expenditures 2 367 73 226 668 312
Disposals (25) (55) - {16} (96) (191)
Disposals through the sale of subsidianes (14) - (29) (4) 47) -
Transfer (to)/from other asset categones and 250 (184) 608 138 810 (144)
Balance at end of period 42 133 2949 2692 691 48 465 43 871
Amortization and impairment losses

Balance at end of previous year {32) (1379) (1 472) {114) {2 997) (2 401)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange - 73 B84 T 164 (139)
Amortization - {163) (251) (31 (445) (498)
Disposals - 45 (39 a2 14 89
Disposals through the sale of subsidianes - - 28 2 30 -
Transfer to/(from) other asset categores and - (55) (352) 7 {400} (48)
Balance at end of period {32) {1479) (2 002) {121) {3 634) (2 997)
Carrying value

at 31 December 2017 43 370 1528 705 274 45874 45 874
at 3t December 2018 42 101 1470 690 570 44 831 -

©On 2 May 2018, AB InBev recovered the Budweiser distnbution nghts in Argentina from CCU. The transaction involved the transfer of the
Isenbeck, Iguana, Diosa, Norte and Baltica brands, along with a cash payment of 306m US dollar and other commitments, to CCU
Argentina. The Budweiser distnbutton nghts have been assigned an indefinite useful ife.

AB InBev 1s the owner of some of the world's most valuable brands in the beer industry As a resuit, brands and certain distnbution nghts
are expected to generate positive cash flows for as long as the company owns the brands and distnbution nghts Given AB InBev's more
than 600-year history, brands and certain distnbution nghts have been assigned indefinite ives

Acguisitions and expenditures of commercial intangibles mainly represent supply and distribution nghts, exclusive multi-year sponsorship
nghts and other commercial intangibles

Intangible assets with tndefinite useful lives are compnsed pnmarily of brands and certain distribution nghts that AB InBev purchases for
its own products, and are tested for impaiment dunng the fourth quarter of the year or whenever a tnggenng event has occurred

As of 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the intangible assets amounted to 44 831m US dollar
(31 December 2017 45 874m US dollar) of which 42 435m LIS dollar was assigned an indefinite useful Iife (31 December 2017 43 535m
US dollar) and 2 386m US dollar a finite Iife {31 December 2017 2 279m US dollar).

' The transfer (lc)/from other asset calegones and other movements mainly relates to transfers from assets under construction to ther respective asset
categones, to contnbutions of assets to penston plans, to the separate presentation in the balance sheet of property, plant and equipment held far sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and discontnued operations and to the restaiement of non-monetary assets under hypennflation
accounting in hne with |1AS 29 Financial reporling in hypennflaticnary econormes
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The carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinte useful lives was allocated to the different countnes as follows

Millian US dollar

Count 2018 2017
United States 22 037 21 960
Colombia 3516 3 820
South Afnca 3325 3899
Mexico 3068 3058
Peru 2720 2825
Australia 2422 2773
South Korea 1013 1088
Ecuador 585 595
China 381 403
Dominican Republic 339 353
Rest of Africa 1274 1353
Other countries 1745 1498
Total carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives 42 435 43 595

Intangible assets with ndefinite useful ives have been tested for mpaiment using the same methodology and assumptions as disClosed
in Note 14 Goodwill Based on the assumptons descnbed in that note, AB InBev concluded that no impawrment charge is warranted. While
a change n the estmates used could have a matenal Impact on the calculation of the fair values and tngger an impaiment charge, the
company 1s not aware of any reasonably possible change 1n a key assumption used that would cause a cash-generating unit's carrying
amount to exceed Its recoverable amount

16. Investments in associates

A reconcilration of the summanzed finanoial information to the carrying amount of the company's interests in matenzal associates 1s as
follows

2018 2017
Miltion US dollar AB InBev Efes Castel Efes Castel Efes
Balance at 1 January - 3480 6§94 2793 750
Effect of movements In foreign exchange - (213) (194) 356 (54)
Acquisitions 1157 - - - -
Dividends received - (98) {11 {23) -
Share of results of assocrates 2 110 (10) 54 2y
Balance at end of period 1159 3279 479 3 430 694

On 30 March 2018, AB InBev completed the 50:50 merger of AB InBev's and Anadolu Efes’ existing Russia and Ukrane businesses.
Following the closing of the transaction, the operations of AB InBev and Anadolu Efes in Russia and Ukraine are now combined under
AB InBev Efes The combined business Is fully consohdated in the Anadolu Efes financial accounts As a result of the transaction, AB
InBev stopped consolidating its Russia and Ukraine businesses and accounts for its investment in AB InBev Efes under the equity method
as of that date See alsa Note 6 Acqursihions and disposals of subsidiaries.

The 2017 share of results of assocrates reported for Castel includes the revision of 2016 finalized result of associates. In 2018, the share
of results of associates reported for Castel was negatively mpacted by a currency devaluation in Angola

Summarized financial mformation of the company's matenal associates 1s as follows:

pORE] 2017
Million US dollar AB InBev Efes Castel Efes Castel Efes
Current assets 275 4183 2888 4894 2415
MNon-current assets 664 4291 6 463 3912 5243
Current habilities. 556 1643 2233 1724 1106
Non-current labilities - 635 2207 857 2 494
Non-controlling interests - 839 2297 879 1520
Net assets 383 5267 2814 5346 2538
Revenue 1081 5786 3816 5447 3415
Profit (loss) 4 921 (43) 746 )
Other comprehensive income (loss) - (254) 1536 (94) 553
Total comprehensive thcome {loss) 4 667 1483 652 546
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In 2018, associates that are not indvidually matenal contnbuted to 51m US dollar to the resuits of investment in associates

Additionat information related to the significant associates 1s presented in Note 36 AB InBev Companies

17. Investment securities

Millicn US dollar 2018 2017
tnvestment in unquated companies 84 78
Investment on debt securties 24 24
Non-current investments 108 100
Investment on debt secunties 87 1304
Current investments 87 1304

As of 31 December 2018, curmrent debt secunties of 87m US dollar mainly represented investments in government bonds The company’'s
Investments in such short-term debt securities are primarily to facilitate iquidity and for capital preservation

18. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities by type of temporary difference can be detalled as follows

2018
Million US doilar Assets Liabilities Net
Property, plant and equspment 381 (2 665) {2 284)
Intangible assets 115 (10 665) (10 550)
Inventories 101 (67) 34
Trade and other receivables 142 (62) 80
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 475 {618) (143)
Employee benefits 673 (5) 668
Provisions 483 2n 456
Denvatives 33 (58) {25)
Other items 215 (736) (521)
Loss carry forwards 577 - 577
Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 3195 (14 903) {11 708)
Netting by taxable entity {1738) 1738 -
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 1 457 (13 165) {11 708)
2017
Miilion US dolHar Assets Liabilities Net
Property, plant and equipment 324 (2 586) (2 262)
Intangible assets 113 (11 387) (11 274)
Inventones 114 (63) 51
Trade and other receivablas 148 (62) B6
Interest-beanng loans and borrowings 431 (6486) (215)
Employee benefits 663 (10) 653
Provisions 562 (17) 545
Dervatives 40 (49) (9
Other tems 200 (796) (596)
Loss carry forwards 1130 - 1130
Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 3725 (15 616) (11 891)
Netting by taxable entity (2 509) 2509 -
Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 1218 (13 107) (11891)



The change in net deferred taxes recorded in the consolidated statement of financial posttion can be dedailed as follows:

Million US doliar 2018 2017
Balance at 1 January {11 891) (13 442)
Recognized in profit or loss 121 1912
Recogrized in other comprehensive income (130) (134)
Acquisitions through business combinations (23) (74)
Other movements and effect of changes in forergn exchange rates 215 {153)
Balance at 31 December (11 708) (11 891)

Following the US Tax reform enacted on 22 December 2017 whereby the US Federal tax rate was reduced from 35% to 21%, the company
adjusted the deferred tax liabilities set up m 2008 in ine with IFRS, as part of the purchase price accounting of the combination with
Anheuser Busch and certain deferred tax assets. This adjustment resulted in 1.8 bidlion US doliar recognized as a non-recurmng tax gan
It 2017 — see also Note 12 — income Taxes.

Most of the temporary differences are related to the fair value adjustment on intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and property,
piant and equipment acquired through business combinations. The realization of such temporary differences is unlikely to revert wathin 12
months

Tax losses camed forward and deductible temporary differences on which no deferred tax asset is recognized amount to 5 280m US dollar
(2017: 4 449m US dollar). 1 954m US dollar of these tax losses and deductible temporary differences do not have an expiration date,
136m US dollar, 153m US dollar and 725m US dollar expire within respectively 1, 2 and 3 years, while 2 311m US dollar have an expiration
date of more than 3 years. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized on these items because 1t 15 not probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which these tax losses and deductible temporary differences can be utihzed and the campany has no tax
planning strategy currently n place to utilize these tax losses and deductible temporary differences

19. Inventories

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Prepayments 123 101
Raw matenals and consumables 2387 2304
Work in progress 363 387
Finished goods 1215 1216
Goods purchased for resale 148 11
Inventories 4234 4119

Inventories other than work in progress
Inventories stated at net realizable value 59 57

The cost of Inventones recognized as an expense in 2018 amounts to 20 359m US dollar, included in cost of sales (2017 21 386m US

dollar).

Impairment losses on inventones recogrized n 2018 amount to 72m US dollar (2017 72m US doliar)
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20. Trade and other receivables

NON-CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Million US doilar 2018 2017
Cash deposits for guarantees 197 209
Loans to customers 45 13
Deferred collection on disposals 53 kh!
Tax receivable, other than income tax 139 68
Trade and other recewvables 335 533

769 834

For the nature of cash deposits for guarantees see Note 31 Coflateral and contractual commiiments for the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment, loans to customers and other

CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Trade receivables and accrued income 4412 4752
Interest recevable 19 6
Tax receivable, other than income tax 378 368
Loans to customers 143 166
Prepaid expenses 329 428
Cther recevables 1094 846

6375 6 566

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables is a good approxmation of therr fair value as the impact of discounting 1s not significant

The ageing of the current trade recewables and accrued income, interest recervable, other receivables and current and non-current loans
to customers can be detaded as follows for 2018 and 2017 respectively

Of which: Qf which not impaired as of the reporting date and
neither past due
impaired
Net carrying nor past
amount as of due on the Between 30 Between 60
31 December reporting Less than and 59 and 89 Mcore than
20138 date 30 days days days 90 days
Trade recevables and accrued income 4412 4092 239 52 20 9
Loans to customers 188 176 4 5 3 -
Interest recevable 19 19 - - - -
Other receivables 1054 1051 13 26 4 -
5713 5338 256 83 27 9
Of which; Of which not impaired as of the reporting date and
neither past due
impaired
Net carrying nor past due
amount as of on the Between Between
31 December reporting l.ess than 3G and 59 60 and 89 More than 99
2017 date 30 days [ EVE] days
Trade receivables and accrued income 4752 4 369 265 47 40 31
Loans t¢ customers 179 178 - - - -
Interest recervable 6 6 - - -
Other receivables 846 803 19 B 14 4
5783 5357 284 53 54 35

The above analysis of the age of financal assets that are past due as at the reparting date but not mpaired also includes non-current
joans to customers Past due amounts were not impaired when collection 1s still considered likely, for instance because the amounts can
be recovered from the tax authorities or AB InBev has sufficient collateral Impairment lesses on trade and other receivables recognized
in 2018 amount to 43m US dollar (2017 58m US dollar)

AB InBev's exposure to credit, currency and interest rate nsks 1s disclosed in Note 29 Risks ansing from financial insfruments

m



21. Cash and cash equivalents

Mitlion US dollar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Short-term bank deposits 2233 3896
Cash and bank accounts 4 841 6576
Cash ancg cash equivalents 7074 10 472
Bank overdrafts (114) (117)

6 960 10 355

The cash outstanding per 31 December 2018 includes restricted cash for an amount of 2m US dollar (31 December 2017: 2m US dollar)
This restncted cash refers to outstanding consideration payable to former Anheuser-Busch shareholders who did not yet claim the
proceeds from the 2008 combination

22. Assets classified as held for sale, liabilities associated with assets held for sale and
discontinued operations

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Million US dollar 31 December 2018 31 Daecember 2017
Balance at the end of previous year 133 16 458
Disposals from SAB transaction-related divestitures - (15514)
Reclassifiad to assets held for sale in the penod a5 $
Dispesals (128) (26)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 1) 132
Other movements - (1 c08)
Balance at the end of year 39 133

LIABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Million US dollar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Balance at the end of previous year - 2174
Disposals from SAB transaction-related divestitures - (1 186)
Other movements - (1 008)
Balance at the end of year - .

COMPLETION OF CCBA DISPOSAL

On 4 October 2017, AB nBev announced the completion of the transition of its 54 5% equity stake in Coca-Cola Beverages Africa
("CCBA") for 3.15 billion US dollar, after cusiomary adjustments AB InBev stopped consalidating CCBA n its consolidated financial
statements, as of that date.

CCBA, the largest Coca-Cola bottler n Africa, was formed in 2016 through the combination of the African non-alcohol ready-to-dnnk
bottling interests of SAB, The Coca-Cola Company and Gutsche Family Investments It includes operations in the counines of South
Afnca, Namitia, Kenya, Uganda, Tanzania. Ethioma, Mozambigue, Ghana, Mayotte, and Comoros

Furthermore, AB InBev completed in 2018 the sale of its carbonated soft dnnk businesses in Zambia and Botswana to The Coca-Cola
Company. AB InBev also entered into agreements to sell to The Coca-Cola Company all of ts carbonated soft drink business in eSwatini
(Swazilland) and certain non-alcoholic beverage brands in El Salvador and Honduras The closing of these transactions 1s subject to
customary closing conditions, inciuding regulatory approvals In E| Salvador and Honduras, the company has executed long-term bottling
agreements, which will become effective upon the closing of the El Salvador and Honduras brand divestitures

In addition, the companies continue to work towards finalizing the terms and conditions for The Coca-Cola Company to acquire AB InBev's
interest In the botthing operations in Zimbabwe and Lesotho These transactions are subject to the relevant regulatory and sharetolder
approvals \n the different junsdictions By 31 December 2018, the assets and liabiites of the above operations were not reported as
assets classified as held for sale and habiltties associated with assets held for sale
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23. Changes in equity and earnings per share

STATEMENT OF CAPITAL
The tables below surmmanze the changes In Issued capital and treasury shares dunng 2018:

Issued capitai

ISSUED CAPITAL Mitlion shares Mitlion US dolar
At the end of the previous year 2019 1736
Changes during the penod - -
2018 1736
Of which
Ordinary shares 1693
Restricted shares 326

Result on the use

Treasury shares of treasury shares

- : - Million
TREASURY SHARES Miltion shares US dollar Million US dollar
At the end of the previous year 855 {8 980} (1452)
Changes during the penod (23.0) 2431 (931
62.5 {6 549) (2 383)

As at 31 December 2018, the share capital of AB InBev amounts to 1 238 608 344 12 euro (1 736 millon US dollar) 1t s represented by
2 019 24t 973 shares without nominal value, of which 62 502 473 are held in treasury by AB InBev and its subsidianes. All shares are
ordinary shares, except for 325 999 817 restricted shares As at 31 December 2018, the total of authonized, un-issued capital amounts to
37m euro

The treasury shares held by the company are reported \n equity in Treasury shares

The holders of ordinary and restricted shares are entitled to receve dividends as declared from time to time and are entitied o one vote
per share at meetings of the company In respect of the company's shares that are held by AB InBev, nghts are suspended

The restricted shares are unlisted, not admitted to trading on any stock exchanrge, and are subject to, among other things, restrnctions on
transfer until converted into new ordinary shares. The restncted shares will be convertible at the elechon of the holder nto new ordinary
shares on a one-for-one basis with effect from the fifth anniversary of completion of the SAB combination From completion of the SAB
compination, such restricted shares will rank equaily with the ordinary shares with respect to dividends and voling nghts

The shareholders’ structure based on the notifications made to the company pursuant to the Belgian Law of 02 May 2007 on the disclosure
of significant shareholdings 1n isted companies 1s included in the Corporate Governance section of AB InBev's annual report

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS
In compliance with IFRS 10, the acquisition of additional shares in a subsidiary 1s accounted for as an equity transaction with owners
Dunng 2018, Ambev increased its investment in Cerveceria Nacional Dominicana S.A. ("CND”) from 55% to 85% As the related subsidiary

was atready fully consolidated, the purchase did not impact AB inBev's profit, but reduced the non-controlling interests by 429m US dollar
and increased the profit attnbutabie to equity holders of AB InBev

REPORT ACCORDING TO ARTICLE 624 OF THE BELGIAN COMPANIES CODE — PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES
Dunng 2018, the company proceeded with the following sale transactions

* 1251 602 shares were granted to executives of the group according to the company's executive remunreration policy;
® 1 497 344 shares were sold, as a result of the exercise of options granted to employees of the group;
* 23 076 922 shares were delivered under deferred share instruments with former Grupo Modelo shareholders

At the end of the period, the group owned 62 527 163 own shares of which 61 923 078 were held directiy by AB InBev The par value of
the shares 15 0 61 euro As a conseguence, the shares that were sold during the year 2018 represent 18 038 093 US dollar (15 753 779
euro) of the subscrnbed capital and the shares that the company still owned at the end of 2018 represent 43 672 135 US dollar (38 141
569 euro) of the subscribed capital

DIVIDENDS

Cn 24 Qctober 2018, an intenm dividend of 0.80 euro per share or approximately 1 565m euro was approved by the Board of Directors
This interm dividend was paid out on 23 November 2018 On 28 February, in addition to the intenm dividend paid on 29 November 2018,
a dwidend of 1 00 euro per share or 1 957m euro was proposed by the Board of Directors, reflecting a total dividend payment for the 2018
fiscal year of t 80 euro per share or 3 522m euro

On 25 October 2017, an mtenm dividend of 1 60 euro per share or 3 089m euro was approved by the Board of Directors This interim
dividend was pasd out on 16 Novembper 2017 On 25 Apnl 2018, in addition to the intenm dividend paid on 16 November 2017, a dividend
of 2 00 euro per share or 3 867m euro was approved at the shareholders meeting, reflecting a total dvidend payment for 2G17 fiscal year
of 3 60 euro per share or 6 956m euro The dividend was paid out on 3 May 2018

113



TRANSLATION RESERVES

The translation reserves compnse all foreign currency exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign aperations. The transiation reserves also comopnse the portion of the gain or loss on the foreign currency liabiliies and on the
dernvative financial Instruments determined to be effective net investment

HEDGING RESERVES

The hedging reserves comprise the effective partion of the cumutative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedges to the extent the
hedged nsk has not yet impacted profit or foss

TRANSFERS FROM SUBSIDIARIES

The amount of dwidends payable to AB InBev by its operating subsidsanes 1s subject te, among other restrictions, general imitations
imposed by the corporate laws, capital transfer restrnctions and exchange control restrictions of the respective junsdictions where those
subsicianes are organized and operate. Capital transfer restrichions are also common in certain emerging market countries, and may
affect AB [nBev's flexibility in implementing a capital structure it believes 1o be efficient As at 31 December 2018, the restrictions above
mentioned were not deemed significant on the company’s ability to access or use the assets or seitle the habilities of ds operating
subsidianes.

Dmidends paid to AB InBev by certain of its subsidianes are also subject to withholding taxes. Withholding tax, if applicable, generally
does not exceed 15%

DEFERRED SHARE INSTRUMENT

In a transaction related to the combination with Grupo Modelo, selected Grupo Modelo shareholders committed, upon tender of therr
Grupo Modelo shares, to acquire 23 076 922 AB InBev shares to be delivered wathin 5 years for a consideration of approximately 15
tithion US dellar The consideration was paid on 5 June 2013.

On 21 May 2018, AB InBav delivered the shares that were due under the deferred share instruments through the use of AB InBev treasury
shares

Until the dehvery of the AB InBev shares, AB InBev paid a coupon on each undelivered AB InBev share, so that the Deferred Share
Instrument holders were compensated on an after tax basis, for dvidends they would have received had the AB InBev shares been
delivered to them pnor to the record date for such dividend

The deferred share instrument was classified as an equity instrument, in line with IAS 32, as the number of shares and consideration
received are fixed. The coupon to compensate for the dividend equivalent 1s reported through equity. On 3 May 2018, the company paid
a coupon of 2,00 euro per share or approximately 56m US dollar (2017 3 80 euro per share or approximately 83m US dollar)

STOCK LENDING

In order to fulfil AB InBev's commitments under vanous outstanding stock ophion plans, AB InBev entered into stock fending arrangements
for up to 20 mition of its own ordinary shares, As of 31 December 2018, the outstanding balance of loaned secunbes amounted to 20
rmilhon, of which 20 million were used to fulfil stock option plan commitments. AB inBev shall pay any dividend equivalent, after tax in
respect of the loaned secuntes. This payment will be reported through equity as dividend.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME RESERVES
The changes In the other comprehensive income reserves are as follows:

Post-

Transiation Hedging employment Total OCI

Million US dollar Reserves reserves benefits Reserves

As per 1 January 2018 {13 705) 586 {t 685) (14 784)
Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on transiation of foreign (7 379) - - {7 379)

Cash flow hedges - (92) - (92)

Re-measurements of post-employment benefits - - 98 68

Total comprehensive income (7 379) (92) ] (T 373)

As per 31 December 2018 {21 084) 494 {1560 (22 157)

Post-

Transiation Hedging employment Totat OCt

Millien US dollar Reserves reserves benefits Reserves

As per 1 January 2017 (14 758) 744 (1612) (15 626)
Other comprehensive income

Exchange differences on translation of foreign 1053 - - 1053

Cash flow hedges - (158) - (158)

Re-measurements of post-employment benefits - - (53) (53)

Total comprehensive income 1053 (158) (53) 842

As per 31 December 2017 (13 705) 586 {1 665) (14 784)
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 1s based on the profit attributable to equity holders of
AB InBev of 4 368m US doliar (31 December 2017 7 996m US dollar) and a weighted average number of ordinary and restncted shares
outstanding {Including deferred share instruments and stock lending) per end of the penod, calculated as follows:

Million shares 2018 2017

Issued ordinary and restncted shares at 1 January, net of treasury shares 1934 1934
Effect of stock lending 18 14
Effect of undelivered shares under the deferred share instrument 9 23
Effect of delivery of treasury shares 14 -
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares at 31 December 197§ 1971

The calculation of diluted eamengs per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 1s based on the profit attnbutable to equity holders of
AB InBev of 4 368m US dollar (31 December 2017 7 996m LS dollar) and a weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares
{diluted) outstanding (ncluding deferred share instruments and stock lending) per end of the penod, calcuiated as follows:

Million shares 2018 2017
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares at 31 December 1975 1971
Effect of share options, warrants and restncted stock units 36 39
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diluted) at 31 December 2011 2010

The calcutation of earnings per share before non-recurning items and discontinued operations 1s based on the profit from continuing
operations attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev. A reconciliation of profit before non-recumng items and discontinued operations,
attnbutabie to equity holders of AB InBev 1o profit attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev is calculated as follows:

Million US doilar 2013 2017
Profit before non-recurnng items and discontinued operations, attributable to equity holders of 6793 7 967
Non-recurring items, before taxes (refer to Note 8) (715) (662)
Non-recurring finance income/(cost), before taxes (refer io Note 8) (1982) (693)
Non-recurring taxes (refer to Note 8) 240 330
Non-recurning non-controlling interest (refer to Note 8) 32 526
Profit from discontinued operations - 28
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB inBev 4 368 7 996

The calculation of the Underying EPS' 1s based on the profit before non-recurring items, discontinued operations, mark-to-market losses
and hypennflaton impacts attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev A reconciiabon of profit before non-recurnng tems, discontinued
operations, mark-to-market losses and hypennfiation impacts, attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev to profit before non-recurnng
items and discontinued operations, attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev, 1s calculated as follows.

Midion US dotlar 2018 2017

Profit before non-recurnng items, discontinued cperations, mark-to-market losses

and hypennflation impacts, attributable to equity holders of AB InBev 8 644 8 258
Mark-to-market losses on certain dernvatives related to the hedging
of share-based payrment programs (refer to Note 11) (1774) (291)
Hyperinflation empacts {77) -
Profit before non-recurring items and discontinued operations,
attributable to equity holders of AB inBev 6793 7967

' See glossary



The table below sets out the EPS calculation.

Miltion US dollar 2018 2017
Profit attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev 4 368 7 996
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 1975 1971
Basic EPS from continuing and discontinued operations 221 4.06
Profit from continuing operations attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev 4 368 7 968
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 1975 1971
Basic EPS from continuing operations 221 4.04
Profit from continuing operations before non-recurnng tems, attributable to equity holders of 6793 7 967
Weighted average number of ordinary and restrnicted shares 1975 1971
Basic EPS from continuing operations before non-recurring items J.44 4.04
Profit before non-recurmng items, discontinued operations, marks-to-market losses and B 644 8 258
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares 1875 1970
Underlying EPS' 4,38 4.19
Profit attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev 4 368 7 996
Waighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diluted) 2011 2010
Diluted EPS from continuing and discontinued operations 247 398
Profit from continuing operations attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev 4 368 7 968
Waeighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (diluted) 2011 2010
Diluted EPS from continuing operations 217 3.96
Profit from continuing operations before non-recurnng ems, attnbutable to equity holders of 6793 7 967
Waeighted average number of ordinary and restncted shares (diluted) 2011 2010
Diluted EPS from continuing operations before non-recurring items 3.38 3.96

The average market value of the company's shares for purposes of caiculating the dilutive effect of share options and restncted stock
units was based on quoted market pnces for the penod that the options and restricted stock units were outstanding 63m share options
were anti-chiutive and not included in the calculation of the dilutive effect as at 31 December 2018,

' See glassary
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24, Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the company's inferest-beanng loans and borrowings For more information about the company's
exposure to interest rate and foreign exposure cumency rnisk - refer to Note 28 Risks ansing from financial instruments.

Non-current liabitities

Million US doilar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Secured bank ioans 109 230
Unsecured bank loans 86 153
Unsecured bond 1ssues 105170 108 327
Unsecured other loans 57 53
Finance lease liabilitiles 162 186
Non-current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 105 584 108 949

Current liabilities

Million US dollar 31 December 2018 31 Dectember 2017
Secured bank loans 370 272
Commercial papers 1142 1870
Unsecured bank loans 22 739
Unsecured bond 1ssues 2 626 4 510
Unsecured other loans 14 15
Finance lease habilities 42 27
Current interest-bearing loans and borrowings 4216 7433

The current and non-current interest-beanng loans and borrowings amount to 108.8 bilton US dollar as of 31 December 2018, compared
to 116.4 billion US dollar as of 31 December 2017

Commercial papers amount to 1 1 bilhon US dollar as of 31 December 2018 and include programs in US dollar and euro with a total
autharized 1ssuance up to 3.0 bilvon US dollar and 1 0 billion europ, respectively

During 2018, AB InBev completed the issuance of the following series of bonds

Aggregate
principal amount
Issue date i illi Interest rate Maturity date
23 January 2018 1 500 Eure 3M EURIBOR + 30 bps 15 Apnl 2024
23 January 2018 2000 Euro 1.150% 22 January 2027
23 January 2018 750 Euro 2.000% 23 January 2035
4 April 2018 1500 usp 3.500% 12 January 2024
4 April 2018 2 500 usp 4.000% 13 Apnl 2028
4 Apnl 2018 1500 uso 4.375% 15 Apnl 2038
4 April 2018 2 500 Usb 4.600% 15 Apnl 2048
4 April 2018 1500 Uso 4.750% 15 Apnl 2058
4 April 2018 500 usop 3M LIBOR + 74 bps 12 January 2024

On 19 March, the company redeemed the entire outstanding pnncipal amount of the Anheuser-Busch inBev Worldwide notes with a
principal amount of 2 5 billion US dollar due in 2012 bearing interest at 7 75%.

On 23 April, the company redeemed the entire outstanding pnncipal amount of certain notes due in 2019 and 2020 The tota! prncipal
amount of the notes that were retired 1s approximately 7 8 billon US dollar

On 6 June, the company redeemed the entire cutstanding pnincipal amount of the Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide notes due 2020. The
total pnncipal amount of notes that were retired 1s 1 0 billion US dollar

On 13 December, the company redeemed the entire outstanding prineipal amount of the Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance notes due 2021
The total principal amount of notes that were retired 1s 2 5 billon US dollar

The redemption of these notes was financed with cash

17



On 26 November, the company anncunced the final results of a U.S. private exchange offer for a series of six notes issued by Anheuser-
Busch InBev Finance for notes co-issued by Anheuser-Busch Companies, LLC ("ABC") and Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc. The
total principal amount of notes exchanged listed below s 23.5 bilion US dollar

principal Principal amount Principaf
amount outstanding amount not

outstanding exchanged exchanged
Title of series of notes {in million US {in milliecn US (in million
Issuer issued exchanged

Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance 4.9% Notes due 2046 11 000 9543 1457
Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance 4 7% Notes due 2036 6 000 5 385 615
Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance 3.65% Notes due 2026 11 000 8 555 2445

AB InBev is in compliance with all its debt covenants as of 31 December 2018 The 2010 senior facilihes do net include restrictive financial
covenants.

Terms and debt repayment schedule at

31 December 2018 1 year or Mare than 5
Million US doltar less
Secured bank loans 479 370 38 14 26 K1)
Commercial papers 1142 1142 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans 108 22 - 86 - -
Unsecured bond 1ssues 107 766 2626 5259 8039 17 180 74 692
Unsecured other loans 71 14 18 7 9 23
Finance lease liabiities 204 42 18 17 12 114
109 800 4216 5334 8163 frazr 74 860

Terms and debt repayment schedule at

31 december 2017 1 year or More than
Million US doliar less 5
Secured bank loans 502 272 128 18 33 51
Commarcial papers 1870 1870 - - - -
Unsecured bank loans 892 739 122 kil - -
Unsecured bond issues 112 837 4 510 9 956 9 389 18 441 70 541
Unsecured other loans 68 15 18 7 3 25
Finance lease liabilities 213 27 29 20 23 114
116 382 7433 10 253 9 465 18 500 70731

Finance lease liabilities 2018 2018 2017 2017
Million US doliar Interests Principal Interests Principal
Less than one year 62 20 42 42 15 27
Between one and two years 7 18 19 42 13 29
Between two and three years 33 16 17 31 11 20
Between three and five years 33 21 12 40 17 23
Moare than & years 151 37 114 146 32 114

T 112 205 301 88 213

Net debt 1s defined as non-current and current interest-beanng loans and borrowmings and bank overdrafts minus debt secunties and cash
and cash equivalents Net debt is a financial performance indicator that 1s used by AB InBev's management to highhight changes in the
company's overall lquidity postion. The company believes that net debt 15 meaningful for investors as it 1s one of the pnmary measures
AB InBev's management uses when evalualing \fs progress lowards deleveraging.

AB InBev's net debt decreased to 102 5 bilion US dallar as of 31 Decernber 2018, from 104 4 bilon US dollar as of 31 December 2017
Apart from operating results net of caprtal expenditures, the net debt 1s mainty impacted by the acquisition by Ambev of additional shares
n Cerveceria Nacianal Dominicana S.A. (“CND") followang the partial exercise by E Ledn Jimenes S A, ("ELJ") of ds put option (0.9 bilhion
US dollan), the payment 1o Molson Coors Brewing Company related to a purchase pnce adjustment on the disposal completed on 11
October 2016 of SAB’s interest n MillerCoors LLC and all trademarks, contracts and other assets primarily related 1o the "Miller
Intermational Business” (0.3 bihon US dollar). dvidend paymenis to shareholders of AB InBev and Ambev (7 8 billion US dollar), the
payment of interests and taxes (7.1 billion US doilar} and the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates (2.1 bilhion US dollar decrease
of net debt).
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The following tabie prowides a reconcihation of AB InBev's net debt as at 31 December:

Million US dollar

AB InBev annual report 2018

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Non-current interest-beanng loans and borrowings 105 584 108 949
Current interest-beanng loans and borowings 4216 7433
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 108 800 116 382
Bank overdrafts 114 117
Cash and cash equivalents (7 074) (10 472)
Interest beanng loans granted and other deposits (Included within Trade and other (267) {309)
Debt secunties (iIncluded within Invesiment securities} (+11) (1328)
Net debt 102 482 104 391

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes 1n the company's labilities ansing from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes
Liabilities ansing from financing activties are those for which cash flows were, or fulure cash flows will be classified in the company's

consoldated statement of cash flows from financing activities

Short-term debt and

l.eng-term debt, net current portion of

Million US dollar artion long-term debt
Balance at 1 January 2018 108 949 7 433
Proceeds from borrowings 15111 2672
Payments on borrowtngs {13 925) (8 564)
Amortized cost 47 255
Unrealized fareign exchange effects (1837) (298)
Current portion of long-term debt 2732) 2732
Other movements (29) (14)
Balance at 31 December 2018 105 584 4216

25. Employee benefits

AB InBev sponsors various post-employment benefit plans worldwide These include pension plans, both defined contnbution plans, and
defined benefit plans, and other post-employment benefits In accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits post-employment benefit plans
are classified as either defined contnbution plans or defined benefit plans

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

For defined contribution plans, AB InBev pays contrbulions to publicly or privately administered pension funds or insurance contracts

Once the contnbutions have been paid, the group has no further payment ocbligation The regular contrbutions constitute an expense for
the year in which they are due. For 2018, contributions paid into defined contrnbution plans for the company amounted to 116m US dollar
compared to 118m US dollar for 2017,

DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS

During 2018, the company contrnbuted to 84 defined benefit plans, of which 62 are retirement or leaving service plans, 18 are medical
cost plans and 4 other iong-term employee benefit plans Most plans provide retirement and leaving service benefits related to pay and
years of service In many of the countnes the plans are partially funded When plans are funded, the assets are held in legally separate
funds set up n accordance with applicable legal reguirements and common practice mn each country The medical cost plans in Brazil,
Canada, Colombia, South Afnca and US provide medical benefits to employees and their families after retirement Many of the defined
benefit plans are closed to new entrants

The present value of funded oblgations includes a 175m US dollar lability related to two medtcal plans in Brazl, for which the benefits
are prowded through the Fundagdo Antonio Helena Zerrenner {*FAHZ")} The FAHZ i1s a legally distinct enhty which prowvides medical,
dental, educational and social assistance to current and retired employees of Ambev. On 31 December 2018, the actuanal habihties
related to the benefis prowvided by the FAHZ are fully offset by an equivalent amount of assets existing in the fund The net hability
recognized in the balance sheet 1s nil

The employee benefit net lability amounts to 2 665m US dollar as of 31 December 2018 compared to 2 97 1m US dollar as of 31 December
2017 In 2018, the fair value of the plan assets decreased by 564m US dollar and the defined benefit obligations decreased by 842m US
dollar The decrease in the employee benefit net hability 1s mainly driven by increases in discount rates and favorable foreign exchange
movements
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The company’s net hability for post-employment and long-term employee benefit plans comprises the following at 31 December

Million US dollar 20618 2017
Present value of funded obligations (6 762) (7 506)
Farr value of plan assets 5059 5623
Present value of net obligations for funded plans (1703) {1883)
Present value of unfunded obligations (806) (904)
Present value of net obligations (2 509) (2787)
Unrecognized asset an (111)
Net liability (2 586) {2 898)
Other long term employee benefits 79) (73)
Reclassified as held for sale - -
Total employee benefits (2 685) {2 971)
Employee benefits amounts in the balance sheet:

Liabilities (2 681) {2993)
Assets 16 22
Net liability {2 66%5) {2971)

The changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Defined benefit obligation at 1 January (8 410) (7 952)
Current service costs T2) (74)
Interest cost (322} (340)
Past service gan/(cost) 3) 17
Settlements 45 6
Benefits pawd 493 502
Contrnbution by plan participants (3) 4)
Actuanal gains/({losses) — demographic assumptions 27 24
Actuarial gains/(losses) — financial assumptions 350 {264)
Expernence adjustments 14 21)
Exchange differences 313 (343)
Transfers and other movements - 39
Defined benefit obligation at 31 December {7 588) (8 410)

As at the

last valuation date,

the present value of the defined benefit obligaton was compnsed of approxmately

1.6 billion US dollar relating to active employees, 1.5 brlion US dollar relating to deferred members and 4.5 billion US dollar relating to

members in retirement. The changes in the fair value of pian assets are as follows

Million US doilar

Fair value of plan assets at 1 January
Interest income

Adrmirustration costs

Return on plan assets exceeding interest income
Contnbutions by AB InBev

Contnbutions by plan participants

Benefits paid net of admimstration costs
Assets distributed on settlements
Excharnge differences

Transfers and other movements

Fair value of plan assets at 31 December

Actual retumn on plans assets amounted to a loss of 108m US dollar in 2018 compared to a gan of 472m US dollar in 2017.

120

2018 2017
5 623 5177
225 239
(14) (22)
(333) 233
307 315

3 4
{493) (502)
(45) (7}
(214) 214
- (28)

5 059 5623
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The changes in the unrecognized asset are as follows:

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Irrecoverable surplus impact at 1 January {(+11) (168)
Interest expense {10} (17
Changes excluding amounts included i interest expense 44 74
Irrecoverable surplus impact at 31 December n 111)

The expense recognized in the iIncome staterment with regard 1o defined benefit plans can be detailed as follows.

Million US doellar 2018 2017
Current service costs {72) (74)
Administration costs (14} (22)
Past service cost due to plan amendments and curtailments (3) 17
({Losses)gains on due fo expenence and demographic assumption changes 3 3
Profit from operations (86) (76)
Net finance cost {107) {120)
Total employee benefit expense {193) (196)

The employee benefit expense 1s included in the following line tems of the iIncome statement

Miflion US dollar 2018 2017
Cost of sales (26) (24)
Distnbution expenses (1) (10}
Sales and market:ng expenses (18) (15}
Admintstrative expenses (28) {29}
Other operating (expense)/income {6) {4)
Non-recurring items 1 6
Net finance cost {107) {120)

(193} {196)

Weighted average assumptions used in computing the benefit obligations of the company's significant plans at the balance sheet date
are as follows:

United United
States Canada Mexico Brazil Kingdom AB InBev
Discount rate 4.3% 3.9% 9.0% 8.9% 2.8% 4.3%
Pnce inflation 2.5% 2.0% 3.5% 4.0% 34% 2.7%
Future salary increases - 1.0% 4.3% T.6%-5.6% - 3.8%
Future pension increases - 2.0% 3.5% 4.0% 3.0% 2.8%
Medical cost trend rate 6.5%4.5% 4.5% - 7.6% - 6.8%-6.0%
Life expectation for a 65 year old male 85 87 82 85 87 85
Life expectation for a 65 year old female 87 ag a5 88 89 a7
United United
States Mexico Kingdom
Discount rate 3.7% 38% 8 0% 10 0% 2.6% 4.0%
Pnce inflation 2.5% 20% 35% 4 3% 3.3% 2.7%
Future salary increases - 1.0% 4 3% 56% - 3 5%
Future pension increases - 2.0% 35% 4 3% 3.0% 2.8%
Medical cost trend rate 6.2%-5.0% 4.5% - 7 9% - 6 8%-
Life expectation for a 65 year old male 85 ar 82 85 87 85
Life expectation for & 65 year old female 88 89 B85 a8 89 88
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Through its defined benefit pension plans and post-employment medica!l pfans, the company 1s exposed o a number of risks, the most
significant are detaled below

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

In case of funded plans, the company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-habiity matching (ALM)
framework that has been developed to achieve long-term investments that are in ine with the obligations under the pension schemes
within thus framework, the company's ALM objective is to match assets to the pension obligations by investing n long-term fixed interest
secunties with matunties that match the benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropnate currency. The company actively monitors
how the duration and the expected yield of the investments are matching the expected cash outflows ansing from the pension obligation

ASSET VOLATILITY

In general, the company's funded plans are invested in a combination of equites and bends, generating high but volatile returns from
equities and at the same time stable and liability-matching returns from bords. As the plans mature, the company usually reduces the
level of investment risk by investing more In assets that better match the habibties Since 2015, the company started the implementation
of a new pension de-nisking strategy to reduce the nsk profile of certain plans by reducing gradualiy the current exposure to equites and
shifing those assets to fixed income secuntes.

CHANGES IN BOND YIELDS

A decrease In corporate bond yelds will ncrease plan abilities, although this will be parhally offset by an increase in the value of the
pians' bond holdings

INFLATION RISK

Some of the company's pension obligations, mainly 1n the UK, are Iinked to inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher liabiities. The
majority of the plan’s assets are either unaffected by or lcosely correlated with inflaion, meaning that an increase n inflaton could
potentially increase the company's net benefit obligation,

LIFE EXPECTANCY

The majonty of the plans’ obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in Ife expectancy will result in an
increase in the plans’ habiities,

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 15 13 3 years (2017 13 8 years).

The sensitvity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions s
Million US doflar

Change in Increase in Decrease in

assumption assumption assumption

Discount rate 0.5% (468) 501
Prnce inflation 0.5% 152 {163}
Future salary increase 0.5% 28 (26)
Medical cost trend rate 1.0% 45 (39)
Longewvity One year 220 (229)

The above are purely hypothetical changes 0 individual assumptions holding all other assumptions constant economic condiions and
changes therein will often affect multiple assumptions at the same time and the effects of changes in key assumptions are not linear.

Sensitivities are reasonably possible changes in assumptions and they are caiculated using the same approach as was used to determine
the defined benafit obligation Therefore, the above information i1s not necessarily a reasonable representation of future resuits

The fair value of plan assets at 31 December consists of the following.

2018 2017

Quoted Unquoted Total Quoted Unquoted Total

Government bonds 2% - 32% 27% - 27%
Corporate bonds 36% - 36% 37% - 37%
Equity instruments 2% - 22% 26% - 26%
Property - 4% 4% - 4% 4%
Insurance contracts and others 4% 2% 6% 5% 1% &%
94% % 100% 95% 5% 100%

AB InBev expects to contribute approximatefy 246m US dollar for its funded defined benefit plans and 73m US doliar in benefit payments
to its unfunded defined benefit plans and post-rettrement medical plans in 2018
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26. Share-based payments’

Different share and share option programs altow company senior management and members of the board of directors ta receive or acquire
shares of AB InBev or Ambev. AB InBev has three primary share-based compensation plans, the share-based compensation plan ("Share-
Based Compensation Plan”), the long-term incentive stock option plan for directors (“LTI Stock Option Plan Directors”), and the long-term
incentive stock-oplion plan for executives ("LT| Stock Option Plan Executives™) For all option plans, the fair value of share-based payment
compensation 1s estimated at grant date, using a binormial Hull model, modified to reflect the IFRS 2 Share-based Payment requirement
that assumptions about forfeiture before the end of the vesting pened cannot !mpact the fair value of the optron  All the company share-
based payment plans are equity-settied.

Share-based payment transactions resulted in a total expense of 353m US dallar for the year 2018, as compared to 358m US dollar for
the year 2017

AB INBEV SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PROGRAMS

Share-Based Compensation Plan

As from 1 January 2010, the structure of the Share-Based Compensation Plan for certain executives in the general headguarters, has
been modified. From 1 January 2011, the new plan structure applies to all other sermor management. Under this plan, the Executive Board
of Management {replaced as from 1 January 2019 by the Executive Committee) and other semor employees receive their banus in cash
but have the choice to invest some or all of the value of therr bonus 1N AB InBev shares with a five-year vesting pericd, referred to as
bonus shares Such voluntary investment leads to a 10% discount to the market price of the shares. The company also maiches such
voluntary investment by granting three matching shares for each bonus share voluntanly invested in, up to a hmited totai percentage of
each participant's bonus The percentage of the variable compensation that 1s entitled to get matching shares vanes depending on the
position of the executive. The matching 1s based on the gross amount of the variable compensation vested. The discount shares and
matching shares are granted in the form of resincted stock units which have a five-year vesting penod Additionally, the holders of the
restricted stock units may be entitled to receve from AB InBev additicnal restricted stock units equal to the dividends declared since the
restricted stock units were granted

During 2018, AB InBev 1ssued 1 5m of matching restricted stock umits in relatton to bonus granted to company employees and
management These matching restricted stock units are valued at the share pnce at the day of grant representing a far value of
approximately 158m US dollar and ciiff vest after five years. Dunng 2017, AB InBev issued 0 3m of maiching restncted stock units in
relation to bonus granted to company employees and management These matching restrcted stock units are valued at the share pnee
at the day of grant representing a fair value of approximately 31m US dollar and chff vest after five years

LTI Stock Option Plan for Directors

Before 2014, the company issued regularly warrants, or nghts to subscnbe for newly 1ssued shares under the LTI Warrant Plan for the
benefit of directors and, until 20086, for the benefit of members of the Executive Board of Management and other senior employees LTI
warrants were subject to a vesting period ranging from one to three years. Forfeiture of a warrant occurs In certain circumstances when
the holder leaves the company's employment.

Stnce 2007, members of the Executive Board of Management (replaced as fram 1 January 2019 by the Executive Committee) and other
employees are no longer eligible 1o receve warrants under the LTI Warrant Plan, but instead receive a portion of therr compensation in
the form of shares and options granted under the Share-Based Compensation Plan and the LTI Stock Option Plan Executives

Since 2014, directors are no longer eligible to receive warrants under the LT) Warrant Plan Instead, on 30 Apnl 2014, the annual
shareholders meeting decided to replace the LTI Warrant Plan by a LTI Stock Option plan for directors As a result, grants for directors
now consist of LTI stock options instead of LTI warrants {1 e. the nght to purchase existing shares instead of the nght to subscnbe to newly
issued shares) Grants are made annually at the company's shareholders meeting on a discretionary basis upon recommendation of the
Remuneration Commitiee The LTI stock options have an exercise price that 1s set equal to the market price at the time of the granting, a
maximum lifetime of 10 years and an exercise penod that starts after 5 years The LTI stock options clff vest after 5 years Unvested
options are subject to specific forferture provisions in the event that the directorship 1s not renewed upon the expiry of its term or s
terminated in the course of its term, both due to a breach of duty by the director.

Furthermore, at the annual shareholders meeting of 30 April 2014, all outstanding LT! warrants granted under the company’s LTI Warrant
Plan were converted into LTI stock options, 1.e. the nght to purchase existing ordinary shares of Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV instead of
the nght to subscnbe to newly issued shares All other terms and condiions of the existing grants under the LTI Warrant Plan remain
unchanged

During 2018, AB InBev granted 0 2m siock options to members of the board of directors, representing a fair value of approxmately 4m
US dallar (2017: 0 2m stock options with a fair value of approximately 4m US dollar)

LT! Stock Option Plan for Executives
As from 1 July 2009, senior employees are eligible for an annual long-term incentive to be paid out in LTI stock options (or, in future,
similar share-based instruments), depending on management's assessment of the employee’s performance and future potental.

During 2018 AB InBev 1ssued 7 2m LTI stock options with an estimated fair value of 102m US dollar During 2017 AB InBev 1ssued 7 8m
LTI stock options with an estimated far value of 149m US dollar, whereby 1 4m options relate to Amenican Depositary Shares (ADSs)
and 6 4m options 1o AB InBev shares

1 amounis have been converted to US dollar at the average rate of the period, unless otherwise indicated
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Performance related incentive plan for Disruptive Growth Function

In 2016 the company implemented a new performance related incentive plan which substiutes the long-term incentive stock option plan
for executives of the Disruptive Growth Function. This function was created in 2015 to accelerate new business development opportunities,
focusing on inikiatives in e-commerce, mobile, craft and branded expenences such as brew pubs

Duning 2018, approximately 2 7m performance units were granted to senior management of the Disruptive Growth Function (2017
approximately 2 O performance urnis) The value of the performance units will depend on the return of the Disruptive Growth business
area. Out of these, 0.1m performance units were granted to a member of the Executive Board of Management,

The units vest after 5 years provided a performance test is met. Specific forfeiture rules apply In case the execulive leaves the company.
Other Grants
AR InBev has in place three specific long-term thcentive programs.

One program allows for the offer of restncted stock urits to certan employees in certain specific circumstances, whereby grants are made
at the discretion of the CEQ, e.g as a special retention incentive or to compensate for assignments of expatnates in countries with difficult
living conditions. The restricted stock urits vest after five years and in case of terminaton of service before the vesting date, special
forfeiture rules apply In 2018, 2 3m restncted stock urits wath an estimated fair value of 184m US dollar were granted under this program
to a selected number of employees (2017. 0 1m restricted stock unis with an estimated fair value of 9m US doilar).

A second program allows for the exceptional offer of restncted stock umits to certain employees at the discretion of the Rem uneration
Committce of AB InBev as a long-term retention incentive for key employees of the company. Employees eligible to recaive a grant under
this program receive two senes of resincted stock urits, the first half of the restricted stock units vesting after five years, the second half
after ten years. As a varant under this program, the restricted stock units may be granted with a shorter vesting perod of 2.5 to 3 years
for the first half and 5 years for the second half of the restncted stock units. In case of termination of service before the vesting date,
special forfeiture rules apply. As of 2017, instead of restncted stock units, stock options may be granted under the prograrm with similar
vesting and forfeiture rules Each option gves the grantee the nght to purchase one existing AB InBev share Dunng 2018, approximately
0.4m restricted stock units were granted with an estmated fair value of 35m US dollar (2017: 0.8m stock options with an estimated fair
value of 15m US dollar).

A thurd program allows certain employees to purchase company shares at a discount amed as a long-term retention incentive for (1) ugh-
potential employees of the company, who are at a mid-manager level ("People bet share purchase program”) or (i) for newly hired
empioyees. The voluntary investment in company shares leads to the grant of an amount of matching restricted stock units or stock
options which vest after 5 years. In case of termination before the vesting date, special forfeiture rules apply. In 2018, employees
purchased 0 1m shares under this program for the egquivalent of 1m US dollar (2017 equivalent of 5m US dellar).

In 2018 a new program was implemented allowing for the offer of performance based resincted stock units ("Performance RSUs™) to
certain members of the company's senior management Lipon vesting, each RSU gives the executive the nght to receive one existing AB
InBev share The Performance RSUs can have a vesting penod of 5§ years or of 10 years The shares resulting frem the RSU vesting will
only be delivered prowided a performance test 1s met by the company This performance test 1s based on an organic EBITDA compounded
annual growth rate target which must be achieved by 31 December 2024 at the latest Specific forfeiture rules apply if the employee leaves
the company before the performance test achievement or vesting date

Dunng 2018, AB InBev granted 0 5m Performance RSuUs to a selected group of members of the senior management of the company,
including a number of members of the Executive Board of Management, under the Performance Restncted Stock Units Plan, with an
estimated fair value of 46m US doflar

In order to mantain consistency of benefits granted to executives and to encourage international mobiity of executives, an options
exchange program can be executed whereby unvested options are exchanged agamst restncted shares that remain locked-up until 5
years after the end of the imibal vesting period. The shares that result from the exercise of the options must in pnnciple remain locked-up
unti 31 December 2023. In 2018, no options were exchanged aganst ordinary blocked shares (2017: 0.3m options were exchanged
against ordinary blocked shares). Furthermore, certain ophions granted have been modfied whereby the divdend protected feature of
these ophons have been cancelled and compensated by the 1ssuance of new additional options In 2018 and 2017, no new options were
Issued

The Board has alsc approved the early release of vesting conditions of unvested stock options or restricted stock unris which are vesting
within 6 months of the executives’ relocation The shares that result from tha early exercise of the options or the eary vesting of the
restricted stock units must remain blocked until the end of the iniial vesting period 1n 2018, the vesting of 0.3m stock options and restricted
stock units was accelerated under this program for other members of the senior management. Out of these, the vesting of 0.3m stock
options and restrnicted stock units was accelerated for members of the Executive Board of Management.

The weighted average fair value of the options and assumptions used in applying the AB InBev option pncing maodel for the 2018 grants
of awards descnbed above are as follows:

Amounts in US doilar unless otherwise indicated’ 2018 2017 2016
Fair value of options granted 16.92 19.94 17.40
Share pnce 98.66 1177 103.77
Exercise price 98.66 117.77 10377
Expected volatiity 23% 23% 24%
Expected dividends 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Risk-free interest rate 0.39% 072% 0.54%

' Amounts have been converted to US dollar at the closing rate of the respective penod
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Expected volatiity 1s based on histoncal volatéity calculated using 3 295 days of historical data In the determination of the expected
volatility, AB InBev 1s excluding the volatiity measured during the perniod 15 July 2008 until 30 April 2009, 1n view of the extreme market
conditions experienced during that penod. The binomial Hull model assumes that all employees would immediately exercise their options
if the AB InBev share pnce 1s 2 5 imes above the exercise price As a result, no single expected option Iife applies

The total number of outstanding AB InBev options developed as follows:

Miftion options 2018 2017 2016
QOptions outstanding at 1 January 93.0 64.9 476
Options 1ssued dunng the year 5.2 35.0 204
Options exercised during the year (1.7} (30) (2.2}
Ophons forferted during the year (4.0} (39) (0.9}
Options outstanding at the end of December 92.6 93.0 64.9

The range of exercise prices of the outstanding options s between 10 32 euro (11 82 US dollar)’ and 121 95 eura (138 63 US dollar}
while the weighted average remaning contractual life 1s 8 39 years.

Of the 92 6m outstanding options 16.2m are vested at 31 December 2018

The weighted average exercise price of the AB InBev options 15 as follows

Amounts in US doliar’ 2018 2017 2016
Options outstanding at 1 January 98.32 7625 64.50
Granted during the year 104.77 117.24 104 71
Exercised dunng the year 44.96 38.94 3245
Forfeited dunng the year 113.19 108.26 88 68
Outstanding at the end of December 84.74 98.32 76 25
Exercisable at the end of December 21.40 59.66 40 62

Far share options exercised during 2018, the weighted average share prce at the date of exercise was 78 22 euro (90 71 US dollar)

The total number of outstanding AB InBev restncted stock units developed as follows

Millien restricted stock units 2013 2017 2016
Restncted stock units outstanding at 1 January 5.4 58 56
Restricted stock unts 1ssued during the year 23 o7 1.4
Restricted stock units exercised dunng the year (0.5) o7 (1.1}
Restricted stock units forfeited dunng the year (1.2} 04) (0.1}
Restricted stock units outstanding at the end of December 6.0 5.4 5.8

AMBEY SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PROGRAMS

Since 2005, Ambev has had a plan which s substantially similar to the Share-based compensation plan under which bonuses granted to
company employees and management are partially settled \n shares. Under the Share-based compensation plan, Ambev 1ssued 0.4m
deferred stock units iIn 2048 with an estimated farr value of 2m US dollar

Since 2018, Ambev has a plan which 1s substantially similar to the Share-based compensation plan under which bonuses granted to
company employees and management are partially setfled in shares. Under the Share-based compensation plan, Ambev issued 13 1m
restncted stock units in 2018 with an estimated fair value of 66m US doliar

As from 2010, semor employees are eligible for an annual fong-term incentive to be paid out in Ambev LTI stock options (or, in future,
similar share-based instruments), depending on management's assessment of the employee’s performance and future potential. In 2018,
Ambev granted 19 5m LTI stock options with an estimated fair value of 30m US dollar. (2017 20.4m LTI stock ophions with an estimated
fair value of 42m US Dollar)

The weighted fair value of the options and assumptions used in applying 2 binomial option pricing mode! for the 2018 Ambev grants are
as follows:

Amounts in US dollar unless otherwise indicated’ 2018 2017 2016
Fair value of options granted 1.47 1.97 180
Share price 4.66 5.99 527
Exercise price 4.668 599 527
Expected voiatility 26% 27% 27%
Expected dvidends 0.00% - 5.00% 0.00% - 5 00% 000% -5 00%
Risk-free interest rate 9.6% 10 10% 12 40%

' Amounts have been converted to US doliar at the closing rate of the respective period



The total number of outstanding Ambev options developed as follows

Millien options 2018 2017 2016
Options outstanding at 1 January 135.2 131.3 121.7
Options 1ssued during the year 19.9 204 24.8
Options exercised during the year (10.0) {13 5) {11 6)
QCptions forfeited during the year (3.8} 29) 37N
Options outstanding at the end of December 141.3 135.2 131.3

The range of exercise prices of the outstanding options 1s between 0 01 Brazihan real (0 00 US dallar) and 27 43 Brazilian real (7 08 US
dollar) while the weighted average remaining contractual life 15 6 27 years.

Of the 141 3m cutstanding options 55 5m options are vested at 31 December 2018
The weighted average exercise price of the Ambev options s as follows.

Amounts in US dollar’ 2018 2047 2016
Options outstanding at 1 January 3.94 419 3.17
Granted dunng the year 4.66 599 527
Exercised dunng the year 1.93 176 0.77
Forfeited during the year 479 541 3.94
Outstanding at the end of December 417 492 4.26
Exercisable at the end of December 0.58 114 112

For share options exercised dunng 2018, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was 2% 03 Brazihan real (5 63
US dollar).

The total number of outstanding Ambev deferred and restricted stock units developed as follows:

Million restricted stock units 2018 2017 2046
Restricted stock units outstanding at 1 January 16.3 193 191
Restricted stock units 1ssued dunng the year 135 08 73
Restrcted stock units exercised dunng the year (3.7) (29) (6.1)
Restncted stock units forfeited during the year (1.1) (09 (1.0)
Restricted stock units outstanding at the end of December 250 16.3 19.3

Additionally, as a means of creating a long term incentve (weaith incentive) for certain senior employees and members of management
considered as having “high potential”, share appreciation nghts in the form of phantom stocks have heen granted to those employees,
pursuant to which the beneficiary shall receive two separate lots — Lot A and Lot B — subject to lockup periods of five and ten years,
respectively.

Duning 2018, a imited number of Ambev shareholders who are part of the senior management of AB InBev were givan the opportunity to
exchange Ambev shares aganst a total of 0.1m AB InBev shares (0 im AB InBev shares in 2017) at a discount of 16.7% provided that
they stay in service for another five years. The fair value of this transaction amounts to approximately 1m US dollar (2m US dollar in 2017)
and 1s expensed over the five years' service period. The fair values of the Ambev and AB InBev shares were determined based on the
market price.

27. Provisions

Miltion US dollar Restructuring Disputes Other Total
Balance at 1 January 2018 153 1383 864 2400
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates (68 {65) (43) (115)
Provisions made 69 185 271 535
Provisions used {75) (377) (354) (806)
Provisions reversed (2) {54) - (56)
Other movements (8) (5) (27) (40}
Balance at 31 December 2018 130 1077 Fakl 1918

The restructuring provisions are primarily explained by the organizational alignments - see also Note 8 Non-recurnng itermns. Provisions
for disputes mainly relate to various disputed direct and indirect taxes and to claims from former employees.
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The provisions are expected to be settled within the following time windows:

Million US doltar Totai < 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years > § years
Restructuring 130 63 18 47 2
Ingcome and indirect taxes 627 385 141 83 38
Labor 136 44 12 73 7
Commercial 34 14 6 13 1
Excise duties 18 - 3 15 -
Other disputes 262 7 102 153 -
Disputes 1077 430 264 337 46
Other provisions 711 273 213 225 -
Total provisions 1918 T66 495 609 48

AB InBev Is subject to the greenhouse gas emissicn allowance trading scheme in force 1n the Eurcpean Unton and a similar scheme in
South Korea Acquired emiss«on allowances are recognized at cost as intangible assets To the extent that it 1S expected that the number
of ailowances needed to settle the CO, emissions exceeds the number of emission allowances owned, a provision is recognized Such
provision 15 measured at the estmated amount of the expenditure required to settle the obligaton At 31 December 2018, the emission
allowances owned fully covered the expected CO; emissions As such no provision needed to be recognized

28. Trade and other payables

NON-CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Million LS dollar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Indirect 1axes payable 194 157
Trade payables 238 380
Deferred consideration on acquisitions 1247 699
Other payables 138 226
Non-current trade and other payables 1816 1 462

CURRENT TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Mitlion US dollar 31 December 2015 31 December 2017
Trade payables and accrued expenses 15512 15240
Payroll and social secunty payables 900 1284
Indirect taxes payable 2623 2862
Interest payabie 1616 1790
Consigned packaging 1093 1111
Dividends payable an 479
Deferred income az 30
Deferred consideration on acquisitions 163 1723
Other payables 289 243
Current trade and other payables 22 568 24762

As at 31 December 2018, deferred consideration on acquisitions 1s mainly compnsed of 0 & billon US doilar for the put option included in
the 20112 shareholders’ agreement between Ambev and ELJ which may result in Ambev acquinng additional shares in Cerveceria Nacional
Domimnicana S A (*CND") In January 2018, ELJ partially exercised its ophion to sell approximately 30% of the shares of CND for an
amount of 0.9 bilkon US dollar, resulting in Ambev's participation in CND increasing from 55% to B5%



29, Risks arising from financial instruments

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIBILITIES
Set out below 15 an overview of financial assets’ held by the company at year-end'

Milliort US dolar 31 December 218 31 December 2017

Debt instruments at amortized cost
Trade and other receivables 6 298 6537

Debt instruments at fair value through OCI
Unquoted debt 24 24

Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss
Quoted debt 87 1304

Equity instruments at fair value through OCI
Unquoted companies 84 76

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Danvalives not designated in hedge accounting relationships.

Equity swaps - 29
interest raie swaps 9 _
Cross currency interest rate swaps 32 9
Other denvatives 20 1

Derivalives designated in hedge accounting relationships.
Foreign exchange forward contracts 191 151

Interest rate swaps - 14

Commodities 54 246
6799 8383

Of which:

Non-current 1068 959

Current 5731 7 444

! Cash and short term deposits are not included In this overview
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Set out below s an overview of financial habihttes held by the company at year-end.
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Million US dollar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Financial liabilities at fair vatue through profit or loss

Denwatives not designated in hedge accounting refationships:

Equity swaps
Cross currency interest rate swaps
Other dervatives

Denvatives designated in hedge accounting refationships

Forewgn exchange forward contracts
Cross currency interest rate swaps
Interest rate swaps

Commodities

Other denvatives

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Trade and other payabies

Non-current interest-beanng loans and borrowings:

Secured bank loans
Unsecured bank loans
Unsecured bond 1ssues
uUnsecured other loans
Firance lease habities

Current interest-beanng loans and borrowings
Secured bank loans

Unsecured bank loans

Unsecured bond 1ssues

Unsecured other loans

Commercial paper

Bank overdrafts

Finance lease habiities

Of which:
Non-current
Current

4877
sy
456

132
103

273

20 658

109

86
105170
57

162

370
22
2626
14
1142
114

42
136 912

108 012
28 899

1057
906

211

a7
67
73

21921

230

153
108 327
53

186

272
739
4510
15
1870
"7

27
140773

111 191
29 582
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DERIVATIVES

AB inBev's activities expose It to a vanety of financial nisks market risk {inclucing currency nisk, fair value interest rate nsk, cash flow
interest nsk, commodity nsk and equity nsk), creait risk and iquidity nsk. The company analyses each of these nsks indwidually as well
as on a combined basis and defines strategies to manage the economic impact on the company’s performance In ine with its financial
nsk management policy.

The main denvative nstrurments used are foreign currency rate agreements, exchange traded foreign currency futures and options, interest
rate swaps and forwards, cross currency interest rate swaps (“CCIRS"), exchange traded interest rate futures, commodity swaps,
exchange traded commedity futures and equity swaps.

The table below provides an overview of the notional amounts of dervatives autstanding at year-end by maturtty bucket.

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

1-2 2-3 3-5 1-2 2-3 3-5
Miliion US dollar years years years years years  years

Foreign currency
Forward exchange contracts 11 423 190 - - - 11637 233 - - -
Foreign currency futures 648 - - - - 855 - - - R

Interest rate

Interest rate swaps 2250 750 228 1873 36 1075 2250 750 1883 88
Cross currency interest rate 1807 5 16 6464 681 711 1787 - 5 900 1176
Other interest rate denvatives 4 - . - 565 - - 5 - 565

Commodities

Aluminum swaps 1597 73 - - - 1412 21 - - -
Other commodity denvatives 1241 32 - - - 1214 144 - - -
Equity

Equity derivatives 11 347 - - - - 11798 - - - -
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

AB InBev 1s subject to forexgn currency risk when contracts are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity
This includes borrowings, snvestments, (forecasted) sales, (forecasted) purchases, royalties, dividends, licenses, management fees and
interest expense/income To manage foreign currency nsk the company uses mainly foreign cutrency rate agreements, exchange traded
foreign currency futures and cross currency interest rate swaps

Foreign exchange risk on operating activities

AB InBev's policy Is to hedge operating transachons which are reasonably expected to occur (e g cost of goods sold and selling, general
8 adminisirative expenses) within the forecast penaod determined in the financial risk management policy Operating transactions that are
considered certain to occur are hedged without any time imits. Non-operating transactions (such as acquisitons and disposals of
subsidianies) are hedged as soon as they are highly probable

The table below shows the company's main net foreign currency positions for firm commitments and forecasted transactions for the most
important currency pairs The open positions are the result of the application of AB InBev's nsk management pohcy Positive amounts
indicate that the company 1s long (net future cash inflows) In the first currency of the currency pair while negative amounts indicate that
the company 1s stiort {net future cash outflows) in the first currency of the currency pair The second currency of the currency pairs hsted
1s the functional currency of the related subsidiary

31 December 2018 31 December 2017

Totai Open Total Open
Million US dollar exposure position exposure position
Eure/Canadian dollar (38) 39 - (32) 32 -
Euro/Mexican peso {(187) 182 {5) (275) 246 (29)
Euro/Pound sterling (239) 213 (26) (82) 110 28
Euro/Russian ruble - B - (58) 68 10
Euro/South Afnican rand (90) 52 {38) {84) 84 -
EurofSouth Korean won (51) 55 8 [ 44 (9)
EurofUkraimian hryvnia - - - (58) - (98)
EurofUS dollar (415) 404 (11) (271) 425 154
Mexican peso/Chinese yuan (216) 199 (17) - - -
Mexican peso/Eurc (300) 301 1 - - -
Pound sterling/Eurg (34) 34 B {87) 128 41
Pound sterling/US doltar - - - {40) 40 -
48 dollar/Argentinian peso (573) 484 (89) {678) 678 -
US dollar/Australian doilar (209) 209 - (469) 192 (277)
US dollar/Bolvian boliviano (76) 76 - {20) 20 -
US dollar/Brazilian real {1303) 1223 (80) (1 184) 1184 -
US dollar/Canadan dollar (362) 286 (76) {3086) 306 -
US dollar/Chilean peso (156) 155 1 (324) 324 -
L}S dollar/Chinese yuan (201) 249 48 {303) 134 (169)
US dollar/Colombian peso (287) 219 (68) {319) 195 (124)
US dollarfEuro (80) 78 2 (157) 145 {12
US dollar/Mexican peso (1151) 1082 {69) (1 143) 873 (270)
US dollar/Nigenan naira - - - {172) - (172)
JS dollar/Paraguayan guarani (177) 166 {(11) {108) 108 -
US dollar/Peruvian nuevo sol (157} 149 (8) {255) 154 {(101)
US dollar/Russian ruble - - - (45} 30 {15)
US dallar/South African rand (80) 83 3 (72) 66 (B)
US dollar/South Korean won (114) 128 14 (20) 60 40
US dollar/Ukrainian hryvnia - - - (18) - {18)
US dollar/tUruguayan peso {40) 41 1 (57) 57 -
Others (3z1) 264 (57) {124) 104 (20)

Further analysis on the impact of open currency expasures 15 performed in the currency sensiivity analysis below

Hedges of firm commitments and highly probable forecasted transactions dencminated in foreign currency are designated as cash flow
hedges

Foreign exchange risk on foreign currency denominated debt

It 15 AB InBev's policy for subsidianies to 1ssue debt in sts functional currency to the extent possible Where this 1s not the case, hedging i1s
put In place unless the cost to hedge outweighs the benefits On a global basis, the interest rate and debt profile as well as the preferred
currency mix are determined based on a halistic nsk management approach

A descrption of the foreign currency nisk hedging of debt instruments 1ssued in a currency other than the functienal currency of the
subsidiary 1s further detailed in the interest Rate Risk section below
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Currency sensitivity analysis

Currency transactional risk

Mast of AB InBev's non-denvative financial mstruments are esither denorminated in the functional currency of the subsidiary or are converted
into the functional currency through the use of derivatives Where iliquidity in the local market prevents hedging at a reasonable cost, the
company can have open posiions The fransactional foreign currency nsk mainly anses from open positions in Austrahan dollar, Chinese
yuan, Colombran peso, Mexican peso, Peruvian nuevo sol, pound sterling, South Afncan rand and South Korean won against the US
doliar and the euro AB InBev estimated the reasonably possible change of exchange rate, on the basis of the average volatiity on the
open currency pams, as follows

Closing rate Possibie Volatility

31 December 2018 closing rate' of rates in %

Euro/Mexican peso 2254 19.21 - 25.86 14.75%
Euro/Pound sterling 0.89 0.04 - 0.95 6.03%
Euro/South Korean won 1277.14 118198 - 1372.3 7.45%
Eurc/US dellar 1.15 1.06 - 1.23 7.32%
Pound sterling/US dollar i.28 1.17-1.39 B8.45%
US dellarfAustrahan dollar 1.42 1.30 - 1.54 8.50%
US dollar/fChinese yuan 6.88 6.57-7.18 4.45%
US dollar/Colombian peso 3246.70 2868.9 - 3824.5 11.64%
US dollar/Euro 0.87 0.81-094 7.32%
US dollar/Mexican peso 19.68 17.12-2224 13.00%
US dollar/Nigenan nara 352.54 354.9 - 370.18 211%
US dollar/Peruvian nuevo sol 337 3.24-3.50 3.90%
US dollar/South Afncan rand 14.37 11.96 - 16.79 16.82%
US dollar/South Korean won 111540 1029.1 - 1201.71 7.74%
US dollarTanzarman shilling 2208.32 2211.95 - 2384 69 3.76%
US dellar/Zambian kwacha 11.68 10.28 - 1347 1341%

Closing rate Possible Volatility

31 December 2017 closing rate? of rates in %

Euro/Mexican peso 23.67 2081 -26.53 1207%
Euro/Pound starling 0.89 0.82 - 0.96 7 94%
EurofRussian ruble 6912 60 B6 - 77.38 11.95%
Euro/South Korean won 1280.41 1181.37 - 1 379.44 7.73%
Eure/Ukraiman hryvma 33.66 30 39 - 36.93 972%
Euro/US dollar 1.20 111-128 7 12%
Pound stering/US doilar 1.35 1.16 - 1.54 13 89%
US dollar/Austrahan dollar 1.28 1.18 - 1.38 7 50%
US dollar/Chinese yuan 6.51 615 -6.86 545%
US dollar/Colombian peso 2 988.60 273294 -324426 8 55%
US doliar/Euro 0.83 0.77 - 0.89 712%
US dollar/fMexican peso 19.74 17 45-2202 11 59%
US dollar/Nigenan naira 360.03 284.18 - 435 87 2107%
US doliar/Peruvian nuevo sol 3.24 3.11-3.38 4 19%
US dollar/Russian ruble 57.63 5143-6383 10 76%
US dollar/South Afncan rand 12 35 1044 -14.25 16 39%
US dollar/South Korean won 1067.63 9214121386 13 70%
US dellar/Tanzanan shilling 223544 217676 — 2 294.12 263%
US dollar/Ukraiman hryvmia 28 07 26 86 - 29.27 4 30%
US dellar/Zambian kwacha 9.98 891-1105 10 72%

Had the Austrahan dollar, Chinese yuan, Colombian peso, Mexican peso, Peruvian nuevo sol, pound stering, South Afncan rand and
South Kgrean won weakened/strengthened dunng 2018 by the above estmated changes against the euro or the US doliar, with all other
variables held constant, the 2018 impact on consclidated profit before taxes would have been approximately 76m US dollar (142m US
doliar in 2017} higher/lower.

1 Sensitivity analysis is assessed based on the yearly volatihty using daily observable market data dunng 250 days at 31 December 2018
2 Sensilivity analysis 15 assessed based on the yearly volatirty using dally observable market data dunng 250 days at 31 December 2017
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Addiionally, the AB InBev sensitivity analysis’ to the foreign exchange rates on its total denvatives positions as of 31 December 2018,
shows a positive/negative pre-tax impact on equity reserves of 587m US dollar (639m US dollar 11 2017)

Foreign exchange risk on net investments in foreign operations
AB InBev mitigates exposures of its investments in foreign operations using both denvative and non-denvative financial instruments as
hedging instruments

As of 31 December 2018, designated denvative and non-derivative financial instruments in net investment hedges amount to 9 773m US
dollar equivalent {7 424m US dollar 1n 2017) in Holding companies and approximately 632m US dollar equivalent (1 668m US dollar in
2017) at Ambev level These instruments hedge foreign operations with Brazilian real, Canacdhan dollar, Dominican peso, euro, Mexican
peso, pound sterling, Sauth Korean won and US dollar functional currencies.

Net foreign exchange results
Foreign exchange results recognized on unhedged and hedged exposures are as foliows

Million US dollar 20138 2017
Cash flow hedges - (13)
Economic hedges (210 (49)
Other results - not hedged 216 (242)

] (304}

INTEREST RATE RISK

The company applhes a dynamic interest rate hedging approach whereby the target mix between fixed and floating rate debt 15 reviewed
periodically. The purpose of AB InBev's policy Is to achieve an optimal balance between cost of funding and volatilty of financal results,
while taking into account market conditions as well as AB InBev's overall business strategy

Fair value hedges
US dollar fixed rate bond hedges (interest rate risk on borrowings in US dollar)

The company manages and reduces the impact of changes in the US dollar interest rates on the fawr value of certain fixed rate bonds with
an aggregate principal amount of 1 0 billion US dollar through fixed/floating interest rate swaps These denvative instrumenis have been
designated in a farr value hedge accounting relationship

Cash flow hedges
Pound sterling bond hedges {foreign currency risk + interest rate risk on borrowings in pound sterling)

In September 2013, the company 1ssued a pound stering bond for 500m pound stering at a rate of 4 00% per year and matunng in
September 2025 The impact of changes in the pound sterling exchange rate and interest rate on this bond 1s managed and reduced
through pound sterling fixed/euro fixed cross currency interest rate swaps. These denvative instruments have been designated In a cash
flow hedge accounting

Economic Hedges
Marketable debt security hedges (interest rate risk on Brazilian real}

Dunng 2018 and 2017, Ambev invested in highly iquyd Brazilvan real denominated government debt secunties The company also entered
tnto interest rate future contracts in order to offset the Brazihan reat interest rate exposure of these government bonds. Both instruments
are measured at far value with changes recorded into profit or loss and no hedge accounting 1s required

1 Sensitivity analysis 1s assessed based on the yearly volatiity using daily observable market data dunng 250 days at 31 December 2018
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The table betow reflects the effective interest rates of nterest-beanng financial habties at balance sheet date as well as the currency in
which the debt 1s denominated

31 December 2018 Before hedging After hedging
Interest-bearing financial liabilities Effective Effective

Million US dollar interest rate Amount interest rate Amount

Floating rate

Australian dollar 2.95% 214 2.95% 214
Brazilian real 9.13% 61 6.86% 133
Canadian dollar 3.66% 190 3.38% 206
Euro 0.24% 3138 0.24% 3138
US dollar 1.94% 1399 221% 2638
Other T.19% T09 7.19% 709
5711 7038

Fixed rate
Austrahan dollar 3.28% 1871 3.28% 1871
Brazilian real 6.74% 138 8.79% 66
Canadian dollar 3.23% 1904 3.23% 1904
Euro 1.76% 27 465 1.61% 35282
Pound sterling 3.83% 4173 3.80% 3541
South Korean won - - 2.45% 1000
US dollar 4.28% 68 570 4.66% 69 120
Other 8.55% a2 8.55% a2
104 203 102 876

31 December 2017

Interest-bearing financial liabilities Effective Effective
Million US daollar interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
Floating rate
Australian dollar 2.68% 234 268% 234
Brazihan real 9.22% 122 761% 199
Canadian dollar 209% 207 245% 224
Euro 0 35% 3308 035% 3415
South Afnca rand 8.00% 666 8 00% 666
US dollar 1.48% 1285 1.43% 2521
Other 16.68% 450 16 68% 450
6 362 7709
Fixed rate
Austraban dollar 370% 1838 3.70% 1838
Brazilian real 6 43% 206 5.86% 112
GCanadian dollar 3.08% 2543 319% 2176
Euro 188% 285 386 1 70% 34 251
Peruvian nuevo sol 6 87% 33 6.87% 33
Pound sterling 3.83% 4 403 3 80% 3734
South Karean won - - 2 50% 1000
US dollar 4 18% 74 476 4 51% 65 394
Other 3 6% 252 2.36% 252
110 137 108 790

At 31 Decernbar 2018, the total carrying amount of the floating and fixed rate interest-beanng financial liabiliies before hedging as listed
abave includes bank overdrafts of 114m US dollar
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As disclosed in the above table, 7 038m US dollar or 6 40% of the company's interest-beanng financial liabsities bears interest at a vanable
rate. The company estimated that the reasonably possible change of the market interest rates applicable to its floating rate debt after
hedging 1s as follows

Interest rate Possible Volatility

31 December 2018" interest rate? of rates in %

Brazilan real 6.44% 6.12% - 6.76% 5.00%
Canadian dollar 2.29% 2.45% - 2.42% 591%
Euro - - 2.45%
US dollar 2.78% 2.61% - 2,.94% 5.97%

Interest rate Possible Volatility

31 December 2017° interest rate? of rates in %

Brazilan real 6 80% 529% - 8.50% 2327T%
Canadian dollar 154% 1,38% - 1.71% 10 72%
Euro - - 350%
South Afncan rand 716% 6 88% - 7 43% 384%
Us dollar 1 69% 158% -1 B0% 6 00%

When AB InBev applies the reasonably possible increase/decrease in the market interest rates mentioned above on its floating rate debt
at 31 December 2018, with all other vanables held constant, 2018 interest expense would have been 8m US dollar highert/lower (2017
12m US dollar) This effect would be more than offset by (60m) US dollar higher/lower interest income on AB InBev's interest-bearing
financial assets (2017 (81)m US dollar)

Interest expense
Interest expense recognized on unhedged and hedged financial habilities are as follows:

Miilion US dollar 2018 2017
Financial habilities measured at amortized cost — not hedged (4 053) (4 375)
Fair value hedges (76) (11
Cash flow hedges 22 1
Net investment hedges - hedging instruments {(interest component) 35 7
Economic hedges 100 (8)

{(3972) (4314)

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The commodity markets have expenenced and are expected to continue to expenence pnce fluctuations AB InBev therefore uses both
fixed prnce purchasing contracts and commodity dervatives to mimmize exposure to commodity price volathty. The company has
significant exposures to the following commodities: alumminum, barley, coal, corn grits, corn syrup, corrugated board, diesel, fuel o, glass,
hops, iabels, malt, natural gas, orange juice, plashics, rice, steel and wheat. As of 31 December 2018, the company has the following
commodity derivatives cutstanding (in notional ameunts)

Million US dolar 2018 2017
Aluminum swaps 1670 1412
Exchange traded sugar futures 62 87
Natural gas and energy denvatives 313 211
Corn swaps 196 223
Exchange traded wheat futures 424 509
Rice swaps 194 221
Plastic derivatives 84 91

2943 2754

' Apphcable 3-month InterBank Offered Rates as of 31 Decernber 2018 and as of 31 December 2017

2 Sensitvity analysis is assessed based on the yearly volatlity using daily observabie market data dunng 250 days at 31 Oecember 2018 and at December
2017 For the Brazhian real floating rate debt, the estimated market interest rate 1s composed of the InterBank Deposit Certificate (CDI') and the Long-Term
Interest Rate ( TJLP') With regard to other markel interest rales, the company's analysis 1s based on the 3-month InterBank Offered Rates applicable for the
currencies concerned (e g EURIBOR 3M. LIBOR 3M)
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Commodity price sensitivity analysis
The impact of changes in the commodity pnces would have an immatenal impact on AB InBev's profit in 2018 profits as most of the
company's commodity derwatives are designated (n a hedge accounting

The table below shows the estimated impact that changes in the price of the commodites, for which AB InBev held material derivative
exposures at 31 December 2018, would have on the equity reserves.

Volatility of Pre-tax impact on equity
Mitlion US dollar prices in %' Prices increase  Prices decrease
Aluminum 22.16% aro {370)
Sugar 29.60% 18 (18}
Wheat 20.31% 124 {124)
Energy 23.83% 74 (74)
Rice 22.08% 43 (43)
Corn 23.85% 47 47
Plastic 20.54% 17 (17

Volatility of Pre-tax impact on equity
Million US dellar prices in %’ " Prices increase  Prices decrease
Aluminurn 14 83% 212 (212)
Sugar 29 38% 28 (26)
Wheat 30 99% 158 (158)
Energy 20.37% 43 (43)
Rice 20.20% 45 (45)
Corn 24 81% 45 {45)
Plastic 17.50% 15 {15)

EQUITY PRICE RISK

AB nBev enters nto denvatives to hedge the price sk on its shares when this could negatively 1mpact future cash flows related to the
share-based payments programs. AB InBev also hedges Its exposure ansing from shares 1ssued in connection with the Modelo and SAB
combination (see also Note 11 Finance cosi and income and Note 23 Changes in egquily and eamings per share). These derivatives do
not qualify for hedge accounting and the changes Iin fair value are recorded in the profit or loss.

As of 31 December 2018, an expasure for an equivalent of 92 4m of AB InBev shares was hedged, resulting in a total lass of 3.5 billion
US dollar recognized in the profit or loss account for the perod, of which 1.8 billion US dollar related to the company's share-based
payment programs, 873m US dollar and 849m US dallar related to the Modelo and SAB transactions, respectively.

Between 2012 and 2018, AB InBey reset certain equity dernvatives to market price with counterparties  This resulted in a net cash inflow
of 2 9 billion US dollar between 2012 and 2018 and, accordingly, a decrease of counterparty nsk.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis on the share-based payments hedging program, calculated based on a 22.03% (2017: 15.68%) reascnabiy
possible volatility' of the AB InBev share price, with all the other vanables held constant, woutd show 1 345m US dollar positive/negative
impact on the 2018 profit before tax (2017: 1 422m US dollar).

CREDIT RISK

Credit nsk encompasses all forms of counterparty exposure, 1 e. where counterparties may default on thewr obligations to AB InBev in
refation to lending, hedging, settlerment and other financial activites. The company has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
counterparty credit nsk 1s monitored

AB InBev mitigates its exposure through a vanaty of mechanisms. It has established minimum counterparty credit ratings and enters into
transactions only with financial institubons of investment grade rating. The company monitors counterparty credit exposures closely and
reviews any external downgrade in credit rating iImmediately. To mitigate pre-settiement risk, counterparty minimum credit standards
become more sinngent with increases in the duration of the derivatives. To minmize the concentration of counterparty credit nsk, the
company enters into dernvative transactions with different financial institutions.

The company also has master netting agreements with all of the financial institubions that are counterparties to over the counter (OTC)
denvatives. These agreements aliow for the net settlement of assets and liabiibes ansing from different transactions with the same
counterparty. Based on these factors, AB InBev considers the impact of the nisk of counterparty default as at 31 December 2018 to be
limited

! Sensitivity analysis 1s assessed based on the yearly volatility using daily observable market data dunng 250 days at 31 December 2018
? Sensivity analysis 15 assessed based on the yearly volatiity using daily observable market data dunng 250 days at 31 December 2017

136




AB InBev annual report 2018

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure of the company. The carrying amount (s presented net
of the iImpaiment losses recogmized The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporting date was-

Net carrying Net carrying

Miltion US dollar Gross Impairment amount Gross Impairment amount
Investment in unquoted companies o1 (L) 84 83 (M) 76
Investment in debt secunties 111 - AR N 1328 - 1328
Trade receivables 4 400 (160) 4 240 4917 (194) 4723
Cash depasits for guarantees 197 - 197 209 - 209
Loans to customers 188 - 188 179 - 179
Other receivables 2 359 (106} 2253 2326 (117) 2 209
Dervatives o7 - 307 483 - 483
Cash and cash equivalents 7074 - 7074 10472 - 10 472
14727 (273) 14 454 19 897 (318) 19 678

There was no significant concentration of credit nsks with any single counterparty per 31 December 2018 and no single customer
represented more than 10% of the total revenue of the group in 2018.

Impairment losses
The aliowance for impairment recognized during the pericd per classes of financial assets was as follows-

Trade Loans to Other
Millien US dollar receivables customers receivables
Balance at 1 January (194) - ) (117) (318)
Imparment losses (40) - - 3 43)
Deracognition 29 - - 6 35
Currency translation and other a4 - - 9 53
Balance at 31 December {160} - (14 (106) {273)

Trade Leans to Other
Miltion US dollar receivables customers receivables
Balance at 1 January (202) - s (109) (318)
Impaiment losses (55) - - (4) (59)
Derecognition 53 - - 1 54
Currency translation and other 10 - - (S) 5
Balance at 31 December (194) - (€] {17) {318)

LIQUIDITY RISK

Histoncaily, AB InBev’'s pnmary sources of cash flow have been cash flows from operating activities, the issuance of debt, bank borrowings
and equity securities AB InBev's matenal cash requirements have included the following

* Debt serwicing;

Capital expenditures;

Investments in companies;

Increases In ownershi:p of AB InBev's subsidianies or comparies in which # helds equity investments,
Share buyback programs; and

Payments of dividends and nterest on shareholders’ equity.

The company believes that cash flows from operating activities, avallable cash and cash equivalents as well as short term investments,
along with related derivatives and access to borrowing faciliies, will be sufficient to fund capital expenditures, financial instrument siabvlites
and dvidend payments going forward [t 1s the intention of the company to continue to reduce is financial indebtedness through a
combination of strong operating cash flow generation and continued refinancing
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The following are the norminal contractual matunties of non-dervative financial habilities including interest payments and denvative

financial assets and liabiities

Miilion US dollar

Secured bank [oans
Commercial papers
Unsecured bank loans
Unsecured bond issues
Unsecured other loans
Finance lease labilthes
Bank overdraft

Trade and other payables

Dervative financial assets/(labilties)
Interest rate denvatives

Foreign exchange denvatives

Cross currency interest rate swaps
Commodity dervatives

Equity denvatives

Of which: related to cash flow hedges

Million US dollar

Secured bank loans
Commercial papers
Unsecured bank loans
Unsecured bond 1ssues
Unsecured other loans
Finance lease abiities
Bank gverdraft

Trade and other payables

Derivative financial

nterest rate denvatives

Foreign exchange denvatives
Cross currency interest rate swaps
Commodity denvatives

Equity denvatives

Qf which related to cash flow

Contractual
cash flows

Carrying
amount'

(479) (496)
(t 142) {1 142)
{108) (135)
(107 796) (165 979)
1) {t10)
(204) {316)
(114) (114)

(24 345) (24 722)
(134 258) (193 014)
(84) (86)

(391) {401)
(456) 457)
(225) (225)

(4 877) (4877

{6 033) (6 046)
(293) {303)

Carrying  Contractual
amount cash flows
(502) (590}

(1 870) (1 871)
(892) (927)
(112 837) {167 056)
(68) (114)
{213) (301)
{117 17

(26 167) (26 628)
(142 666) (197 604)
(96) {101)

(61) (52)

(897) (1 043)

179 143

(1 036) (1134)
(1911) (2187}
(20) (29}

31 December 2018

Less
than

1 year

(383)

(1 142)
(33)

(6 410)
(19)
(62)
(114)
(22 557)
(30 720)

(39)
(419)
(13)
(222)
(4 877)
{5 570)

(233)

31 December 2017

Less
than
1 year

(318)
(1871)
{761)

(8 951)
“an
(42)
(17
(24 756)
(36 833)

(9)
(59)
65

139
(1134)
(998)

64

1-2 years

(39)
6
(3 146)

(22)
@n

(260)
(9 510)

(19)
18
13
®

109

17

1-2 years

(137
(129)
(13 951)
(23)
42)

(476)
(14 758)

21)
7
(128)
4

(138)

5

' “Carmying amount” refers lo net book value as recognized In the balance sheet at each reporting date
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(15)

{96)
(11 636)
(12)
(33)

(1 060)
(12 852)

2-3 years

(23
(37)
(12 908)
(13)
(32)

(207)
{13 220)

(14)

114

100

3.5 years

27)

(23 672}
{12)
(33)

(333}

(24 077)

1

(685)

3-5 years

(42)

(24 B55)
)

(40}
(289}
(25 033)

16

(904)

(888)

More than

5 years

31

(115 £15)
(44}
(151)
{513)
{115 855)

(31)
(50)

(129}

(80}

More than
5 years

(70)

(106 591)
(54)
{145)

(900)
{107 760}

(73)

(190)

(263)

(104)
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

AB InBev continuously optimizes its capital structure to maximize shareholder valire while keeping the financial flexibility to execute the
strategic projects AB InBev's capital structure pohcy and framework aims to optimize shareholder value through cash flow distribution to
the company from its subsidianes, while masntaining an investment-grade rating and minimizing investments with retumns below AB InBev's
weighted average cost of capital Besides the statutory mirmmum eguity funding requirements that apply to the company’s subsidiaries in
the different countries, AB InBev 1s not subject to any extemally smposed capital requirements. The management uses the same
debt/equity classifications as applied in the company's IFRS reporting to analyze the capital structure

FAIR VALUE
The following table summanzes for each type of denvative the fair vaiues recogmized as assets or habilities in the balance sheet’

Assets Liabilities
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

Milfion US dollar 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Foreign currency
Forward exchange contracts 191 151 {586) (211) (385) (80)
Fareign currency futures 7 1 {3) 2) 4 (1)

Interest rate

Interest rate swaps 9 14 (27) (37) {18) (23)
Cross currency interest rate swaps 32 9 {489) (906) (457) {897)
Other interest rate denvatives 20 - (86) (73) (66) (73)
Commodities
Aluminum swaps 23 178 {172) (5} (149) 173
Sugar futures - 24 (8) (20) (8) 4
Wheat futures 13 34 (11) (22) 2 12
Energy 4 - (54) - {50) -
Other commodity derivatives 8 10 (28) (20) {20) (10)
Equity
Equily denvatives - 21 (4 877) {1 057) (4877) {1038)
307 442 (6 340) {2 353) {6 033) {1911)
Of which
Non-current 10 25 (805) (937) (795) (812)
Current 297 417 (5 535) (1 416) (5 238) (299)

The following table summarizes the carrying amount and the fair value of the fixed rate interest-beanng financial liabiities as recognized
at the balance sheet Floating rate interest-beanng financial liabiities, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables, including
denvatives financial instruments, have been excluded from the analysis as thesr carrying amount 1s a reasonable approxmation of their
fair value

2018 2017

Interest-bearing financial liabilities Carrying 2018 Carrying 2017
Million US dollar amount’ Fair value amount’ Fair value
Fixed rate

Australian dotlar (1871) {1 927) (1838) (1 B96)
Brazilian real {138) {138) (206) (206}
Canadian dollar (1 904) {1 817) (2 543) (2574)
Euro (27 465) (26 799) (26 386) {26 942)
Peruvian nuevo sol (24) (24) (33) (33)
Pound steriing {4173) {4 320) (4 403) {4 902)
US dollar (68 570) (65 873) {74 476) {83 482)
Other (58) (58) {252) (252)

{104 203) (100 956) (110 137) (120 287)

! "Camying amount” refers to net book value as recognized in the balance sheet at each reporting date
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The table sets out the fair value hierarchy based on the degree to which significant market inputs are observable:

Fair value hierarchy 31 December 2018 Quoted (unadjusted) Observable market Unobservable market

on US doilar prices - level 1 inputs - level 2 inputs - level 3

Financial Asseis

Held for trading {non-denvatives) 3 9 -
Denvatives at fair value through profit and loss - 67 -
Dernvatives in a cash flow hedge relationship 7 225 -
Dervatives in a farr value hedge relationship - 33 -
Derivatives (n a net nvestment hedge relatonship - 14 -
10 8 -
Financial Liabilities
Deferred consideration on acquisitions at farr value - - 1409
Denvatives at fair value through profit and loss - 5699 -
Denvatives in a cash flow hedge relationship 18 507 -
Denvatives n a fair value hedge relationship - 125 -
Dernvatives 1n a net mvestment hedge relationship - 3 -
18 6 3562 1409

Fair value hierarchy 31 December 2017 Quoted (unadjusted) Observable market Unobservable market
Million US dollar prices - level 1 inputs - level 2 inputs - level 3

Financial Assets

Held for trading (non-defnvatives) 1304 5 -
Denvatives at farr value through profit and loss - 89 -
Derivatives 1n a cash flow hedge relationship 9 340 -
Dernvatives in a farr value hedge relatonship - 36 -
Dervatives In a net investment hedge relaticnship - 9 -
1313 479 -

Financial Liabilities
Deferred consideration on acquisitions at fair value - - 2210
Denvatives at fair value through profit and loss 1 1210 -
Dervatives in a cash flow hedge relationship 28 341 -
Denvatives n a farr value hedge relationship - 129 -
Denvatives 1n a net investment hedge relatonship - 685 -
29 2365 2210

Non-derivative financial liabilities

As part of the 2012 shareholders agreement between Ambev and ELJ, following the acquisition of Cerveceria Nacional Dominicana $ A
{“CND"), a forward-purchase contract {.e. combination of a wnitten put option and purchased call option) 1s i place which may result in
Ambev acquiring addiional shares in CND. In January 2018, ELJ parhally exercised its option to sell approximately 30% of the shares of
CND for an amount of 0 9 bithon US dollar, resulting in Ambev's participation in CND increasing from 55% to 85% As of 31 December
2018, the put option for the remaining shares held by ELJ was valued 632 million US dollar (2017 1.7 billon US dollar before the exercise
of the put option by ELJ in January 2018} and recognized as a deferred consideration on acquisitions at far value in “levet 3" category
above The varnance 15 mainly explained by the partial exercise by ELJ of the put option, accration expenses and currency translation

The fair value of such deferred consideration 1s calculated based on using present value techniques, namely by discounting futures cash
flows at the appropnate rate.
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HEDGING RESERVES
The company’s hedging reserves disclosed in note 23 relate 1o the following instruments:

Foreign Interest rate Commodities Others Total hedging
Million US dollar currency reserves
As per 1 January 2018 559 - (20) 47 586
Change tn fair value of hedging instrument
recognized in OC| 262 - a7 - 3538
Reciassifiad 1o profit of loss / cost of inventory (341) - (137) 2 (452)
Deferred tax - - - 2 2
As per 31 Dacember 2018 480 - (60) 76 494
Foreign interestrate Commodities Others  Total hedging
Mitlion US dolar currency reserves
As per 1 January 2017 540 - 204 - 744
Change in farr value of hedging mnstrument - -
Reclassified to profit or loss / cost of Inventory 80 - (202) 47 {75)
Deferred tax - - - - -
As per 31 December 2047 559 - (20} 47 586

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The following financial assets and habihties are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting agreements and similar agreements
3 December 2018

Net amount
recognized in

the statement of

financial Other offsetting
Mitlion US doliar position’ agreements?  Total net amount
Denvative assets 307 307 (293) 13
Denvative labilities (6 340) (6 340) 293 (6 046)

31 December 2017

Net amount
recognized in

the statement of

. Gross financial Other offsetting
Miftion US doltar amount position1 agreements’ Total net amount
Denvative assets 483 483 {466) 17
Dernvative habilihes {2 394) (2 394) 466 {1928)

! Net amount recognizey in the statement of financial pesition after taking into account offsetting agreements that meet the offseling cntena as per IFRS
rules
2 Other offsetting agreements inciude collateral and other guaraniee instruments, as well as offseting agreements that do not meet the offsetting cntena as

per |[FRS rules
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30. Operating leases

Non-cancelable operating leases are payable and recewvable as follows:

2018
Net lease
Million US doliar Lessee Sublease obligations
Within one year (475) 149 3 (323)
Between one and five years {t23an 451 8 @mn
After five years @r1) 211 6 (554)
Total {2 483) 811 18 {1 654)

Net lease
Mitlion US dollar Lessee Sublease Lessor obligations
Within one year (210} 127 2 (181)
Between one and five years (1 008) 425 7 (577)
After five years (781) 211 4 (566)
Total (2 100) 763 13 {1324)

Following the sale of Dutch and Belgian pub real estate to Cofinmmo in Ccetober 2007, AB InBev entered inlo lease agreements of 27
years These operating leases mature in November 2034 and are subleased for an average outstanding penod of 6 to B years. These
leases can be subject to renewal after their expiration date. The impact of such renewal 1s not reported in the table above

Furthermore, the Company leases a number of warehouses, trucks, factory faciities and other commercial bulldings under operating
leases. The leases typically run for a penod of five to ten years. Lease payments are increased annually to reflect market rentals, sf
applicable None of the leases include contingent rentals

The operating leases listed above represent an undiscounted obligation of 2 483m US dollar Also, the company has sublet some of the
leased pubs and properties, representing an undiscounted nght of 811m US dollar.

In 2018, 512m US dollar was recognized as an expense in the income statement in respect of operating leases where the company is the
lessee (2017 471m US dollar), while 133m US dollar was recognized as mecome in the income statement in respect of subleases (2017:
128m US doliar)

The company also leases out part of its own property under operating leases. In 2018, 3m US dollar was recognizeg as income In the
income statement in respect of operating leases as lessor (2017 4m US dollar).
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31. Collateral and contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment, loans to customers and other

Million US dollar 2018 2017
Collateral given for own habiities 404 426
Collateral and financiat guarantees received for own receivables and loans to custormners 335 326
Contractual commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment 416 550
Contractual commitments to acguire loans to customers 171 16
Other commitrnents 1973 1834

The collateral given for own liabiities of 404m US dollar at 31 December 2018 contains 197m US dollar cash guarantees. Such cash
deposiis are a customary feature associated with iigations \n Brazil: in accordance with Brazihan laws and regulations a company may
or must (depending on the circumstances) place a deposit with a bank designated by the court or provide other security such as collateral
on property, plant and equipment With regard to judicial cases, AB InBev has made the approprate provisions in accordance with IAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabiites and Confingent Assets — see also Note 27 Provisions In the company’s balance sheet the cash
guarantees are presented as part of other receivables — see Note 20 Trade and other receivables The remaining part of collateral given
for own llabihties {204m US dollar) contains collateral on AB InBev’'s property in favor of the excise tax authonties, the amount of which 1s
determined by the level of the monthly excise taxes due, inventory levels and transportation nisk, and collateral on its property, plant and
equipment with regard to outstanding loans To the extent that AB InBev would not respect its obligations under the related outstanding
contracts or would lose the pending judicial cases, the collateraiized assets would be used to settle AB InBev's obligations

To keep AB InBev's credit risk with regard to receivables and loans to customers as low as possible coliateral and other credit
enhancements were obtained for a total amount of 335m US dollar at 31 December 2018. Collateral 1s held on both real estate and debt
secuntes while financial guarantees are obtaned from banks and other third parties

AB InBev has entered into commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment for an amount of 416m US dollar at 31 December
2018

In a mited number of countnes AB InBev has committed itself to acquire loans to customers from banks at their notional amount If the
customers do not respect their reimbursement commitments towards the banks. The total outstanding amount of such loans 18 171m US
dollar at 31 December 2018

As at 31 December 2018, the following M&A related commitments existed

® As part of the 2012 shareholders agreement between Ambev and E. Ledn Jimenes S.A.(“ELJ™), following the acquisiion of Cerveceria
Nacional Dominicana S.A (“CND"), a put and call option 1s in place which may result In Ambev acquinng additonal shares in CND.
In January 2018 Ambev increased its participatvon in CND from 55% to 85%. As of 31 December 2018, the put ophion for the remaining
shares held by ELJ was valued 632 milion US dollar (2017 1.7 tulon US dollar before the exercise of the put option by ELJ in January
2018) The corresponding liability 1s presented as a current hiability and recognized as a deferred consideration on acquisiions at fair
value In “level 3" category above See also note 29 Risks ansing from financial instruments

® On 11 Cctober 2016, AB InBev was notified by The Coca-Cola Company of its intention to transition AB InBev's stake in Coca-Cola
Beverages Africa (‘CCBA”™ CCBA includes the Coca-Cola botting operations in South Afnica, Namibia, Kenya, Uganda, Tanzania,
Ethicpia, Mozambique, Ghana, Mayotte and Comores This transaction was completed on 4 October 2017. Furthermore, AB InBev
completed in 2018 the sale of its carbonated soft dnnk businesses in Zambia and Botswana to The Coca-Cola Company The company
also entered into agreements ta sell to The Coca-Cola Company all of ts carbonated soft drink business in eSwatini (Swaziland) and
certain non-alcoholic beverage brands in El Salvador and Honduras The closing of these transactions s subject to customary closing
conditions, including regulatory approvals In El Salvador and Honduras, the company has executed long-term bottling agreements,
which will become effective upon the closing of the El Salvador and Honduras brand divestitures. In addition, the companies continue
to work towards finalizing the terms and conditions for The Coca-Cola Company to acquire AB InBev's Iinterest in the botting
operations in Zimbabwe and Lesotho These transactions are subject to the relevant regulatory and shareholder approvals in the
different jurisdictions

Other commitments ameount to 1 973m US dollar at 31 Decernber 2018 and mainly cover guarantees given to pension funds, rental and
other guarantees

in order to fulfil AB InBev's commitments under vanous outstanding stock option plans, AB InBev entered into stock lending arrangements
for up to 20 million of its own ordinary shares AB InBev shall pay any diidend equivalent, afler tax in respect of the loaned securities.
This payment will be reported through equity as dividend As of 31 December 2018, 20 million loaned secunties were used to fulfil stock
option plan commitments
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32. Contingencies’

The company has contingencies for which, in the opinion of management and s legal counsei, the nsk of loss is passible but not probable
and therefore no provisions have been recorded. Due to therr nature, such legal proceedings and tax matters involve inherent uncertainties
including, but not imited to, court rulings, negotiations between affected parties and governmental actions, and as a consequence AB
InBev management cannot at this stage estimate the bkely trmng of resoluton of these matters. The most significant contingencies are
discussed below

AMBEV TAX MATTERS

As of 31 December 2018, Al InBev's matenal tax proceadings related to Ambev and s subsidianes Estimates of amounts of posstble
loss are as follows

Million US dotlar 31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Income tax and social contrbuticn 8773 9 600
Value-added and excise taxes & 166 5987
Other taxes 1434 1390

17373 16 977

The most significant tax proceedings of Ambev are discussed below

INCOME TAX AND SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION

Dunng 2005, certain subsidianes of Ambev receved assessments from the Brazilian Federal Tax Authonties relating to profits of its foreign
subsidiaries. In December 2008, the Administrative Court rendered a partially favorable decision to Ambev, and in connection with the
remaining part, Ambev filed an appeal to the Administrative Upper House, which was denied in full n March 2017 In September 2017,
Ambev filed a judicial proceeding for this tax assessment and requested a motion of injunchion, which was granted to Ambev n 2013,
2016, 2017 and 2018 Ambev receved other tax assessments related to profits of its foreign subsidianes In July and September 2018,
with respect 10 two tax assessments, the Admiristrative Upper House rendered unfavorable decisions to Ambev In one such case, Ambev
filled a judicial proceeding and requested a motion of Inunction, which was granted to Ambev In the other case, Ambev is analyzing
possible appeals. In October 2018, the Lower Admirustrative Court rendered a partially favorable decision to Ambev in another of the
ongoing tax assessments Ambev 1s waiting to be formally notified of such decision to analyze possible appeals As of 31 December 2018,
Ambev management estmates the exposure of approxmately 7 7 bilhon Brazilian real (2 0 bikon US dollar) as a possible nsk, and
approximately 46m Brazilian real (12m US dollar) as a probable loss

In December 2011, Ambev recewed a tax assessment related to the goodwll amortization resutting from the InBev Holding Brasil S A
merger with Ambev. The final decision rendered by the Lower Administrative Court was partially favorable to Ambev Subsequently,
Ambev filed # judicial proceeding to discuss the unfavorable part and requested a motion of injunction, which was granted ta Ambev. The
favorable portion to Ambev, will be reexamined by the Administrative Upper House  In June 2016, Ambev received a new tax assessment
charging the remaining value of the goodwill amortization and filed a defense In March 2017, Ambev was notified of a partially favorabie
first level adrministrative decision and fited an appeal to the Lower Administrative Court. In May 2018, Ambev received 2 parhizlly favorable
decision at the Lower Administrative Court and 15 currentty waiing to be notified of the decision to analyze possible appeals. Ambev
management estimates possible losses in relation 1o these assessments to be approximately 9.3 billion Brazilian real (2.4 bilion US dollar)
as of 31 December 2018, In the avent Ambev Is required to pay these amounts, AB InBev will reimburse the amount proportional to the
benefit recerved by AB InBev pursuant to the merger protocol, as well as the related costs.

In October 2013, Ambev recewed a tax assessment related to the goodwill amortization resuiting from the merger of Beverage Assoclates
Holding Limited (“BAH") into Ambev. The decision from the first level administrative Court was unfavorable to Ambev After considenng a
motion to clanfy by Ambev, the unfavorable decision was confirmed and Ambev filed an appeal to the Lower Administratve Court. In
Novernber 2018, Ambev received a partially favorable decision at the Lower Administrative Court and 15 currently warting to be formally
notified of the decision to analyze possible appeals In April and August 2018, Ambev received new tax assessments charging the
remaining value of the goodwill amorhization and filed defenses, which are currently pending analysis by the first administrative level
Ambev management estimates the amount of possible losses in relabon 1o this assessment to be approximately 2 1 bilbon Braziian real
(0.5 billion US daliar) as of 31 December 2018 Ambev has not recarded any provision in connection therewth

in November 2017, Ambev receved a tax assessment refated to the goodwill amartization resulting from the merger of CND Holdings inte
Ambev Ambev filed a defense in December 2017. In November 2018, Ambev received an unfavorable decision from the first
admimstrative level and filled an appeal to the Lower Admmmistrative Court, which 1s currently pending Ambev management estimates the
amount of possible losses In relation to this assessment fo be approximately 1 1 tilion Braztian real (0.3 mlion US dollar) as of 31
December 2018 Ambev has not recorded any provision in connechion therewith

Ambev and certain of its subsidiares receved a number of assessments from Brazilian federal tax authonties relating to the offset of tax
loss carmy forward ansing In the context of business combinations In February 20186, the Administrative Upper House ruted unfavorably
to Ambev In two such cases. Ambev filed judicial proceedings te diseuss the matter In September 2016, Ambev recernved a favorable first
level decision i one of the Judicial claims In March 2017, Ambev received an unfavorable first level decisian in another case and filed an
appeal to the judicial Courl. Both cases are awaiting analysis by the judicial Court  Ambev management estimates the total exposures of
passible loss in relation to these assessments 1o be approximately 0 5 billion Brazilian real (0.1 billion US dollar) as of 31 December 2018

In December 2015 and 2016, Ambev received tax assessments related to the disallowance of alleged non-deductible expenses and the
deduction of certain losses manly associated to financial investments and loans Ambev presented defenses, which are pending review
by the first administrative level. Ambev management estimates the amount of possible loss in relation 1o those assessments to be
approximately 4.6 billion Brazilan real (1.2 bilion US doilar) as of 31 December 2018 Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection
with these assessments.

! Amounts have been converted 1o US dollar at the closing rate of the respective period

144




AB InBev annual report 2018

Since 2014, Ambev has been recewing tax assessments from the Braziian Federal Tax Authonties related 1o the disallowance of
deductions associated with alleged unproven taxes paid abroad, for which the decision from the Administrative Upper House 1s still
pending. In September 2017, Ambev decided to Include part of those tax assessments in the Brazillan Federal Tax Regulanzation Program
of the Provisional Measure No 783 In June 2018, Ambev was notified of a favorable first administrative level deaision cancelling four of
these assessments (offsets of 2015 and 2016) However, in August and September 2018, the Brazidian Federal Revenue Service 1ssued
new decisions reestablishing these assessments and 1ssued new tax assessments related to these matters. As of 31 December 2018,
Ambev management estimates the exposure of approximately 9 5 bilion Braziian real (2.5 bilion US dollar) as a possible nsk, and
accordingly has not recorded a provision for such amount.

In April 2016, Arosuco {a subsidiary of Ambev) received a tax assessment regarding the use of the “presumed profit” method for the
calculation of income tax and the social contnbution on net profit iInstead of the “real profit” method. In September 2017, Arosuco received
the unfavorable first level administrative deciston and filed an appeal to the Lower Administrative Court Arosuco management estimates
the amount of possible losses n relation to this assessment to be approximately 0 6 biflion Brazihan real (0 2 bilion US dollar) as of 31
December 2018. Arosuco has not recorded any prowision in connection therewith

ICMS VALUE ADDED TAX, IPI EXCISE TAX AND TAXES ON NET SALES

In Brazil, goods manufactured within the Manaus Free Trade Zone intended for remittance elsewhere in Brazil are exempt from |P1 excise
tax There 15 discussion on whether the acquisition of such benefited goods gives nse to the night of IP) excise tax credits by the relevant
acquirers Ambev's subsidiaries have been registening IP) excise tax presumed credits upon the acquisition of exempted goods
manufactured therein and are discussing the matter at the courts. Since 2009, Ambev has been recemng a number of tax assessments
from the Brazillan Federal Tax Authorities relating to the disallowance of such presumed IPI excise tax credits and other IP| excise tax
credits, which are under discussion before the Braziian Supreme Court, with a tnal expected to occur in Apnl 2018 Ambev management
estimates the possible loss related to these assessments to be approximately 3 8 bilion Braziian real (10 bithon US dollar) as of 31
December 2018 Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection therewnth.

Over the years, Ambev has also receved tax assessments from the Braziian Federal Tax Authorities charging federa; taxes allegedly
unduly offset with the disallowed presumed IP| excise tax credits which are under discussson m the abovementioned praceedings Ambev
1s challenging these charges before the courts. Ambev management estmates the possible loss related to these assessments to be
approximately 1 1 billon Braz:lian real {0 3 billion US dodlar) as of 31 December 2018 Ambev has not recorded any provision in connecton
therewth

in 2014 and 2015, Ambev recerved tax assessments from the Brazihan Federal Tax Authorties to charge the [Pl excise tax, supposedly
due over remittances of manufactured goods to related factones The cases are being challenged at both the admuristrative and judicial
levels of the courts. Ambev management estimates the possible |oss related to these assessments to be approximately 1.6 billion Brazilian
real (0 4 billon US dollar) as of 31 December 2018 Ambev has not recorded any provision in connection therewith

Ambev 1s currently challenging tax assessments 1ssued by the States of Sa Paulo, Rio de Janerro, Minas Gerais and other States
questioning the legality of ICMS tax credits ansing from transactions with companies that have tax incentives The cases are being
challenged at both the administrative and judicial level of the courts. Ambev management estmates the possible losses related to these
assessments to be approxmately 2 1 billien Brazihan read (0 5 bilion US dollar) as of 31 December 2018 Ambev has not recorded any
provision in connection therewsth

In 2013, 2014 and 2015, Ambev was assessed by the States of Pard, and Piaui to charge the ICMS supposediy due with respect to
uncondibional discounts granted by Ambev The cases are being challenged at both the adrministrative and judicial level of the courts
Ambev management estimates the possible loss involved in these proceedings to be approximately 0 6 bithon Brazihan real (0 2 biion
US dollar) as of 31 December 2018. Ambev has not recorded any provision In connection therewith

Over the years, Ambev has received tax assessments to charge supposed ICMS differences considered due when the price of the
products sold by Ambev 1s above the fixed pnce table basis established by the relevant States, cases in which the State tax authorities
understand that the calculation basis should be based on a value-added percentage over the actual prices and not the fixed table price
Ambev 1s currently challenging those charges before the courts Among other similar cases, Ambev received three assessments ssued
by the State of Minas Gerais in the onginal amount of 1.4 tithon Brazihian real {G.4 bilion US dollar) In the first quarter of 2018, the Upper
House of the Administrative Tax Court of the State of Minas Gerass ruled unfavorably to Ambev on these three cases. The State of Minas
Gerais filed tax foreclosures to charge the amounts discussed in these three cases and Ambev filed defenses with the judicial courts In
2017, Ambev received assessments from the State of Rio de Janewro in the onginal amount of 0.9 bilien Brazilian real (3.2 bilhon US
dollar) Ambev presented appeals against such tax assessments and now awaits the decision by the Tax Admunistrative Court Ambev
management estimates the total passible loss related to this 1ssue to be approximately 7 7 bilion Brazihan real (2 Q bilion US doilar) as
of 31 December 2018 Ambev has recorded provisions in the total amount of 8m Brazillan real (2m US dollar) in relation to certain
proceedings for which it considers the chances of loss to be probable due to specific procedural 1Issues

In 2015, Ambev receved a tax assessment 1ssued by the State of Permmambuco o charge ICMS differences due to an alleged non-
comphiance with the State tax incentive Agreement (“PRODEPE") as a result of the rectification of its monthly reports The State tax
authonties understood that Ambev was not able to use the incentive due 1o this rectification. In 2017, Ambev had a finat favorable decision
n the sense that such assessment was null due to formal mistakes of the tax auditor However, In September 2018, Ambev received a
new tax assessment to discuss the same matter There are other assessments related to this same tax incentive agreement Ambev
management estimates the possible losses related to this 1ssue to be approximately 0 6 billion Brazihan real (0.2 bilion US dollar) as of
31 December 2018 Ambev has recorded a provision in the total amount of 3m Brazilian real {(1m US dollar) in refation to one proceeding
it considers the chances of loss to be partially probable

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Ambev received some tax assessments 1ssued by the Brazilian Federal Tax Authorities relating to amounts allegedly due under Integration
Program / Social Secunty Financing Levy (PIS/COFINS) over bonus products granted to its customers The cases are being challenged
at both the administrative and judicial levels of the Courts Ambev management estimates the possible loss related to these assessments
to be approximately 4 0 billion Brazihan real (1 0 bilion US dodlar) as of 31 December 2018 No related provision has been made
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OTHER TAX MATTERS

In February 2015, the European Commission opened an in-depth state aid iInvestigation into the Belgian excess profit ruling system. On
11 January 2016, the European Commission adopted a negative decision finding that the Belgian excess profit ruling system constitutes
an aid scheme incompatible with the intemal market and ordering Belgium to recover the incompatible axd from a number of aid
beneficianes. The Belgian authonties have contacted the campanies that have benefitted from the system and have advised each
company of the amount of incompatible aid that 1s potentially subject to recovery The European Commission decision was appealed to
the European Union's General Court by Belgium on 22 March 2016 and by AB inBev on 12 July 2016, The appeals do not suspend the
recovery process, and AB inBev cannot at this stage estmate the final outcome of such legal proceedings Based on the estimated
exposure related to the excess profit ruling applicable to AB InBev, the different elements referred to above, as well as the possibility that
taxes pawd abroad and non-recognized tax loss carryforwards could eventually partly or fully offset amounts subject to recovery, If any,
AB InBev has not recorded any provisions i1 connechion therewith as of 31 December 2018.

In addition, the Belgian tax authonties have also questioned the vahdity and the actual application of the excess profit ruling that was
Issued in favor of AB InBev and have refused the actual tax exemption which it confers. Aganst such decision AB InBev has filed a count
claim before the Brussels court of first Instance  Also in respect of this aspect of the excess profit ruling matter, considenng the company's
and its counse assessment, as well as the posttion taken by the tax authonties’ medation services, in respect of the ments of the case,
AB InBev has not recorded any provisions as of 31 December 2018.

On 24 January 2018, AB InBev deposited 6Bm EUR on a blocked account. Depending on the finat pbutcome of the European Court
pracedures on the Belgian excess profit ruling system, as well as the pending Belgian court case, this amount will either be slightly
modified, or released back to the company or paid over 1o the Belgian State.

Cn 14 February 2019, the European General Court concluded that the Belgian excess profit ruling system does not consttute illegal state
aig. The European Commission can appeal the judgment of the General Court

WARRANTS

Certain halders of warrants 1ssuad by Ambev in 1996 for exercise in 2003 proposed lawsuits to substnbe correspondent shares for an
arnount lower than Ambev considers as established upon the warrant issuance In case Ambev loses the totality of these lawsuits, the
issuance of 172,831,574 shares would be necessary Ambev would receive In consideration funds that are matenally lower than the
current market value. This could result in a dilution of abaut 1% to all Ambev shareholders. Furthermare, the holders of these warrants
are claiming that they should receive the dividends relative 1o these shares since 2003, approximately 0 9 billon Brazihan rea) (0.2 bilion
US dollar) in addrtion to legal fees. Ambev dispuies these claims and intends to continue to wgorously defend its case Five of the six
lawsuits were ruled favorabie 1o Ambev by the Superior Court of Justice (STJ) Two of them during the year of 2017. All of these five
cases are pending final judgment by STJ's Special Court In November 2017, the Federal Public Prosecutor filled a motion favorable to
Ambev’s pasition in one of the cases. Considenng all of these facts, the company and its external counsels strongly believe that the
chance of loss in these cases is remote.

ANTITRUST MATTERS

On 12 December 2014, a lawsuit was commenced in the Ontario Superior Court of Justice against the Liquor Control Board of Ontario,
Brewers Retail Inc. (known as The Beer Store or “TBS") and the owners of Brewers Retail Inc. (Melson Goors Canada, Sleeman Breweries
Ltd and Labatt Brewenes of Canada LP). The lawsuit was brought in Canada pursuant fo the Ontano Class Proceedings Act, and sought,
among other things (1) to obtain a declaration that the defendants conspired with each other to allocate markets for the supoly of beer
sold in Ontario since 1 June 2000; (n) to obtain a declaration that Brewers Retail Inc and the owners of Brewers Retall Inc. conspired to
fix, increase and/or maintain prices charged to Ontano licensees (on-trade) for beer and the fees charged by TBS to other competitive
brewers who wished to sell their products through TBS and (i) damages for unjust enrichment. As part of thes third allegation, the plaintiffs
allege illegal trade practices by the owners of Brewers Retall Inc They are seeking damages not axceeding 1.4 bilion Canadian doltar
(1.0 billion US doallar), as well as, punitive, exemplary and aggravated darmages of 5m Canadian deliar (4m US dollar) and changes/repeals
of the affected legislation. In March 2018, the court granted summary judgment and dismissed the class claims, The plaintffs have
appealed The company has not recorded any provision In connection therewith

In 2016, the European Commission announced an nvestigation into alleged abuse of a dominant position by AB InBev in Belgium through
certain prachces aimed at restricting trade from other European Urnion member states to Belgium. In connection with these ongoing
proceedings, AB InBev made a provision of 230m US dollar
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33. Non-controlling interests

As of 31 December 2018 and 2017, matenial non-controlling interests relate to Ambev, a Brazilian listed subsidhary in which AB InBev has
62% ownership The tables below provide summanzed information of Ambev's audited consolidated financial stalements as of as of 31
December 2018 and 2017, in accordance with IFRS

Summanzed financial information of Ambev, n which the company has matenal non-controlling interests, 1s as follaws.

Million US doilar 2018 2017

Summarized balance sheet information

Current assets 6537 7472
Non—<urrent assets 17 755 18 783
Current habilites 6 408 8672
Non-current habilities 3032 3078
Equity attributable to equity holders 14 540 13908
Non-controlling interests 32 597

Summarized income statement and comprehensive income information
Revernue 13819 14 961
Net income 3 130 2452

Attnbutable to

Equity hoiders 3033 2290
Non-controling interests 97 162
Net income 3130 2 452
Other comprehensive Income 629 809
Total comprehensive income 3759 3 261
Attnbutable to

Equity holders 3 629 3090
Non-controling interesis 130 171

Summarized cash flow information

Cash flow from operating actvities 4928 5583
Cash flow from investing activities {1 011) (860)
Cash flow from financing activities {3 638) (4 018)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 219 605

Dwidends paid by Ambev 1o non-controling interests (1 e to entiies outside the AB InBev Group) amounted to 0 8 bilkon US dollar and
1 1 bilion US dollar for 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Other non-centrolling interests not deemed individually material by the company mainly reiated to the company's operations in Africa in
assoctation with the Castel Group (e g., Botswana, Ghana, Mozambigue, Nigena, Tanzania, Uganda, and Zambia), as well as hon-
controlling interests recognized in respect of the company’s subsidiaries in Colombia, Ecuador, and Peru
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34. Related parties

TRANSACTIONS WITH DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT MEMBERS (KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL)

in addition 1o short-term employee benefits (primanly salanes) AB InBev's Executive Board of Management members were entitled in
2018 to post-employment benefits In parhcular, members of the Executive Board of Management participated in the pension plan of therr
respechve country - see also Note 25 Empioyee Benefits Finally, key management personnel are eligible for the company’s share opton,
restricted stock and/or share swap program (see Note 26 Share-based Payments). Total directors and Executive Board of Management
compensation included In the Income statement can be detailed as follows

2018 2017
Executive Board Executive Board
Million US dotlar Directors of Management Directors of Management
Short-term employee banefits 2 27 2 28
Post-employment benefits - - - 1
Share-based payments - 24 3 68
4 52 5 97

Dhrectors’ compensaton consists mainly of directors’ fees.

During 2018, AB InBev entered into the following transactions:

* The acqusition, through Grupo Modeio and its subsidianes, of information technology and infrastructure services for a consideration
of approximately 1 Om US dollar from a company in which one of the company's Board Member had significant influence as of 31
December 2018

® The acquisition, mainly through is subsidiary Bavaria S A., of transportation services, lease agreements and advertising services for
an aggregated consideration of 8 1m US dollar from companies in which one of the company's Board Member had a significant
influence as of 31 December 2018 The outstanding balance of these transactions as of 31 December 2018 amounts to 0 2m US
dollar.

JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Significant interests in jont ventures include three entities in Brazil, one in Mexico and two in Canada  None of these joint ventures are
material to the company. Aggregate amounts of AB InBev's interest are as follows.

Miilien US dollar 2018 2017
Non-current assets 11 12
Current assets H] 5
Non-current liabilities ] 11

Current liabilites 12 6
Resutt from operations 4 3}
Profit attrbutable to equity holders of AB InBev 3 (3)

TRANSACTIONS WITH ASSOCIATES

Significant interests 1n associates are shown in note 16 Invesiments in associates. AB InBev's transactons with associates were as
follows.

Miilion US dollar 2018 2017
Gross profit 74 91
Current assets 152 73
Current babilities 130 20

TRANSACTIONS WITH PENSION PLANS
AB InBev's transactions with pension plans mainly compnse 12m US dollar other income from pension plans in the US,
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35. Events after the balance sheet date

BOND ISSUANCE

On 23 January 2019, Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc , a subsidiary of Anheuser-Busch InBev SA/NV 1ssued 15 5 billon US dollar
aggregate principal amount of bonds The bonds comprise the following seres 2 5 billlon US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed
rate Notes due 23 January 2025 bearing interest at annual rate of 4.150%; 4 25 bilion US dollar aggregate principal armount of fixed rate
Notes due 23 January 2029 bearing interest at an annual rate of 4.750%; 0.75 billion US doliar aggregate prnincipal amount of fixed rate
Notes due 23 January 2031 bearing interest at an annual rate of 4 900%; 2.0 bilion US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate
Notes due 23 January 2039 beanng interest at an annual rate of 5.450%, 4 0 bilion US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate
Notes due 23 January 2049 beanng interest at an annual rate of 5 550% and 2 0 billion US dollar aggregate principai amount of fixed rate
Notes due 23 January 2059 bearing interest at an annual rate of 5 800%.

The net proceeds of the offering will be used for general corporate purposes, including the repayment of upcoming debt maturiies in 2021
to 2024 and 2026, including the funding of the company’s announced tender offers.

RESULTS OF TENDER OFFERS

On 08 February 2019, AB InBev announced the final results of offers by its wholly owned subsidianes Anheuser-Busch InBev Finance
Inc, Anheuser-Busch InBev Worldwide Inc and Anheuser-Busch Companies, LLC to purchase for cash any vahdly tendered (and not
validly withdrawn) and accepted notes up to an aggregate purchase price (excluding accrued and unpaid interest) of 16 5 bilhon US dollar
of twelve senes of notes issued by the companies With the completion of the Tender Offers, the companies repurchased 16 3 tilion US
daollar aggregate principal amount of several senes of its outstanding notes.

The pool caps compnse the following senes 2 5 bilion US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate Notes beanng interest at annual
rate of 2.650%, 0 2 bilion US dollar aggregate principal amount of floating rate Notes and 0 2 bilion US dollar aggregate principal amount
of fixed rate Notes at an annual rate of 4 375% due 1n 2021; 1 4 llion US doliar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate Notes beanng
interest at annual rate of 3 750% and 1 3 bilion US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate Notes at an annual rate of 2 500% due
in 2022; 0.6 billon US dollar aggregate pnncipat amount of fixed rate Notes beanng interest at annual rate of 2 625% and 2 9 billon US
doltar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate Notes at an annual rate of 3.300% due \n 2023, 0 3 bilion US dollar aggregate princ:pal
amount of floating rate Notes, 0 9 bitlon US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate Notes at an annual rate of 3 500% and 0 5
bilhen US dollar aggregate principal amount of fixed rate Notes at an annual rate of 3 700% due n 2024, and 5.9 bilion US dollar aggreqate
principal amount of fixed rate Notes bearing interest at annual rate of 3 650% due in 2026

36. AB InBev companies

Listed below are the most important AB InBev companies A complete st of the company's investments 1s avallable at AB InBev NV,
Brouwenplein 1, B-3000 Leuven, Belgium

LIST OF MOST IMPORTANT FULLY CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES

% of economic

interest as at

Name and registered office of fully consolidated companies 31 December 2018
ARGENTINA
CERVECERIA Y MALTERIA QUILMES SAICA y G - Charcas 5160 - C1425B0F - Buenos Aires 61.88
AUSTRALIA
FOSTER'S GRCUP PTY LTD — Southbank Boulevard 77 - 3006 Southbank — Viclona 100.00
CUB PTY LTD - Southbark Boulevard 77 - 3006 Southbank — Victona 100.00
FBGfINANCE PTY LTD - Southbank Boulevard 77 - 3006 Southbank — Victona 100.00
FBG TREASURY (AUST) PTY LTD - Southbank Boulevard 77 - 3006 Southbank — Victona 100.00
BELGIUM
_ABINBEV N V. — Grand Place 1 - 1000 - Brussel Cansoldating
BRASSERIE DE L'ABBAYE DE LEFFE S A. - Place de 'Abbaye 1 - 5500 — Dinant 98.54
BROUWERIJ VAN HOEGAARDEN N V. - Stoopkensstraat 46 - 3320 — Hoegaarden 100 00
COBREW N V - Brouwerplein 1 - 3000 — Leuven 100.00
_INBEY BELGIUM S.P.R.L - Industnelaan 21 - 1070 - Brussel 100 00
_BOTSWANA
_KGALAGADI BREWERIES {PTY) LTD - Plot 20768, Broadhurst indusinaf estate - Gaborene' 3100
“BOLWVIA
CERVECERIA BOLIVIANA NACIONAL S A - Av Montes 400 and Chuquisaca No 121, Zana 6188
BRAZIL

' The group's shares entitle the holder to twice the voting nghts
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% of economic

interest as at

Name and registered office of fully consolidated companies 31 December 2018
AMBEV 5 A. - Rua Dr Renato Paes de Barros, 1017, 3° andar, ltaim Bitw - CEP 04530-00% - Sa0 Paulo 6188
CANADA

LABATT BREWING COMPANY LIMITED - 207 Queen's Quay West, Swute 299 - M5J 1A7 — Toronto 61 88
CHILE

CERVECERIA CHILE S.A, - Av, Presidente Eduarde Frer Montalva 9600 - 8700000 — Quilicura 6188
CHINA

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV {CHINA) SALES COLTD - Shangshou, Qin Duan Kou, Hanyang Area - 100.00
430051 - Wuhan City, Hubei Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEY (WUHAN) BREWERY CO. LTD. - Shangshou, Qin Duan Kou, Hanyang Area 97.06
- 430051 - Wuhan City, Hubel Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (FOSHAN) BREWERY CO. LTD - 1 Budweiser Avenue, Southwest St , 100.00
Sanshui Distnct - 528132 - Foshan City, Guangdong

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEY HARBIN BREWERY CO LTD - 9 HaPr Road Pingfang Distnct - 1500686 - 100.00
Harbin City, Heillongijang Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEY (TANGSHAN) BREWERY CQ. LTD - 18, Yingbin Road - 063300 - Tangshan 100.00
City, Hebei Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEY SEDRIN BREWERY CO LTD - 660 Gong Ye Road, Hanjang Distnct - 100 00
351111 - Putian City, Fupan Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEY SEDRIN (ZHANGZHOU) BREWERY CO. LTD - Lantian Econormic Dhstnct - 100 00
363005 - Zhangzhou City, Fujian Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV (TAIZHOU) BREWERY CO. LTD. - 159 Qi Xia East Road, Chengguan Town, 100 00
Twanta County - 317200 - Taizhou Cithy, Zhejang Province

NANCHANG ASiA BREWERY CO LTD - 1188 Jinsha Avenue, Economic Distnict - Nanchang City, 100.00
Jangx Province

SIPING GINSBER DRAFT BEER CO LTD. - Xianrmaquan, Tiedong Area - Siping City, Jihin Province 100 00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV {(NANTONG) BREWERY CO LTD. - 666 Zhaoxia Road - Nantong City, 100 00
Jiangsu Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV {SICHUAN) BREWERY CO. LTD. - No 1, AB InBev Avenue, Cheng Nan 10000
Industry Park, Economic Development Area - 641300 - Ziyang City, Sichuan Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEY (HENAN) BREWERY CO LTD - No. 1 Budweiser Avenue, Industry Park, 100.00
Tangzhuang Town - 453100 - Weishui City, Henan Province

INBEV JINLONGQUAN (HUBEI) BREWERY CO LTD - 89 Jin Long Quan Avenue - Jingmen City, Hubei 60.00
Province

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEY (SUQIAN) BREWERY CO. LTD. - No 1 Qujang Road, Suyu Industry Park - 100.00

Suqian City, Jiangsu Province

COLOMBIA

BOGOTA BEER COMPANY BBC S.A.S. - Carrera 53 A, No 127 - 35 - 110221 — Bogota 97 22
BAVARIA S.A. S.A. - Carrera 53 A, No 127 - 35- 110221 - Bogota 99.00
AMBEY COLOMBIA S A.S. - Carrera 53 A, No 127 - 35 - 110221 — Bogota 97 22

CZECH REPUBLIC
PIVOVAR SAMSON A.S. - V parku 2326/18, Chodov, 148 00 Praha £ 100 00

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC

CERVECERIA NACIONAL DOMINICANA S.A - Autopsta 30 de Mayo Km 61/2, Distnio Nacional - AP 52.42
ECUADOR X

COMPARNIA CERVECERA AMBEV ECUADOR S.A. - Km 14.5 Via a Daule S/N y Av. Las Iguanas, 97,22
CERVECERIA NACIONAL (CN) SA - Via a daule km 18,5 y calle cobre sin — Guayaquil, Guayas 95 58
EL SALVADOR

INDUSTRIAS LA CONSTANCIA, SA DE CV - 526 Av Independencia, San Salvador 100.00

' 85% owned by Ambev S A
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% of economic

interest as at

Name and registered office of fully censolidated companies 31 Decemnber 2018
FRANCE
AB INBEV FRANCE S.A.S - Immeuble Crystal, 38, Place Vauban - C P, 59110 - La Madeleine 100.00
GERMANY T
BRAUEREI| BECK GmbH & CO KG - Am Deich 18/19 - 28199 — Bremen 10q.00
BRALIEREI DIEBELS GmbH & CO KG - Brauere-Diebels-Strasse 1 - 47661 — Issum 100.00
HAAKE-BECK AG - Am Deich 18/19 - 28189 — Bremen 99.96
HASSERODER BRAUEREI GmbH - Auerhahnring 1 - 38855 — Wemigerode 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV GERMANY HOLDING GmbH - Am Deich 18/12 - 28199 — Bremen 100.09__
SPATEN - FRANZISKANER - BRAU GmbH - Marssttasse 46 + 48 - 80335 — Mdnchen - 100£(_)~
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV Deutschiand GmbH & Co KG - Am Deich 18/19 - 28199 — Bremen 100.00
LOEWENBRAELU AG - Nymphenburger Str. 7 - 80335 — Munchen 100.00
GHANA T
ACCRA BREWERY LTD - Farra Avenue 20 1st Floor, Pkf Building, P C. Box Gp1213 — Accra 60.C0 .
GRAND DUCHY OF LUXEMBOURG
BRASSERIE DE LUXEMBOURG MOUSEL - DIEKIRCH - 1, Rue de la Brassene - L-9214 — Diekirch 95.82
HONDURAS
CERVECERIA HONDURENA, SA DE CV - Bivd Del Norte, Carretera Salida a Puerto Cortes - San Pedro 99.00
INDIA
CROWN BEERS INDIA LIMITED - #8-2-684/A, Road No 12 - Banjara Hills, Hyderabad 500034 - Andhra 100 00
SABMILLER INDIA LIMITED LTD - Umit No 301-302, Dynasty Business Park, 3rd Floor - Andher - Kura 99 60
ITALY
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV ITALIA SPA - Piazza Bufforu 3, 21013 Gallarate 100 00
MEXICO
CERVECERIA MODELO DE MEXICO S DE R.L. DE C V - Javier Barros Sierra 555 Piso 3 - Zedec Ed
Plaza Santa Fe - 01210 Mexico City 100 00
MOZAMBIQUE
CERVEJAS DE MOGCAMBIQUE SA - Rua do Jardim 1329 - Maputo' 49 00
THE NETHERLANDS
INBEV NEDERLAND NV - Ceresstraat 1 - 4811 CA — Breda 100 00
INTERBREW INTERNATIONAL BV - Ceresstraat 1 - 4811 CA — Breda 100 00
AB InBev Africa BV - Ceresstraat 1, 4811 CA — Breda 62 00
AB InBev Botswana B V - Ceresstraat 1, 4811 CA — Breda 62 00
NIGERIA
BEVERAGE MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS LIMITED LTD - 58 Akanbi Onitin Close, Off Enc Moore Road, 50 00
lNTEF_iNATleAL BREWERIES PLC - Lawrence Omole Way, Omi Osoro Road, Imo llgsha, Osun State' 3750
PANANA
CERVECEBE\LACIONAL HOLDING SA - Costa del Este Business Park, torre Oeste Pisc 2 - Cudad de 60 00
] PARA_G_UAY
CERVECERI@B_{\RAGUAYA S A -Ruta Villeta xm 30 N 3045 - 2660 — Ypané 6188
TPERU T
COMPANIA CERVECERA AMBEY PERU S AC - Av Los Laureles Mza A Lt 4 del Centro Poblado
_Menor Santa Mana de Huachipa - Lungancho {Chosica) - Lima 15 97 22

¥ The company s consolidated due to the group's majority shareholdings and ability to control the operations



Y% of economic

interest as at
Name and registered office of fully consolidated companies 31 December 2018

UNION DE CERVECERIAS PERUANAS BACKUS Y JOHNSTON SAA - 3986 Av Nicolas Ayllon, Ate, 93 65

SOUTH AFRICA

SABSA HOLDINGS LTD PUBLIC LIMITED COMPANY - 65 Park Lane, Sandown - 2001 — Johannesburg 100 00
THE SOUTH AFRICAN BREWERIES (PTY) LTD LIMITED BY SHARES - 65 Park Lane, Sandown - 2146
— Johannesburg 91.55

SOUTH KOREA

ORIENTAL BREWERY CO., LTD - 8F, ASEM Tower, 517, Yeongdong-daero, Gangnam-gu, Seoul, 06164, 100 00
SWITZERLAND

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV PROCUREMENT GMBH GESELLSCHAFT MIT BESCHRANKTER

HAFTUNG (GMBH) - Suurstoffi 22 — 6343 - Rotkreuz 100 00
TANZANIA

KIBO BREWERIES LTD PRIVATE COMPANY - Uhuru Street, Plot No 79, Block AA, Mchikictuny, llala

District - - Dar es Salaam' 36.00
UGANDA

NILE BREWERIES LTD - Plot M0 Yusuf Lule Roa, Njeru, Jinja - Eastern Uganda 61.76
UNITED KINGDOM

ABI SAB GROUP HOLDING LIMITED - AB InBev House, Church Street West - GU21 6HT - Weking 100.00
AB! UK HOLDINGS 1 LIMITED - Porter Tun House, 500 Capability Green - LU1 3LS ~ Luton 100 00
AB INBEV UK LIMITED - Porter Tun House, S00 Capability Green - LU1 3LS - Luton 100 00
AB INBEV HOLDINGS LIMITED - AB InBev House, Church Straet West - GU21 6HT - Woking 100.00
AB INBEV INTERNATIONAL BRANDS LIMITED - AB InBev House, Church Street West - GU21 6HT - 100 00
ZX VENTURES LIMITED - Porter Tun House, 500 Capabilty Green - LU1 3LS — Luton 100 00

UNITED STATES

ANHEUSER-BUSCH COMPANIES, LLC - One Busch Place - St Louis, MO 63118 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH INTERNATIONAL, INC - One Busch Pltace - St Louis, MO 63118 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH PACKAGING GROUP, INC - One Busch Place - St. Louis, MO 63118 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH, LLC - One Busch Place, St Louis, MO 63118 100 00
METAL CONTAINER CORPORATION, INC. — One Busch Place, St. Louis, MO 63118 100.00
ANHEUSER-BUSCH NORTH AMERICAN HOLDING CORPORATICN - C/O THE CORPORATION 100 0C
URUGUAY

CERVECERIA Y MALTERIA PAYSANDU S.A - Cesar Cortinas, 2037 - C.P 11500 - Montevideo 61.88
VIETNAM

ANHEUSER-BUSCH INBEV VIETNAM BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED/No 2 VSIP II-A, Street no. 28,

Vietnam - Singapore II-A Industnal Park, Tan Uyen District, Binh Duong Province 100 00
ZAMBIA

ZAMBIAN BREWERIES PLC - Mungwi Road, Plot Number 6438, Lusaka 54 00
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LIST OF MOST IMPORTANT ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

% of economic
interest as at

Name and registered office of associates and joint ventures 31 december 2018
FRANCE

SOCIETE DES BRASSERIES ET GLACIERES INTERNATIONALES SA - 30 AV George V, 75008, Pans 20.00
GIBRALTAR

BIH BRASSERIES INTERNATIONALES HOLDING LTD - CC Building, 10th Floor, Main Street 2000
BIH BRASSERIES INTERNATIONALES HOLDING (ANGOLA) LTD - Suite 10/3, International Comemercial 27.00
TURKEY

ANADOLU EFES BIRACILIK VE MALT SANAYIl AS - Bahgelievler Mahallesi, Sehit Ibrabum Kopanr 24 00
ZIMBABWE

DELTA CORPORATION LTD - Sable house, P O Box BW 343, Northndge Close, Borrowdale, Harare 2500
RUSSIA

AB InBev Efes - 28 Moscovskaya Street, Moscow region - 141607 — Klin 5000
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Information to our shareholders

Earnings, dividends, share and share price

Cash flow from aperating activities (US doliar per share}
Normalized earrmings per share (US dollar per share)
Dividend (euro per share)

Share price high (eurc per share)
Share pnce low (euro per share)
Year-end share pnce (euro per share)

Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares (million

Dituted weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares
Volume of shares traded {million shares)
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2018

742
3.44
1.80

96.70
56.84
57.70

1975
2014
496

2017

7.83
4.04
3.60

110.10
92.88
9313

1871
2010
349

2016

589
2.83
3.60

119 60
9213
100 55

1717
1735
445

2015

862
520
360

124.20
87.73
114 40

1638
1 668
449

2014

8.66
5.43
3.00

94 89
6914
93 86

1634

1865
397
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Information on the auditors’ assignments and related fees

AB InBev's Statutory auditor 18 Deloitte Bednjfsrevisoren/Réviseurs d'Entrepnses CVBAJSCRL, represented by Joel Brehmen, audit
partner

Base fees for auditing the annual financial statements of AB InBev and its subsidiares are determined by the shareholders meeting after
review and approval by the company’s Audit Committee and Board of Directors.

Fees' for 2018 n relation to services prowded by Deloitte Bednifsrevisoren/Réviseurs d'Entreprises CVBA/SCRL amounted to 2 848k
US dollar (2017: 3 202k US dollar), which was composed of audit services for the annual financial statements of 2 086k US dollar (2017:
1 979k US dollar}, tax services of 521k US dellar (2017 811k LUS dollar) and audit related services of 241k US dellar (2014 412k US
dollar) Audit related services mainly relate to services incumed in connection with nghts and bonds 1ssuance, all of which have been pre-
approved by the company's Audid Commillee

Fees for 2018 n relation to services provided by other offices in the Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu network amounted to 7 174k US dollar
(2017: 7 708k US dolar}, which was composed of audit senvices for the annual financial statements of 6 599k US dollar (2017: 6 826k US
doilar), tax services of 520k US dollar (2017- 782k US dollar) and audit related services of 55k US dollar {2017: Ok US dotlar), all of which
have been pre-approved by the company’s Audit Committee

Financial calendar

Publication of 2018 results 28 February 2019
Annual report 2018 available on www.ab-inbev com 28 February 2018
General shareholders meeting 24 Apnl 2019
Dividend. ex-coupon date 7 May 2019
Pubiication of first quarter resuits 7 May 2019
Pubhcation of half year results 25 July 2019
Publication of third quarter results 25 October 2019

Investor relations contact

Media Investors

Pable Jimenez Lauren Abbott

Tel +1212 573 9289 Tel: +1 212 573 9287

E-mal pablo ymenez@gmodelo com mx E-mail: lauren.abbett@ab-nbev com
Aimee Baxter Mariusz Jamka

Tel. +1 718 650 4003 Tel +32 16 27 68 88

E-mmait armee baxter@ab-inbev.com E-mail mariusz jamka@ab-inbev com
ingvild Van Lysebetten Jency John

Tel: +32 1627 66 08 Tel +1 646 746 9673

E-mail ingwild.vanlysebetten@ab-inbev com E-mail: jency john@ab-nbev com

' Fees do not include audit and ather fees of companies which are audiled by PncewalerhouseCoopers LLP



Excerpt from the AB InBev NV separate
(non-consolidated) financial statements
prepared in accordance with Belgian GAAP

The following mformation 18 extracted from the separate Belgian GAAP financial statements of AB InBev NV per 31 December 2018.
These separate financial statements, together with the management report of the Board of Directors to the general assembly of
shareholders as well as the auditor's report, will be filed with the National Bank of Belgum within the legally foreseen time limits. These
documents are also available on request from AB InBev NV, Brouwenijplen 1, 3000 Leuven.

It shouid be noted that only the consolidated financiat statements as set forth above present a true and fair view of the financial position:
and performance of the AB InBev group.

Since AB InBev NV 15 essantially a holding company, which recognizes its investments at cost in its non-consolidated financial statements,
these separate financial statements present no more than a imited view of the financial position of AB InBev NV For this reason, the
Board of Directors deemed 1t appropniate to publish only an abbrewiated version of the non-consolidated balance sheet and income
staternent prepared in accordance with Belgian GAAP as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018,

The statutory audstor has confirmed that his audit procedures are substantially complete and that the abbrewiated non-consohdated
balance sheet and income statament of AB InBev NV prepared In accordance with Belgian GAAP for the year ended 31 December 2018
are consistent, in all matenal respects, with the accounts from which they have been denved.
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Abbreviated non-consolidated balance sheet

Million eurc 2018 2017

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Intangible assets 597 561

Property, plant and equipment a9 37

Financal assets 115 156 104 008
115791 104 606

Current assets 38 067 67 977

Total assets 153 858 172 583

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Issued capital 1239 1239
Share premium 13186 13 186
Legal reserve 124 124
Reserves not available for distnbution 35985 8283
Reserves available for distnbution 33009 33009
Profit carned forward 12 607 8 588
63760 64 429
Provisions and deferred taxes 46 106
Non-current liabilities 63 758 85 587
Current liabilities 26 293 22 461
Total equity and liabilities 153 858 172 583

Abbreviated non-consolidated income statement

Million euro 2018 2017
Operating income: 1369 2169
Operating expenses {995) (1 308)
Qperating result 373 8671
Financial resutt 2482 (734)
Result for the year available for appropriation 2 856 127
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Glossary

AGGREGATED WEIGHTED NOMINAL TAX RATE
The aggregated weighted nominal tax rate 1s based on the statutory corporate income tax rates apphicable in the various countries

COPEC
Colombia, Peru and Ecuador.

DILUTED EPS
Profit attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev divided by the fully diluted weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares

DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY and restricted SHARES
Weighted average number of ordinary and restricted shares, adjusted by the effect of dilutive share options and restricted stock units

EBIT
Profit from operations.

EBITDA
Profit from operations plus depreciation, amortization and impairment.

EMEA
Europe and Africa.

EPS
Profit attributable to equity holders of AB InBev divided by the weighted average number of ordinary and restnicted shares

FVOCI
Farr value through other comprehensive income

FVPL

Fair value through other profit or lass.

FTE's

Full-time employees on a permanent or temporary basis, excluding outsourced personnel
INVESTED CAPITAL

Includes property, plant and equpment, gocodwill and intangible assets, investments in asscciates and equity secunties, working capital,
provisions, employee benefits and deferred taxes.

MARKETING EXPENSES

Include all costs relating to the support and promotion of the brands They include among others operating costs (payroll, office costs,
etc.) of the marketing department, advertising costs (agency costs, media costs, ete.), sponsonng and events, and surveys and market
research

NET CAPEX
Acquisiions of property, plant and equipment and of intangible assets, minus proceeds from sale.

NET DEBT
Non-current and current interest-bearing loans and borrowings and bank overdrafts, minus debt secunties and cash and cash equivalents

NON-RECURRING ITEMS
Iltems of income or expense which do not occur regularly as part of the normatl activities of the company

NORMALIZED

The term “normalized” refers to performance measures (EBITDA, EBIT, Profit, EPS, effective tax rate) before non-recurnng items and
profit from discontnued operations. Non-racurnng tems are itams of iIncome or expense which do not occur regularly as part of the normal
activiies of the company and which warrant separate disciosure because they are important for the understanding of the underlying results
of the company due to therr size or nature. AB InBey believes that the communication and explanation of normalized measures s assential
for readers of its financial statements to understand fully the sustainable performance of the company Normalized measures are additional
measures used by management and should not replace the measures determined in accordance with IFRS as an indicator of the
company's performance

NORMALIZED DILUTED EPS
Diluted EPS adjusted for non-recurring items and profit from discontinued operations.

NORMALIZED EBIT
Profit from operations adjusted for non-recuming tems.

NORMALIZED EBITDA
Profit from aperations adjusted for non-recurnng tems, plus depreciation, amortization and imparment

NORMALIZED EFFECTIVE TAX RATE
Effective tax rate adjusted for non-recurmng itemns.

NORMALIZED EPS
EPS adjusted for non-recurring items and profit from discontinued operations.
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NORMALIZED PROFIT
Profit adjusted for non-recurrng tems and profit from discontnued operations

NORMALIZED PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
Prufit from operations adjusted for non-recurring rterms

PAY QOUT RATIO
Gross dividend per share multiplied by the estimated number of ordinary shares outstanding at the dividend record date, divided by
normalized profit attnbutable to equity holders of AB InBev.

RE-MEASUREMENTS OF POST-EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Compnsed of actuanal gains and losses, the effect of the asset celing {excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets {excluding
net interest).

REVENUE
Gross revenue less excise faxes and discounts

SALES EXPENSES
Include all costs relating to the seling of the products. They include among others the operating costs (payroll, office costs, etc ) of the
sales department and the sales force.

SG&A AND SELLING, GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Sales, markehng, distnbution and adrministrative expenses

SCOPE

Financials are analyzed eliminating the impact of changes in currencies on translation of foreign operations, and scopes A scope
represents the iImpact of acquisitions and divestitures, the start-up or termination of activities or the transfer of activiies between segments,
curtallment gains and losses and year-over-year changes i accounting estimates and other assumptions that management does not
consider as part of the underlying performance of the business The impact of adopting hypennflation accounting in Argentina effective 1
January 2018 1s presented as a scope change

UNDERLYING EPS

Profit before nen-recurnng items, discontinued operations, mark-to-market losses on certain denvatives related to the hedging of share-
pased payment programs and hypennflation impacts, atiributable to equity holders of AB InBev divided by the weighted average number
of ordinary and restricted shares.

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY and restricted SHARES
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the perod, adjusted by the number of shares cancelled, repurchased or issued during
the penod multiphed by a tme-weighing factor.

WORKING CAPITAL
Includes inventones, frade and other recervables and trade and other payables, both current and non-current
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The below UK subsidiaries have sought and receved a parental guarantee from AB InBev SA/NV under Sections 479A, 394A-C
and 448A-C of the UK Comparnies Act 2006 which has allowed them to be exempt from fiing subsidiary audited financial

statements

Unaudited inancial statements will be filed with the UK Companies House in the course of 2019 except for dormant
companies which are exempl from preparing or fiing inancial statements

COMPANY NAME
AB Inbev (Safari}

AB Inbev Africa Holdings Il Limited

AB Inbev Africa Holdings Lirnited

AB Inbev Africa Investments Limited

AB Inbev Amenca Holdings Limited

AB |nbev Asia Holdings Limited

AB inbev Australia Holdings Limited

AB Inbev Australia Investment Holdings Limited
AB Inbev Capital UK Limited

AB Inbev Corporate Services Limited

AB Inbev Finance SA Limited

AB Inbev Finance South Africa Limited

AB Inbev Finance South Afncan Heldings Limited
A8 Inbev Global Business Services Limited

AB Inbev Harmony Holdings Limited

AB Inbev Harmony Limited __

‘ AB Inbev Holdings Europe Limited

REGISTERED NUMBER
04834191

093930929
04982953
04117358
08522107
05891508
08926984
11642354
07466437
08575040
08924308
11666154
11641110
08685907
07906062
08296561

AB Inbev Heldings Limited

AB Inbev Holdings SA Limited

AB Inbev Holdings SH Limited

AB Inbev Haorizon Limited

AB InBev International Brands Limited

AB inbev Investments Holdings Company 2 Limited

AB Inbev SAF Limited

AB Inbev S| Limited

AB Inbev Scuthern Capital Limited

AB |nBev Southern Investments Holding Lrmited
AB Inbev Southern Investments Limited

AB InBev UK Finance Company Limited

AB InBev UK Investment Company Limited

ABI Australia Beverage Holding Lid

ABI Australia Investment Lid

ABI Eurc Finance Services Limited

ABI Inbev Investment Holding Company Limited
ABI Maxico Holding | Unlimited

ABI Mexico Holding I Limited

AB| SAB Group Holding Limited

ABI Southern Holding Ltd

ABI Southern Investment Ltd

ABI UK Holding 1 Limited

ABI UK Holding 2 Limited

AFC Finance Limited (in Liquidation)

ALE Finance Services Limited

8296561
wmD

04185128
07817960
07816420
06868068
05511456
11642142
07780722
08524644
07816628
11654135
05620066
09492207
03492211

10394386
10385165
10535822
11640882
10506521

10517930
03528416
10394354
10394347
10377840
10414368
09852512
10379989
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Anglemaster Limited
Anheuser-Busch Europe Limited
BFC Finance Limited

Bourse du Vin Limited

Brewman Group Limited

Carlton and United Brewenes Haldings (UK) Limited

DFC Finance Limited {in Liguidation)
Dreamgame Limited

East West Onental Brewing Company Limited

FBG Brewery Holdings UK Limited
FBG Holdings (UK} Limited

FBG International Limited

FBG Treasury {UK} Limited

Foster's Brands Limited

HFC Finance Limited

Kangaroo Ridge Wines Europe Limited
Pilsner Urquell Company Limited
Pilsner Urquell International Limited
Pirate Life (Europe) Limited

SAB Australia Beverage Holdings LLP
SAB Limited

SABMIller Asia Capital LLP

SABMiller Financing Southern LLP
The Wine Exchange Limited

Tibsco Limited

00072114
02399274
09852426
00042015
00546912
07543569
09852407
01960627
00027959
02565926
02037446
00028707
02129189
06425007
09852273
00040742
02688496
03950016
10376567
0DC369103
03640804
00365431
0OC369350
00071565
00036973
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